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POSSIBLE ABUSE AND MALADMINISTRATION OF HOME 
REHABILITATION PROGRAMS FOR THE ELDERLY 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 8, 1980 

U.S. SENATE, 
SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AGING, 

Sq/nta Fe, N. Mew. 
The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9 a.m., in the auditorium, 

National Guard' Armory, Senator Lawton Chiles? chairma.n, presiding. 
Present: Senators Chiles, Melcher, and DomenlCi. . 
Also present: E. Bentley Lipscomb, staff director; David .A. Rust, 

minority staff director; Charles H. Morley, chief investigator; ana 
Kathleen L. Makris, minority office manager. . 

WELCOMING REMARKS BY SENATOR PETE V. DOMEN'rCI 

Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Chairman, before you make your opening 
statement, let me welcome you, SeIlator Chiles and Senator Melcher, 
to New Mexico and to this day of hearings. I know it is inconvenient 
and very difficult for both f:'f you, in the middle of our recess, to take 
time from your busy schedules to be here. I am. sure that all New 
Mexicans will appreciate it. We think we have a problem which de­
serves the attention of the Senate. By your presence, and by this 
hearing, we are hopeful we can take care of some of the issues that have 
been dlsoovered in our State. 

Therefore, on behalf Qf our State, we are most appreciative or your 
being here. We welcome you. We hope it hasn't been too difficult for 
you. We hope the hearing 'will go well. 

All the witnesses the committee has asked for are here. We are ready to proceed. 
Thank you, again. 

OPENING STATEMENT B1[ SENATOR LAWTON CHILES, CHAIRMAN 

Senator CHILES. Thank you very much, Senator Domenici. I know 
that Senator Melcher and I are glad to be here. We wish it were under 
~tter circumstances. Weare delighted to have an 'Opportunity to be In your State. 

The Senate Committee on Aging is a committee that has been oper­
ating for a number of years in a very bipartisan manner, and continw~s 
to do so. Even now, when we are in very partisan times, a time of the 
year which is very partisan, the work that you have done on the com­
mittee as the ranking minority member 'is exemplary, and certainly 
Senator Melcher has long been interested in the problems that we are 
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dealing with, and problems of our senior citizens. He also is an expert 
in rural problems. , 

Today's hearing is the result of our investigation into the Farmers 
Home Administration home rehahilitation program in northern New 
Mexico. An inve8tigation was conducted by the committee at the re­
quest of our ranking minority member, Senator Domernci. Though we 
will focus primarily on the Farmers Home grant under section 504 of 
the Housing Act, we will also discuss other home rehabilitation pro­
grams which provide similar services to the same constituents. 

One of my concerns over a number of years has been the extent 
of the duplication and overlap which arises when Federal programs 
are administered by ffive-ral agencies. The Federal housing program is 
a program in point. Among the housing programs available in New 
Mexico are those administered by Farmers Home, by the Community 
Services Administration, by the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, the Department of Energy's weatherization grant pro­
gram, and the New :Mexico Ilousing and Rural Development Author­
ity rehabilitation grant. 

It has been my experience that unless these types of similar agency 
programs are very t.ightly managed, they can easily overlap and result 
in a waste of the taxpayer's money. Congress, of course, intended for 
these various programs to complement each other. After seeing some 
of the programs discovered in New Mexico, we decided that we would 
take a quick look at some of the section 504 programs, and look at the 
way the progra,m was working in several other States. 

We found, in looking at Florida and Pennsylvania, that Farmers 
Home make excellent use of the community, State, and Federal pro­
grams to get more productivity out of their limited section 504 funds 
that could otherwise be possible. This type of efficiency is going to be 
required of all of our Federal programs in the future as inflation 
makes us tighten our belts ~ore and more. .. 

In the two rural countIes we were able to look at In Flo.rIda, we 
found that Farmers llome uses CETA labor supplied by a multi~ 
county organization to rehabilitate the houses receiving 504 gran~s. 
Workmanship on the houses that we inspected ~ppeared to be 9ultel" 
good. III Pennsylvania, CETA workers are used In several countIes to 
locate people eligible for the 504 grB;nts. TI;e qETA worl{~.I'S then 
assist the applicants in packaging theIr applIcatlon and findmg con­
tractors and otherwise assisting them throughout the grant process. 

In Pennsylvania, we saw another instance wher~ Farmer~ Ho~e 
offices used both CETA and Green Thumb part-tIme help In theIr 
programs to help assist them in their heavy caseload .. 

In contrast, we are going to hear from ~everal wltne~ses today who 
have received two or more gra~ts from dI~~rent agenCIes, and whose 
houses still have not been properly rehabIhtated. ~ather than com­
plement each other, one prog.ram was apparently tryIng to. remedy the 
problem created by a previous program .. This, of c~urse, IS !Il?t at all 
whit~ Congress had in mind in establishIng the varIOUS housmg pro­
grams. It looks like the failure was. right from ~he outset. Once that 
failure had occurred, then we were kInd of thrOWIng good money :after 

ba~or those of you who are not familiar wi~h the var~ous programs, 
I would like to briefly outline the four we WIll be lookIng at today. 

. ------._-----------
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Th~ .Farmers Home section 504 grants provide up to $5,000 to 
rehaibIlItate homes 'of the rural elderly of limited income so as to 
remove health and safety hazards. 

~eIl; we ha~e.the Department of Energy's weatherization pro am 
WhICh. IS admlnI~tered at the l?cal level tlhrough community ~io~ 
rge!lcd~' It provJdes up to $!560 Hi ~rant funds to be used by people of 
Imlte. Inco!l18 to purc~ase mSlllation, d?ors, windows, et cete.ra. The 

labor for this prop:ram IS !?,'eneral1y prOVIded hy CET A worke,rs 
T:h~n we have HUD block grants that can' be used in part to re~ 

habIlItate homes ownerl by low-income families. Unlike the Farmers 
H01!le grants, these HUD !?,'rants are not restri0i:ed solely to the elderl 

FInally, the State Housin.g' and Rural Development. Administrati~ [5I'hts are F~deral grants tl?-at are matched with Stfllte funds for use 
m ome repaIr anrl rehabilitation of low-income families. 

We kno:w that: t~ese programs have been effective in other locations 
We :ope tha~ thIS .IS the rule rather than the exception. Unfortunately' 18 ~ve rooehved Informfl,ti~>n that there are some rather severe prob~ 
ems In nort ern New MeXICO, Our hearing today is goin to take a 

closer look HIt ~hese prog-rams and hope that if such a prollem exists 
tWhe,. ~s a commIttee and Members of Congress, will be able to prevant 
- en recurrence elsewhere. v.l 

AnotI;er thing' we win be looking into today and pe-rha in th 
futl!re, ~s when these prQlblems come to liO'ht. as'thcw ha;e ~ th ,~ 
ves~I%:t~hn trjt Senator D<!meni'Ci trigge~d originaJly, What is h~~­
penUil"' en. s the ~orrecbve J?ro~ess working? Once someone rin i!a. bell, onc~ the ~udItors come In, IS someone following up ~ "What :: 
it 100k-sal1T t~h·es.I~ tha.~ even where auditors discover problems and 

f~l1~at a~:i;to~s!S re~':.r N~'!~~de!e;;;,~~'ri:h~~h~~Oili:~!~:~sh~ 
th t d w~t amounts to fraud or not. We pride ourselves with thinking 
~O':~ci:: o;~henFwd estRlbGIished an Inspector General in most of the 
th f " e era overnment. The Inspector General' t b 
to:: Qrce WIthIn. that !I'~ency.that is to self-police it. Yet. if th! a~di~ 
?tlhe;~iPtJ~e~~:~~7.s;Vfi~~~~~l~e~~~r~~tetJdleaytabre not talk~~ to ehach 
Ity som' 1-0. V someone In aut 01'-, eone In manllO'ement who IS gOI'nO' to do' 80m t1...· b . then h ~ b e IHlng a out. It 

tgOingW~ h!;~e';,':";~inas!::°;J,!~lh: ~!~~:f~i!~);a~~tb:nthtoind.~ i~ 00. way, 
Senator Do .... 

probI~ th.t ':~i;.t:~!d:d ~~e &:ab~~It~~ i~ Yili': a~!~loThif ~ a 
h~~h;!t:bo! it~re glad that you hn7e. done that. We look fO~~rd t~ 

Senator DOJ\{ENWT, Thnnk you M'r nh . 
I d · f I . .,. \ J ~Irman, . won. er L mlfl'ht viel rl to S{l t M 1 h . 

~~~~}~1~~marks. Then I wiIi m~kea :ine la~t, Pif ~h~t Ii: ~I~i;:~~~ 
STATEMENT BY SENATOR JOHN MELCHER 

Senator MELOHER. Thank you Pete and 1\""1' 'Ch . I first b f ." , 1.... aIrman . ecame aware 0 thIS set of circnmstances whe th' . 
met In e~ecut.ive sesFdon lune 30 of this'vear m n J e com~l1ttee 
Dr. La Vor's memo, which was dated Tune '27· '. t'h e the~ reVle~ed 

t ,In ' e executIve seSSIOn. 

1-'-' aazI . ------------------------------------.!..~~------~-~~- ------_._--
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I was quite shocked to learn that a very fine program, designed to help 
the elderly in their homes, was apparently being abused. I think there 
is, to put 'it in the vernacular, strong evidence of ripoffs of the elderly 
by contractors who are certainly not delivering fully in terms of labor 
and materials. 

My State of Montana is pretty much like New Mexico. I susped we 
could argue the better aspects of each State, but, frankly, I think they 
are pretty much alike. 

We depend on the Farmers Home Administration and the Depart­
ment of Agriculture programs in l\:fontana, just as you do here in 
New Mexico, and just as so many other States do throughQut the 
country. 

In States like New Mexico. and Montana where there are vast areas 
of big agricultural land but relatively few people, we look up to these 
agrioultural programs as being part and parcel of what we are doing 
about the livelihoods of peQple in QUI' States. Those of us who come 
from States like this have looked fo.r years at how to imprQve the 
programs :Eor rural areas. We chose the Farmers Home Administra­
tion to carry the ball for a great number of programs, including this 
one for the elderly, section 504. 

It is not WQr king very well in your area. The evidence isn't all in, 
and we can't, draw a final conclusion. 

But make no mistake, we want these programs to work. We are 
~etermined that they are going to work well.'They are modest fund­
Ing prQgrams. When you look at the total funding-I think it is 
around $24 million this year. That is a relatively small program Qut 
of the Federal budget. Nevertheless, it must work. It has got to work 
and it can't be allowed to falter or deteriorate. 

I hope this committee hearing today wiH lead to -a more effective 
504 program and strengthen related housing programs fur tihe elderly 
here in New Mexico and 1furough'Out the country. I am going to pay 
careful attention 00 just how these services 'are ooing delivered in my 
State of Montana. I have c'Onfidence in the Farmers Home Adminis­
tration. If they sustain 'a black eye in one program, that may jeup­
ar~ize their funding in a whole host of other programs. We could see 
gOIng d!ow~ the tube 10 years of hard work in Cong-ress trying to move 
up the dehvery .of programs thrat are needed for the rural areas. To 
have them go down the tube because of slipsih'Od m'anagement in a 
program such as 504, and have the rest 'Of FmHA suffer as a re..cmlt 
would be tragic. We want this program to work just as we want the 
rest 'Of the elderly programs to work 'and as much as we want all 
worthy Federal programs to work. We have got to get the dollar's 
wQrth Qut of them. 

STATEMENT BY SENATOR PETE V. DOMENICI 

Senator DOMENICI. Thank y'OU very much, John. 
Mr. Cha:irman, you know it is my pleasure to have both of y'On here. 

You have traveled 'a great distance to be with us~ to help with this 
program. Your 'COncern, both as legislators and taxpayers, about the 
efIiment, effective, and honest use Qf our Nation's resourees is -appre­
mated. 
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This is the first time the S t C . 
invest1gative hearing in NeweM,~' 'O%mlttei ron Agi~g has held an 
maladministration in Federal €I 100 exp ore pOSSIble abuse and 
in eff.orts to shape legislation -i~d~h!i I have played a:n activ~ role 
questIng appropriations regul t' . PdYou, ¥r. C~lV~rman, In re­
meet the needs of our 'Older Am a ~'Ons, jnh pubhc POhCles to better 
in the needs 'Of rural New Me ~rlCans. d Aa ve taken a speciWl interest 
th h XlCans an mericans I . ey -are t e poorest, most isolated and t d . n many cases, 
mon's needy ~nior citizens. ,mos un erserved of 'Our N a-

Our 'CommIttee has take.n oversight I' 'b'l' , 
of, aging programs. On April 11 'Of th,sponsl: 1 ltles tor a wide range 
thIS committee in Las Veo- N M IS year, I chmred hearings of 
"Rural ElderlY-The Isoi:t~d Pop e~. ?~hesefeLooarings were entitled 
the 80's." We heard testimon f u a. mn:, . k at SerVlices in 
State and looal officials and y rom sen~or CItIzens, service providers. 
i~g the hearing and the to:~pfuesentatlv~ of Federal agencies. Dur­
CItIzens raised questions about th rum w~~ch followed, several senior 
Government's programs in their C:u~l~~a IOn of some of the Federal 

An elderly resident from 0 f' , 
c?arged that t!lOse individuals'~:s;on~ibl ferYthso~ate~ commu~i!ies 
t,lOn program In Mora Count used h e or e ~~sIng rehablhta­
He :went on to state that the !lderl tfi: IJ.ro1$ra

l
!fi to play favorites." 

the unprovements made to h y m y be Ieved that many times 
rather than to those that ne~d:d ':i~! t~~hose who leas~ needed them, 
people who were prett well off ' e most. ~e saId he knew of 
very poor di~~'t receiv!any help. gettIng help, whIle those who were 

Another CItIzen complained f f ' . 
provided documentation to su 0 a~orItIsm or nepotism, and later 
elations emerging from that )por~ hIS rontention. As a result of rev­
to ask that he commence an inv~~r:ln1" afhroach~d Senator Chiles 
La VOl' were secured to car~y o!tI~h .1O~. ~ serylCes of Dr. Martin 

Over the last 4 months D L IS InvestIgatIOn. 
IHt va made numerous tri ~ t: N a V or ~nd other members of Our staff 
different towns, had conference:w ~eFco. They visited homes in thre~ 
and met with numerous senior ~~ edhral, State, and local officials 
served. . CI Izens W 0 felt they had heen poorly 

I beheve that the testimon b 
unfortunate pattern of sh d~ we are a out .to receive will reveal an 
sl!p~rvision, and possible fraul Th~k1f1anshI~, weak a!ld ineffective 
VICtIms are the old and ver . IS IS esp~Clally tragIC because the 
the face of these abuses Tl poor, many of whom are defenseless in 
government. Their Ii ht ey. ca,nnot cope w~th the complexities of 
wrong. It has to be c~r;ect:dnds a very strong SIgnal that something is 

It all boils down to maki~ 
are acnountable This hear' g ~ure that those who run the programs 
hope it ~vill help all of us t:~~de~~t accu~ulation of this process. I 
eXIst and where the responsibTt r a~ the problems and why they 
can be taken to insure there wo~~ 1 Ies. e. I?ust determine what steps 

I hope these hearings will be e a repet.ltIOn. 
able us, as national Ie islators t c~>nstr!1ctlve, ¥r. Chairman, and en­
apply specific solution~ to elimin~tldtehntIfy speCIfic problems; and then 

e em. 
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Mr. Chairman, some of our witnesses may have difficulty with Eng­
lish. We have an interpreter. I can help them translate ~o some, ~xtent. 
I hope they will all try to speak as much as they can m Enghsh b.e­
cause we do have Hmited time. You have to leave early. I hope y<!u wIll 
understand some them will have difficulty. I think this also pOInts to 
tho nature of the bilingual problems we have in terms of contracts. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
SenatOl: CHILES. Dr. Martin La Vor will be our first witness. . . 
Dr. La Vor, we are going to swear all our witnesses because thIS IS 

an investigative hearing. 

STATEMEl~T OF DR. MARTIN LA VOR, INVESTIGATOR/CONSULT­
ANT, U.S. SENATE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AGING 

Dr. LA -VOR., I would like to take this opportunity to extend. t?y ap­
preciation to you, Mr. Chairman, to you, Sena!or DomemCl, and 
Senator Melcher, and your personnel and commI,tt~e sta~s f?r the 
kindness and cooperation given me throughout thIS InvestIgatIOn. It 
is thoroughly appreciated and most helpful. to me. 

Mr. Chairman, I have prepared a detaIled report. 
Senator CHILES. Without objection, it will be made a part of the 

record. 
Dr. LA VOR. As well as the first investigative report ~ 
Senator CHILES. Yes.1 

•• 

Dr. LA VOR. So in the interest of time, let me summarIze the maJor 
findings of the investigation. 

We found the rehabilitation work done on most of the homes was 
generally incomplete and of poor quality. 

We found that the Farmers Home Administration-FmH.A-and 
Community Services Administration-CSA-guide!ines and pro.ce­
d'lres for awarding money and their methods for audIt and evaluatIOn 
are so loose th€'y almost invite misuse. . .. . 

We found elderly, low income, and handIcapped IndIVIduals tru~y 
need help in rehabiJitatinp: their homes, since a large numbe!' of theIr 
houses are substandard and ln need of repair. . 

We found that mismanag-ement of existing programs has resulted In 
the expenditure' of Federal and State funds to such an extent as to 
actually frustrate and eyen circumvent t~e objectives Congress estab­
lished to meet the pressmg needs of lOW-Income rural elderly. 

We found the rules~ regulat.ions, and procedures proII?-ul.goated by 
the national FmHA office were generally not adhered to In the three 
counties investigated. This breakdown in the manag.ement of the pro­
gram appears to be a major cause of the problems whICh were observed. 

We found duplication and overlap of programs. ' 
We found programs funded by different agencies and authorized by 

different laws being used for the same purposes and for the same 
tarp:et populations. 

We found money provided by one program is often used to do, 
redo or correct work that was already done by another. 

We found there is little, if any, coordination or communication be­
tween the Farmers Home Administration, the State Housing and 

1 Retained in committee flIes. 
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Rural Development Authority, the Department of Housing and Urban 
Developmer\ the Department of Health and Human Services the 
Department of Energy, the Office of Community Affairs in 'New 
}\iexico, or at the regional or Federal levels. 

We fOIDld evidence that nepotism was a factor in the awarding of 
grants and the selection of contractors. , 

We foun~ some evide~ce o~ possible. double bil~:~g for the same job. 
. Mr .. Ch~Irman, at ~hI~ pomt, a' brIef explanatIOn about how t.his 
lnvestlgatIOn evolved IS In order. In late May I came to New Mexico 
for the first time to examine the operation ~f several programs for 
the elderly. ~xcept for a courtesy call on the New Mexico State 
Agency o~ AlQng, I. made no contact with any of the agencies involved. 
I met prImarIly WIth ?ldp.~ ~ ew Mexicans, including John Haberl, 
:who was one of the semor CItIzens who spoke up at the April 11 hear­
mg. Mr .. Haber1,an~ others showed me several homes in the Las Vegas 
area wInch ha~ receIved Federal rehabilitation assistance grants. Each 
contact. seemed to lelad to ~nothe~. I visitel~ homes in other parts of 
San MIguel, Mora, and RIO ArrIba CountIes Ia,nd was surprised by 
what I found. Many homes were sm~n and in need of extensive repair 
even though they had alr-9ady receIved one or more home improve­
ment gr:1uts funde-d by the Federal Government. I took pictures of 
each home, and made notes about what I had observed. 

Mr. Chanman, I would like, to show the committee some slides made 
from photo~raphs I took of these houses so that you ma.y gain a bettpr 
understandIng of what I found. 

I would point out, }\fr. Chairman, that the owner of this home is 
not here today and has not been called as a witness. 

Let me first .des?ribe what this home received from grants. There 
was a weatherI~atIOn grant for $791.37. I have the purchase order 
h~re. The $791 goes for material only. They purchased three storm 
wI:r:dow~, o~e storm door, two solid core doors, 38 12-foot tin roof 
strIps, SIX pIeces of sheetrock, four rolls of insulation miscellaneous 
lumber, and other materials. ' 

Senator OlIIU<JS .. Is. this ·an "after" picture ~ 
Dr: LA VOR. TIus IS after these three grants that I am going to. 

desCrIbe to you. 
That was .the. weatherizatjon grant. 
They receIved a Farmers Home 504. grant. I will read from the 

ac~,ual file 'Yhat th,at grant was Supposed to do. 
Grant .wIlI repaIr roof, sheetrock in bedroom and kitchen replace 

two exrorlOr doors. replace three windows and one plate p:la;s." That 
grant was for $3,400. So we have $791.37 for the first grant, $3,400 
for the se~ond. That. home subsequently r€'ceived :a grant from the 
State l~?usmg 3;l~thorlty. I will read the official description from that 
grant. Grant.wIlI be used .to repair roof," which is la, duplicat.ion of 
the first on€'. I~sta}l new wmdows," which is a duplication of the first 
~a~t, wea~herI~atI?n grant. anfL the Farmers Home grant. "and door 
!11 kItchen, :vhlCh IS a duplication, "and install new electrical wiring 
III the dwellIng." 

At t~is P?int, Mr .. Chairman, we are going to sh.ow nine s1idf>~. I 
woul~ Just hke to pOInt out what we found. These were taken in July 
of thIS year after all the work was completed. 
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This [indicating] is the window that was put in in the weatheriza­
tion grant, the storm door. This is what you find throughout northern 
Ne.w ~1exico. The windows are put in solidly, but the house generally 
needs to be painted. That is not the problem. On this house there was 
electrical work put in. The contractor broke into the wall f1er? [i.ndi­
catipg]. When I ca,me 1 year after the work was done, thIS [IndIcat­
ing] area was still exposed. 

These nndicatingJ are two more windows in the back that were not 
done by the weatherization. You can see the difference. There are bet­
ter slides coming up. 

One of the reasons this house was fixed was that the roof leaked. 
The roof was repaired and this [indicating] is still open. Right here 
[indicating] you can see through. That [indicating] is sunlight. Right 
here [indicating] is sunlight. The house is still open. The owner of 
the home told me that the roof leaked worse now than before they 
started working. 

This [indicating] just shows you what the condition of the wall is. 
This [indicating] door was supposed to have been replaced and it 

was not. There is so much wind coming in that they ha.ve actually used 
cardboard for insulation at this point. 

Here [indicating] is a window put in by the contractor. You can see 
here an example of how it is just kept open. Also the k' of was sup­
posed to have been fixed. The 'wood up there is rotting. There are no 
soffits on the roof and there is no insulation. Also, when it rains, the 
water comes down and comes through the window. 

The next slide, this is the drainpipe coming from the sink. The 
water just comes out and goes right into the ground. 

The contractor put these steps up. There is no railing. This is the 
steps. The purpose of the grant is to make homes safe and sanitary. 

The total that this house received was $7,691.37. There are many 
other examples, but this house is a reflection of the others and they will 
be presented later on in the morning as the witnesses seek to give their 
testimony. 

Mr. Chairman, getting back to how the investigation evolved, after 
meeting with senior citizens and visiting approximately 10 homes, I 
drove to Villanueva and had an unscheduled meeting with Pete Gal­
legos, Sr., who is a leader of senior citizen activities in San :Miguel 
County. During a lengthy conversation, in which many senior activi­
ties were discussed, I just happened to ask him whether any of the 
nearby homes had received rehabilitation grants from the Farmers 
Home Administration. Mr. Gallegos directed me to four homes which 
were within a few hundred yards of the general store he owns in the 
center of town. I found a striking difference betw(len these homes and 
those I had observed earlier. The contrast was overwhelming because 
these homes were beautifullY done and had received more and better 
work than anything I had se·en before or since. Mr. Chairman, I would 
like to show some additional slides which will demonstrate what was 
done to these homes for their $5,000 grants. 

There are four slides of this home. This [indicating] is the outside. 
You can see the condition of the house was much better than most you 
will see later. They put on an entire new tin roof. 

You can just go through the four slides. I will read what this house 
received. Installed a complete new tin roof, new kitchen cabinets, new 
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panel i,n several rooms, a new water heater, a new bathroom heater, two 
new WIndows, two new storm doors. They also had 10 to 15 sheets of 
sheetrock left over. The owner claimed that she still had money left 
over after all this work was done. 

The next. home, there are three slides. This home, installed a com­
plete ~e~ tIn roof, two s~orm doors, a new cement floor in the kitchen 
and dlnmg room, the entIre house was carpeted. Thr"Y also installed a 
new water he~ter, and a ne-w: sink and a vanity. Finally, a cabinetmaker 
made a mag~Ificent set of kItchen cabinets and he also hung the screen 
doors. In thIS home the owner also claimed to have had money left 
over. 
Th?s~ [indicati~gJ are the kitchen cabinets. 
Th~s IS the outsIde of the next home. This home received a complete 

new tIn roo~, the entire ceiling in the ho~se was replaced: New cement 
f!oor was laId th~o?ghout the house and It was covered WIth new vinyl 
hnoleu~. In addItIon, two rooms were paneled, a new space heater was 
placed In t~e bedroom, ~hree stor~ doors, and four windows were 
I~stal~ed .. Fmally, the kItchen reCeIved a new light and a double 
kItchen SInk. The owner of this home also claimed to have money left 
over. 

The next set. This is the fourth home I visited in Villanueva. The 
!irs~ ~hree were done by the borrower method. In other words, the 
IndIVIduals wh? received the money did the work themselves with 
somebody to do It. 
o Senator POME~IGI. In other words, there was no contractor involved 
In completIng thIS work ~ 

Dr .. LA VOR. Right, and all the money supposedly went just for 
materIals. 

Senator DOMENICI. Thank you. 
Dr. LA VOR. This [indica£ing] home was done by a contractor It 

~vas the sa~e contractor who did the first home that I showed you. 
The only thmg that was done on this home for $5,000, the next slide, 
pl~~se, !Vas a tII~ roof was added to part of the roof. I was told that the 
ceIlm~ In the kItchen was plaste,red and the house was rewired. That 
was for a total of $5,000. 

So that was the contrast that I saw. 
It was not ~ll1til I le~t Villanueva that I learned that each of the 

four homes I Just descrIbed belonged to relatives of Mr. Gallegos who 
had sent ~e to them. The family relationship was further compli~ated 
:vhen I discovered one of these homeowners was the grandmother and 
It was th~ last home that I showed you, was the grandmother of Rob­
ert ::M:adnd, ~n employee of the State Housing and Rural Develop­
ment AuthorIty. ';Vho was ~or~ing in the county FmHA office in IJas 
Vegas .. Mr. :Ma,drid had prmClpal staff responsibility for dispensing 
funds l~ Mora and San Miguel Counties. In addition, FmHA County 
Supe~~s?r Robm~to M~ese, delegated to Mr. Madrid the primary re­
spons~blhty for managmg the FmHA section 504 program in those 
counties as well. Later I learned he had developed at least 11 section 
504 contracts an~ an un.determin<:>d number of State housing authority 
contracts that ~lls. COUSIn, Pete Gallegos, Jr., received. Mr. Gallegos, 
~r .• was the prmClpal partner in the P. & P. Construction Co. and h~ 
IS t~e son of Pete qallegos, Sr., from Villanueva. His brother, Etimio 
Gallegos, was untIl several months ago, the director of the Sierra y 
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Llanos Community A.ction Agency, and the man responsible for dis­
pensing the weatherizatjon funds in San :Miguel, Mora, and Colfax 
Counties. 

In addition to these relations, I learned that FmHA applications, 
which are supposed to be processed in the order that they are rR­
ceived, were actually packaged and promoted by Mr. Madrid out of 
turn on a regular basis. 

In early June, I returned to Washington and drafted my first. in­
vestigative memorandum, which was submitted to the committee on 
June 27, 1980. Based upon my initial findings, the committee met and 
unanimously issued subpenas requesting information from the P. & P~ 
Construction Co., the First National Bank of Las Vegas, which ad­
ministers a number of the "supervised bank accounts" under the sec­
tio~ ~·04 program, and the Sierra y Llanos Community Action Agency, 
which administered the Department of Energy's weatherization pro­
gram until a few months ago. In addition, records were requested and 
received from the FmHA and the State Housing and Rural Develop­
ment Authority. 

I subsequently made three additional trips to New Mexico, visited 
more homes, and had an opportlmity to ·meet with State and local em­
ployees of the agencies involved, to explore with them, the problems 
I had detected. 

Mr. Chairman, I visited approximately 20 homes in the area of 
northern New Mexico. These are the counties which receive 90 per­
cent of the section 504 money and almost all of the State housing and 
rural development authority funding in the State. Every home I 
visited, regardless of the funding agency, with the exception of those 
homes of the .family members that I just showed you in Villanueva, 
had poor or Incomplete work. In every case, there was a failure to 
complete the work described in the development plan and, in most 
cases, a failure to meet State building code requirements. 

The thrust of section 504 is to do work designed to make homes safe 
and sanitary. Judging from the homes this investigation touched, 
and those evaluated oy the Department of Agriculture's Inspector 
General, the fundamental intent of Congress was not achieved. 

As I gaine4 access to additional files, I had an opportunity to com­
pare homes that were funded by more than one agency. My wider 
access to official files opened a new avenue in the investigation that 
had not previously been anticipated. 

By cross-referencing the files, I djscovered that a number of the 
homes had receive<1" more than one grant. In some cases, I found evi­
dence that homes had received trrants from one or more agencies to 
~lo the same basic wor!t. While ~g(mcies may argue that "piggybacking" 
18 a way of "leverag-Ing" addltlonal funds from other sources, it ap­
p~ared that they were using the resonrces of the other agencies to 
hIde or cover up poor workmanship done under their own auspices. 
Instead of requiring a contractor to correct shoddy or incomplete work 
or take legal action to recover funds, the agencies tended to seek addi­
tional fnnds from another source to quiet complaints. 

Mr. Chairman, it is difficult to specifically pinpoint why these prob­
lems exist. The explanation most often heara is that these programs 
are so small that they are not carefully monitored. 
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The section 504 program administered by FmHA spends, as Sen­
ator Melcher said, only $24 million a year nationally. Of that, 
approximately $500,000.was spent in N~w Me~ico du~ing t~e fiscal 
year 1980, 90 percent of It went to Mora, ~an MIguel, RIO ArrIba, and 
Taos Counties. 

Since it is small when compared to other programs administered 
by that agency, FmHA, it seems to just fall through the cracks. To 
iliustrate how low a priority the Department of Agriculture places 
on the 504 program, you only have to look at the number of audits 
done on it. 

DurinO' the last 3 veal'S, there have been or..ly three section 504 audits 
done nationally, tliroughout the entire country. All three we~e. i? 
northern New Mexico. None of the three was planned. They were InItl­
a;ted in response to a newspaper expose and a complaint by a grant 
recipient. 

The responsibility for many of the problems found in New Mexico 
must be placed on.~e shoulders of the directors of th~ State and l~a~ 
agencies who admlnlster them. State and local supervIsors have faIled 
to exert adequate leadership in the administration of rural housing 
programs, particularlY the section 504 progra.m. .., 

Mr. Chairman, one of the most Irustratmg aspects of thIS InvestIga­
tion was the discovery that the Inspector General's Office of the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture had already conducted three audits in Rio 
Arriba, Mora, and San Miguel Counties. These audits fou.nd many of 
the same problems that we have detected. One of these audIts was com-
pleted 6,months before .1 first came to New Mextco. . 

In spIte of the findIngs of these three audIts and the volumInous 
backup material which accompanies each-Mr. Chairman, this is the 
actual backup material from the auditors that they found in this 
State-in spite of the findings of the three audits and the voluminous 
backup material which accompanies each, few actions appear 1:? have 
been taken to correct the basic defects of the program and no dIscern­
ible effort was made to locate and correct these homes which had re­
ceived less than they were entitled. 

The primary exceptions to this rule were those homes where the 
seniors themselves or their family members, were extremely vO<?al. 
In Rio Arriba County, attention was given to the four homes which 
were featured in a series of articles by the Rio Grande Sun. 

Even though an intense effort was made by FmHA to correct the 
four houses in Rio Arriba County, it is my understanding that two of 
them have still not been completed, and that is almost 1 year ago. 

Mr. Chairman, as I mentioned at the beginning of my remarks, I 
have a le.ngthy memorandum. It will be made as part of the record and 
I would proceed as you suggested. 

Senator CHILES. Senator Domenici. 
Senator DOMENIOI. Mr. Chairman, I am aware that Dr. La VOl' will 

be here for the remainder of the hearing. From my standpoint, I want 
to call him back during the day for additional questions. 

I will ask one or two now. 
I understand testimony concerning six different homes will be heard 

tod~"Y by people owning them. Has there been an 3.ppraisal of what the 
value of the work actually is from an outside appraiser's standpoint ~ 

--
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Dr. LA VOR. Y eJS ~ the way we will present each of th~ six homes, I 
will read the development plan from the agency. ~ e wII~ show wJ;at 
was done throuo-h slides and I will read from the estImator s evaluatIOn 
of what he felt the work, including lab?r, was worth. .. . 

Senator DOMENIOL Second, you indlCate you have VISIted approxI­
mately 20 homes, including the 4 in Villanueva. These seemed to have 
received their money's worth, although not completed by contractors. 
How did you find the other 20 homes you visited? 

Dr. LA VOR. As I said the first weekend I came into New Mexico, I 
didn't speak to any agencies. As a matter of fact,. I didn't know what 
section 504 was that weekend. I was merely ,lookmg at programs for 
the eldedy in general. . 

I met with so,me senior citizens from New Mexico and I just asked 
them what was happening and they started complaining. I said, "Can 
I see what you are talking about~" J;hey took me to a home.. " 

I was surprised and I took some pIctures and then they saId, Let us 
take you to another home." I said, "Are there any other examples of 
this~" They took me to, I think, four or five homes that day. 

Then I kept saying to the person who was driving me around, 
"There have to be other things that are going on in this area. Who are 
some of the senior citizen leaders~" Pete. Gallegos, Sr.'s name came 
up. I said "Where does he live~" 

Senator DOMENIOI. To make it brief then, you do not know whether 
the condition of the remaining homes which were repaired, were ex­
emplified by these 20 ~ 

Dr. LA VOR. Except-that was the first trip and that is how I got 
into it. I came back a second time. I had official lists from the agencies 
and all I did was pick homes at random. 1 pointed to a home and I said, 
"Let's go see this." 

Senator DOMENICI. How many of the 20 are derived in this manner ~ 
Dr. LA VOR. Fourteen. I also picked homes in Rio Arriba County 

that were not done by the Farmers IIome order . .! ~pecific~lly picked 
homes that were done several years ago to see If It was Just a new 
phenomenon that existed today, or it was a pattern from day No. 1. 

Senator DOMENICI. Thank you, ~ir. Chairman. 
Senator CHILES. John. 
Senator MELCHER. No questions. 
Senator CHILEs. Would you tell me, Doctor, when you finally got a 

chance to see this audit-and you told me you didn't know the audits 
were being done at the time you made the investigation-was it clear 
from the fact of the audit report itself thb extent of what the problems 
were here~ 

Dr. LA VOR. Audits are generally very bland because they are 
cleansed down, but in these audits there was no question they had found 
everything we had found through our investigation. 

But it wasn't until we called down to the Inspector General's Office 
that we asked for the backup material, that we were stunned, because 
there is more information in the backup material, in such detail, and 
it's far more detailed than I had the time or the opportlmity to dis­
cover. 

Senator CHILEs. Do you know what happened as a result of the au­
dits~ What action, if any, had been taken by Farmers Home, USDA, 
the Inspector General of the USDA. ~ 
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Dr. LA VOR. As I said and as you will see this morning, when rela­
tives are the grantees or the grantees become very vocal, then there is 
some action taken. The first house I showed you is the home of a wo­
man who never complained. So, the home wasn't repaired. 

In Rio Arriba County, the four homes that were cited in the order 
have received an unbelievable a:;:::.:.\lJ.nt of 3ttention. In fact, somebody 
from the State office spent almost 21,6 months up there just monitoring 
those three homes. He made at least 23 inspections on each one of them, 
and he actually helped the builder to complete some of the work on 
one of the homes. That was because the Rio Grande Sun was continu­
ously investigating, so there vras some pressure. 

The homes that nobody pointed to, or they didn't receive complaints 
on, apparently nothing has ever been done. 

Senator CHILES. As a result of the audits, were there any real man­
agement changes ~ 

Dr. ~A V?R. There were a few but I would suggest they are mini­
mal. It Just Isn't apparent to us, yet, that there are substantive changes 
in the program. 

Senator CHILES. All right, I suppose that we will go on now and put 
on our next panel. 

Thank you, Doctor. 
Our next panel will consist of individuals and people that were con­

cerned with some of the housing in Mora and San Miguel Counties. I 
will ask them to all come up. I suppose we will hav\~ them all here at 
one time. Part will sit at the table and the rest will have to stand be­
hind them. 

If Mrs. Frank Maestas would come up, Roberto Maese, Mrs. Steven 
Handy, Robert. Madrid, Pete Gallegos, Lee Pacheco, Steven Handy. 

Do you all understand English ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. Part ways. 
Senator CHILES. I am going to ask you to stand and be sworn, if you 

would, please. 
Do eac~ of :yC!u swear the testimony you are about to give before 

the commIttee wIll b€', the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 
truth, so help you God ~ 

Dr. LA VOR. Mr. Chairman, the procedure we would like to follow 
with each of the panel is, I will introduce by reading what they re­
C(~ivecl and then show you what we found ~ with the exception of this 
panp,L I am going to read from the memo by the count.y supervisors. 

This is the home of lVIrs. Maestas. The Farmers Home narrative 
says: 

The grant will replace the entire roof on dwelling, stucco cracks around win­
dows and doors. Living room will he l'epaire-o 'lnd linolenm will he plaC'ed on the 
bathroom floor, as it is presE'ntly rough wood floor. Paneling and insulation will 
be installed on east and south wan in living room. Three new locks and doors 
will be installed. These factors will bring dwelling to decent and safe and 
sanitary living conditions. 

The total for this !!'rant was $5,000. 
Renator OHII']l1S. These, a:!rain, are aU after pictures ~ 
Dr. LA VOR. These are all-these pictures were taken in June of this 

year, after all of the work was done. Rather than tell you what I 
found, Mr. Chairman, I am going to read a report from Mr. Maese, 
the county supervisor, that was written September 19 of this year. 

79-347 0 - 81 - 2 
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What he does is he describes that Vernon Stoddard was supposed to 
have been the contractor. Mr. Stoddard was busy and Robert Madrid 
arranged for Pete Gallegos of P. & P. Construction to do the work. 

I am going to read the evaluations that Mr. Maese wrote. Also 
present when Mr. ~Iaese inspected this house was Bill Horton and 
John 1\100re, who were inspectors from the Department of Agriculture 
Inspector General's Office and Robert Madrid, who is on the panel. 

I am reading from Mr. Maese's letter. 
Senato.r DOMENICI. 1\£1'. ChairrrJ.an, could I ask a question first? 
Senator CHILES. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. Dr. La VOl', you talk about Stoddard Construc­

tion not havino- the ability to do the work, so P. & P. does it. My un­
derstanding otthis program is that the owner and a c~mtrac~or of t.he 
owner's choosing enter into an agre~ment. ~he money IS put In a bank. 
The money is drawn down for the Job by sIgnature of the owne.r and 
cosignature of a Farmers Home employee. 

How can we have two oontractors if we already have 'a contract 
with another contractor to do the work? . 

Dr. LA VOR. I was trying, in the interests of time, to sho~ut It. 
Let me go back to the first page of Mr. Maese's letter and I thInk you 
will have your explanation. . 

Senator DOMENICI. Wait a minute now. Is there a contract SIgned 
between the owner and the Stoddard Construc~ion Co.? 

Dr. LA VOR. I don't think in this case there was. 
Senator Do~rENICI. Will we find out? 
Dr. LA VOR. That's why they are all here. 
Senator DOMENICI. Go ahead. 
Dr. LA VOR. I will read from his letter verbatim. 
The original bid was to replace the roof,. replace ext~rior doors, repair the 

deteriorated floor in one room, and weatherIze the dwellmg: .., 
She stated she had been in the office on several occaSIOns and explamed 

she needed assistance to contact Mr. Stoddard, the contractor, to do the w?rk 
on the roof. She stated that Mr. Madrid told her that Mr. Stoddard was bUIld­
ing homes and it would be some time before he could do work on ~er house. She 
asked if anyone else was available to do the type of work, as It had become 
extremely hazardous to her and her family. 

As ,an aside, Mr. Chairman, the roof had collapsed during a storm. 
She stated that within a few days, Mr. Madrid ~rought Pete Galleg~s 

of P. & P. Construction and work was started immedIately. I asked her If 
there had been any changes made in the development of the plan and w~ether 
or not she had been consulted in the change of contractors and she saId she 
had not. h . ld d 

She said she was confident the FmHA could find someone ~ 0 wou 0 a 
good job. I asked her if the development plan was discussed ~lth her and the 
contractor and she said it had not and she trusted the origUlal development 
would be done. 

Then he goes on describing the house. 
The roof facing the street was not replaced. It was only c?ated with two coats 

of aluminum paint. The tin on the southwest and north sIdes of the roof was 
removed J.lnd one-half inch plywood decking was nailed to the old rafters. The 
old rafters where the eaves were, were approximately 6 feet from the wall, 

or 6 inches from the wall. I can't make it out on this. 
Rolled roofing was installed over the plywood decking on the west roof. The 

rafters were nailed down fiat, and this was to the old roof instead of the edge, 
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as it should be, in order to give support to the roof. The exterior doors which 
were installed, were not solid core. They were hollow core and filled with saw­
dust inside. They were hung on the old frames and the west doors have already 
fallen off the hinges once. They were installed with very small screws. . 

Mr. Moore and Mr. Horton asked me to estimate the amount of money in 
materials that went into this project and on a rough calculation I have esti­
mated about $800 worth of materials with current prices. 

Mrs. Maestas explained she was told the original bid was for $4 500 includ­
ing labor and materials. She stated that a day or so later, after ~he got the 
contract, she was told to sign a $500 check for contingencies over to Pete Gallegos for the labor. 

In e~aluating this project, I feel the inspection on this job was negligent. 
There IS not sufficient work for the amount of money given to the contractor 
for the job. The development plans were never revised to refiect the new con­
tr~c~. New estim~t~s were not received. The job is not complete and it does not 
elImmate the -"{lstmg health hazards. 

The most udngeroUs problem in this house is the vent for the hot water 
heater, which is LP gas, pushed to one side, thus disconnecting it from the 
heater instead of cutting a hole in the eave of the roof and leaving the vent in the same place. 

Mrs. Maestas says she realized she was using the water heater at her own 
risk and I recollllllended she contact the gas company which supplies LP gas 
to properly install ventilation. , 

It is my opinion that this job is not complete. It is hazardous to the family 
and more so than prior to the construction being started. 

!in:ally, ~r. Ohairman, there is a little more and I am going to 
~kip It. I WIll read to you from the estimator's report. This is an 
Independent estim,ator who went to this house last week. 

He estimated that the quality of materials and workmanship on 
the foregoing components is fair to good and he wrote a note. 

The narrative that was provided indicates the roof on the entire dwelling was 
to be replaced. Rolled rOOfing was installed on the lower Pitched portion of the 
house. The main portion of the house covered by the corrugated steel rOOfing 
appeared to only have been painted. 

There is no evidence that the linoleum was placed in the bathroom nor that 
paneli~g or insulation were instaUed in the living room, as called for in the narratIve. 

fhe estimator felt, that including materials land labor, the cost on 
thIS house :was $1,02? at t?day's cos~, out of the $5,000 grant. 

Mr. Chau1nan, b~Iefly, If we can Just go through these slides then 
we ea;l1 go to the WItnesses. We ·can go tlirough it quickly. ' 
. ~IS ~s the ro<?f ~hat was tarred and it was tarred back here, too 

rlndIC~tmgJ. ThIS ~s one of the new dQors that was replaced. This 
IS, agam, another pICture of that door. 

~his is a pi~t~re not taken by me. This was taken last week by the 
est~matol': ~IS IS the roof that was simply painted with alumInum 
pa~nt. 'lUll~ IS the roo! that was tarred. But this is the major problem. 
~lllS vent IS the heatIng vent, and this house is totally unsafe at this 
tl!m~ .. T~at vent shoul~ have been a~cho;red and should be straigillt up. 

ThIS, IS. not a good pICtl}re, but thIS 'WIll show you the existing roof. 
The eXIstmg roof on one sI~e ~here the tarpaper is placed, lh-inch ply­
wood, was place~ 011 the: eXlstmg roof and tarpaper over it. 

This, Mr. ChaIrman, IS the door. This shows the leakino- in the house 
where the roof was leaking, and the next one shows the linoleum wasn't placed. 

That is my presentation. 
Senator CHILES. Senator Domenici. 
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Senator DOMENICI. Are you the county supervIsor for Farmers 
Home Administration in Las Vegas ~ 

Thfr. MAESE. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. How long have you been the supervisor~ 
Mr. MAESE. I was in Las Vegas, a supervisor from 1970 to 1976, 

when I was transferred to Espanola; and then I was brought back in 
October 1978, back to Las Vegas. 

Senator DOMENICI. Do I understand correctly, Mr. Maese, you wrote 
the letter. from which Dr. La Vor just read, dated September 19 ~ 

Mr. MAESE. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICr. I have the Iletter in front of me and it has your 

nwme as county supervisor. 
Mr. MAESE. Yes; it was written on his request that he wanted a 

report and we met with hi!m over there at the district office. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Maese, weren't you tlhe supervisor of the area 

where this home is located ~ Isn't it right there in your area? 
Mr. ::MAESE. Yes, sir. \ 
Senator DOMENICI. How did the $5,000 get paid out, if this kind of 

work was ,done and you are the supervisor? Did you just find out on 
September 19 that it was done wrong? 

Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir, I have two assistants that were working tilider 
me. One of them was Steve Handy, and the other one was a housing 
employee of tha State, Robert Madrid, and they had authority to make 
inspections and Steve had authority to countersign checks. 

Senator DOMENICI. You are telling our committee that as counLY 
supervisor you had no responsibility to see whether this was being done 
properlY? ' 

Mr. MAESE. No, sir, I didn't say that. I said they were under me 
and they were capable oi doing the work. 'rhey had been trained, and 
I did not check every job they inspected, Mr. Domemci. I would in­
spect some of the reports and the reports seemed adequate and I had 
not had any complaints, so I couldn't follow up on complaints, which 
I didn't have. 

Senator DOl\IENICI. Is Steve Handy here ~ 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. IIandy, what was your role in San Miguel 

County during the period of time this house was remodeled and the 
$5,000 paid out ~ 

Mr. HANDY. I worked mostly on 502 housing loans. 
Senator DO.l\fENICI. So you didn't have anything to do with the 

504 program? 
Mr. HANDY. I did some inspections oecasionally. 
Senator DOl\fENIOI. Are you telling the committee you inspected this 

house? 
Mr. HANDY. Pardon me? 
Senator DOME:NICI. Did you inspect this house or not ~ 
~fr. HANDY. I believe so: 
Senator DOMENICI. Your former boss is sitting right by you. lie 

was in charge. You just heard him tell the committee what he found. 
How could you have countersigned checks paying out $5,000 for this 
kind oi work ~ 

Mr. HANDY. Well. sir, the instructions for grants reads, the house 
cannot be made totally safe and sanitary, the grant will not be made. 

------~------:--------------------.-.--~---
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That house was in pretty bad shape. I don't think at that time that 
$5,000 would have made that house totally safe, decent, and sanitary. 

The roof structure probably would have needed all to be replaced. 
That's rafters and the whole works. 

Senator DOl\IENICI. vVait a m:inute. vVe are going from one to one 
here and none of you wants to accept the blame for this. 

Now you are telling the committee the loan grant shouldn't have 
been made from the beginning, because they couldn't have completely 
repaired it with $5,000? Is that what you are telling us? 

Mr. HANDY. vVell, if you go by the instructions, that is what I am 
telling you. 

Senator DOl\fENICI. So as an inspector, charged with seeing whether 
the work contracted for was done, it is your testimony that you would 
approve the issuance of the fun $5,000 even if the work wasn't done 
properly, because the $5,000 could not have made the house safe any­
way? Is that what, you are telling us? 

Mr. HANDY. No. 
Senator DOMENICI. What are you telling us then ~ . 
Mr .. HANDY. I was not properly trained on rehabilitating houses, so 

I have no idea how much money in labor and any materials went into 
that house. I didn't do the development plan. I made no inspection-I 
made one inspection. 

Senator CHILES. I am looking at an inspection report in which you 
state, and I guess this is in your handwriting, "All work is completed 
according to the development plan." Is that correct? 

Mr. HANDY. That's my report., 
Senat.or OHILES. Take a look at that. It says, "100 percent complete?" 
Mr. HANDY. Right. 
Senator CHILES. "All work done according to the development plan." 

Is that your report, your handwriting, your signature? 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator CHILES. The development plan said all the roof was going to 

be replaced. Was it? 
Mr. HANDY. No, sir. 
Senator OHILES. Do you have to be trained to know whether or not 

the roof was replaced? You knew whether the roof was replaced or 
not, didn't you ~ 

Mr. HANDY. Yes, the part of it that was. 
Senator CHILES. So that had nothing to do with your training ~ 
Mr. HANDY. No; it could be that there was another development 

plan or something like this going about that time, that is no longer 
there in the file. 
~at happened on ma~y of these ~ld houses is when they started 

workmg on them they ran Into more thlll~S, so they claimed, than what 
they could do, what they felt they could do originally. This accounted 
for a lot of the problems we have. 

Senator OIllLES. Do you see anything they ran into there that they 
couldn't have done? The roof looks like it's got to be one of the most 
important things on that, and they didn't replace the roof. 

We now see that estimators say, one of them said $800. I think that's 
what ~fr. Maese said, $800. The other guy says, "Work and labor, 
$1,200." The development plan called for replacement of the floor in 
the bathroom and that wasn't done. 
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Mr. HANDY. [No response.] . . . . 
Senator DOMENlor. Mr. Maese, who l~ resp'Onslbl~ to determme If 

the inspectors, such as Mr. Handy, are tramed for the Job ~ 
Mr. MAESE. The supervisor in charge, plumb up to the State level. 
Senator DOMENICI. Who was responsible for Mr. Handy ~ He says he 

isn't trained. 
Mr. MAESE. I was immediately responsible for him. 
Senator DOMENICI. How did you hire him ~ A field inspector, who 

doesn't know how to inspect. How did that happen ~ 
Mr. M.4..ESE. He was 'already in my office when I was transferred back 

up there to Last Vegas, Mr. Domenici. He ca.me there about 1 year be­
fore I was transferred hack. 

Senator DOMENICI. Who else did inspections' before the moneys were 
spent up in that county, Mr. Maese~ Who was the other one~ Mr. 
Handy just testified a little bit. Who was the other person ~ 

Mr. MAESE. I did some of them and, also, Robert Madrid, our State 
employee, did some of them. 

Senator DOMENICI. Is Robert Madrid here ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Madrid, did you ever inspect that house we 

just saw~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. 1Vho signed or cosigned the checks so the money 

could be paid out that belonged to this lady ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Mr. Handy. 
Senator DOMENICI. You didn't cosign these ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator DOl\fENICI. When did you inspect it ~ 
Mr. MADRID. When they siJarted to put the back roof on. . . 
Senator DOMENlcr. Do you agree with Mr. Handy and Mr. Maese, 

who has now gone out and looked at it, that the house was not repaired 
properly~ 

Mr. MADRID. In my opinion, sir, I thought it was repaired properly. 
Senator DOMENICI. You thought it was repaired properly ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENrcr. Have you seen the letter the supervisor of the 

area wrote on September 19, which we just referred to~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. I have so many questions, but I will just take a 

couple more. . . . . 
Mr. Madrid. how was P. & P. selected for thIS Job when the orlgmal 

contract called for Stoddard Construction Co. ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Stoddard was -building a home 'and could not get out 

there. Mrs. Maestas asked me if I could get another contractor out 
there, so I asked P. & P. to go talk to her. . _... 

Senator DOMENICI. Was P. & P. already domg rehaJbIfltatlOn work 
up there when you sent them to Mrs. Maest?-S ~ 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. As a matter of faet, a number of houses that 

Internal Audit has looked at. were done by P. & P., and most of them 
have not been done correctly, isn't that right ~ 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
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Senator DOMENICI. Why did you send a contractor who was not 
doing quality work up there to fix her house ~ 

Mr. MADRID. Sir, at the time all those houses, to me, looked pretty 
good. 

Senator DOMENICI. What was your training in inspecting homes to 
see if they complied with codes and contracts ~ 

Mr. MADRID. I just trained out in the field, just to look /at construc­tion. 
Senator DOlVIENICI. On many of these homes, you were the one who 

made the final inspections and signed off on the checks, isn't that 
right~ 

Mr. MADRID. I make the inspe0tions, but I did not sign off on the 
checks. . , 

Senator DOMENICI. But you had to give the final word on whether 
they were done right or not'~ 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. It is your testimony before this committee that 

the ones you inspected were done properly, according to the develop­
ment plan~ 

Mr. MADRID. Yes. sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Is P. & P. Oonstruction Co., owned by somebody 

that is related to you ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMEN!Cl. Who is that ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Pete Gallegos. 
Senator DOMENlcr. How is he related to you ~ 
Mr. MADRID. He is a C()IUsin. 
Senator DOMENICI. Is he a licensed contractor ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
:Senator DOMENICI. 'What is the name of his license ~ 
Mr. MADRID. It is P. & P. Construction. 
Senator DOMENICI. P. & P. Construction doesn't exist anymore, does it ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir, to my understanding, no. 
Senator DOMENICI. Why not ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I think the license was changed. 
Senator DOMENICI. 'Vas the license changed or was it revoked ~ 
Mr. MADRID. It is changed. I don't know if it was revoked or not, sir. 
Senator DOMENIOI. Did Farmers Home recently disbar P. & P. from 

doing construction work ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Do you think they were disbarred for doing good work~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENlcr. Why do you think they were ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Shoddy work, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. And you were inspecting their work as it pro­

ceeded, weren't you ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. So apparently you thought it was good work but 

when State inspectors finally got around to looking at it, they dis­
barred them because of poor work; isn't that correct ~ 
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Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. How did you decide who was to get grants up 

there in those counties ~ That was part of your job, wasn't it ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Was in on a first-come-first-served basis ~ 
Mr. MADRID. We would have a work organization meeting at the end 

of the month and we would go through the applications. 
Senator DOMENICI. That didn't answer my question. The regula­

tions said these were to be done on a first-come-first-served basis. TIl(' 
first applicant in~ if they qualified, got the grant. 

Now I am askmg you whether or not you followed that procedure, 
or did you select people of your own choosing to get grants ~ '. 

Mr. MADRID. No, sir, I didn't select anybody. As people came In, a 
lot of people came in and talked tc me about processing their grants. 

Senator DOMENICI. How many homes are there in the little village 
of Villanueva, N. Mex. ~ 

Mr. MADRID. I would say, maybe, about 200. 
Senator DOMENICI. How many are there in the rural homes, in the 

counties of San J\lIiguel and Mora ~ Do you have a guess ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir, I have no guess. 
Senator DOMENICI. Was it a coincidence that four of your relatives 

got grants in Villanueva ~ How did that happen ~ 
Mr. MADRID. They applied, sir, for grants. 
Senator DOMENICI. This was on a first-come-first-served basis, that 

they happened to get them, is that right ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Why didn't they use a contractor ~ 
Mr. MADRID. They wanted their sons to do the work, or do it 

themselves. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did you inspect their work ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Some of it, sir. 
Senator DOMENICr. Did YOU think it was done differently than those 

homes done by P. & P. Construction Co. ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. How was it different ~ 
Mr. MADRID. There is no labor involved in any of these houses, any 

labor paid out. 
Senator DOMENICI. I don't mean the cost. I mean the quality of the 

work. 
Are you telling this committee the quality of the work that P. & P. 

did was the same as the work you saw on four relatives' homes ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. And you say that, in spite of the pictures we've 

seen here today ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Which is it ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I guess the pictures we've seen, it was shoddy work, sir. 
Senator D01\IENICI. I don't have anything additional for the time 

being, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator MELCHER. Mr. Handy, what are you paid ~ 
Mr. HANDY. Right now ~ 
Senator MELOHER. Yes. 

,~-, ~------~-----------------~-
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Mr. lliNDY. GS-11. 
Senator MELOHER. What is that per year? 
Mr. HANDY. $20,000. 
Senator MELOHER. $20,000. 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator MELOHER. You are not qualified to make these inspections ~ 
Mr. HANDY. I am now. 
Senator MELOHER. You are now. How did you get qualified ~ 
Mr. HANDY. By looking at all of these, on-the-job training. 
Senator MELOHER. $20,000 for on-the-job training~ 
J\lIr. HANDY. I wasn't paid $20,000 at that time. It has been very recent. 
Senator MELCHER. Are you a county supervisor now ~ 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator l\fELOHER. Which county are you in now ~_ 
Mr. HANDY. McKinley. 
Senator MELOHER. Do you have any 504 ~ 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator MELCHER. Mr. Madrid, you say that you made these inspec­

tions and you said they were all right at the time, but now you think 
they are shoddy ~ 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator MELOHER. How much are you paid ~ 
Mr. MADRID. $1,188 a month. 
Senator MELCHER, $1,200 a month, roughly ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Se!lator MELOHER. And P. & P., one of the owners of P. & P., is your COUSIn ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. You are under oath ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator l\fEI"OHER. It appears that the amount of money spent in 

this home, for labor and materials, might have ~en one-fifth of the 
amount, roughly. Do you agree with thaf now ~ 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
S(lnator MEI"CHER. You do agree. 
What happened to the other $4,000 then ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I don't know, sir. 
Senator MELOHER. Do you know what happened to it, Mr. Handy ~ 
J\lIr. HANDY. No, sir. 
Senator MELOHER. You don't know. 
Did (lither one of you profit from it in any way ~ 
l\1r. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator MELOHER. Something happened to it. It was paid out. Mr. 

Handy started to check. What happened to that money ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I don't know, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. You don't know. 
Neither one of you, you are both under oath, neither one of you 

profited from it ~ 
-1\11'. MADRID. ,No, sir. 
l\fr. HANDY. No, sir. 
Senator MELOHER. Well, what happened-are you both P. & P. ~ 

1 
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Mr. PACHECO. Yes. 
[Subsequent to the hearing, ~rr. Pacheco, in reviewing his testimony, 

stated the following: "Incorrect. I am not. P. & P. wasn't even a legal 
partner when houses in question were being remodeled. Check with 
Construction Industries Division in Santa Fe."] 

1\11'. GALLEGOS. That's correct. 
Senator l\fELCHER. Do you agree that it was shoddy work or not ~ 
Mr. PACHECO. No; I don't. 
Mr. GALLEGos. Not at all. 
Senator MELCHER. All right. 
Well, let's identify each of you. Which is which ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. I'm Pete. 
Senator MELCHER. You're Pete and you're Lee ~ 
Mr. PACHECO. That's correct. 
Senator MELCHER. Let's use first names. 
It wasn't shoddy work. Was it $6,000 worth of work ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. I would say so. 
Senator MELCHER. How much material was in the project ~ 
Mr. PACHECO. I can't tell you e:x:actly what it ran to, but I can say 

it ran 50 percent of the prognosis. 
Before we go any further into that let me correct that proposal. 

That wasn't P. & P.'s proposal. 
Senator MELCHER. vVhat do you mean by that ~ 
Mr. PACHECO. The proposed work that you have in the letter. 
Senator MELCHER. I don't understand you. 
Senator CHILES. There was a mixup between whether or not it was 

another contractor's proposal and then changed over to P. & P. He is 
saying it was a P. & P. proposal. 

Senator DOMENICI. There is no change noted in the file. 
Senator CHILES. Do you have a copy of your proposal that you 

made? 
Mr. PACHECO. FmHA should have them and whoever supplied the 

record. 
Senator CHILES. Well, the file does not show any change. We will 

show you that file. I am asking' you if you had any office copy that 
would show that it was your proposal? . 

Mr. GALLEGOS. No; we didn't have a copy of the proposals. 
Senator CHILES. Do you have any--
Mr. GALLEGOS. A copy of the proposal that we had, we have moved 

three times in the time that I did this work and we lost part of our 
proposals. The rest, Farmers Home had them and we were denied 
copies of them. 

Senator CHILES. Well, do you have any copies of your invoices or 
your charges to come up with what Mr. Pacneco savs, that you spent 
50 percent of this money for materials, at I e'ast, 50 percent of the 
money. 

Mr. GALLEGOS. Excuse me. At this time I would like for my 'attorney 
to make a statf'ment. before we proceed. . 

Mr. BLACKBURN. My name is Billy BLackburn, and I represent 
P. & P. Construction. 
. We have ju~t 11epn informed .. as of this morning, what the allega­

tIOns were agamst these people Involved here. 

~~--------------------~ 
.--~~- ~:--------

They have. had all their records subpenaed before the Federal gran?­
iury ill Albuquerque. I wOl~ld like to state to the comm.it~ee at thIS 
timn that we might have to Invoke la fifth amendment p~vIlege. 

All of the recoy·ds .are to be turned over to Tom U dallln Albuquer­
que, and. the rest of the records are in Farmers Home Administration 
in Las Vega£. . 

Senator CHILES. Counselor, let me just tell you, that J:0l!r chents 
would have had the right to invoke fifth amendment pTIvIlege and 
this committee would recognize tha~ ~ght. Your. c~ients hav~ :r;ow 
elected to testify. They have been testIfyIng, a~d thIS IS not ~ crlmmal 
investig.ation. We have sworn them, so the testImony they gIve before 
this -committee is certainly under the provisions of perjury. But I am 
not sure that they haven't waived their rights now, in that they have 
already been testHying. As far as invoking the fifth amendment right 
now, i don't think we recognize it! because of the fact that they have 
elected to t~tify ,and have so testIfied. 

Senator D01\fENICI. lir. Chairman, you mean as to what they have 
already said in sworn testimony ~ 

Senator CHILES. That's right, or any of the ·areas that we are talk­
ing- ,about now. 

Senator MELCHER. I have no further questions at this time, Mr. 
Chairman. 

Senator CHILES. Can you tell me, Mr. Gallegos, why you didn't put 
the entire roof on, as the proposal called for~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. BeCfluse we didn't bid the entire roof when we gave 
them our proposal. "\Ve said we would pay them part of the roof, and 
,a new roof on part of the house .. That's the re'ason I wanted my pro­
posal, so I would know exactly what I had propos~d to .do to that 
honse. That is not the pro'oosal that we wrote. That IS theIr develop­
ment plan, and that doesn't even tell you what we proposed. 

Senator CHILES. So you are saying that you had lanother proposal, 
different from the development plan? 

Mr. GALLEGOS. That is correct. 
Renator CHILES. Rut you don't have a copy of tha:t ~ 
1\i(r. GALLEGOS. We don't, have a copy. We were demed the copy. 
Senator CHILES. And the file doesn't show that Farmers Home has 

any copy of any new proposal. 
Do you lmow anything about this, Mr: Maese ~ 
1\11': MAESE. No. sir. 
I couldn't locate a copy of tJ~e proposal. . 
Senator CHILES. Mi'. :M:adrld, Mr. Handy, can you shed any lIght 

on that? 
Mr. MADRID. No. sir. 
Senator CHILES: Mrs. Maestas, let me ask you a few questions, if 

I may. 
How did vou first find Oll'i "l./out t.heBe Farmers Home grants? 
Mrs. MAESTAS. I went to Sierra y Llanos when they were in Tilden, 

thf'Y had their office there. Tllen I went, my husband and I, went in 
and applied for helping us with our house. He is very sick, and my 
houso was already collapring, the ceiling. So Josie Christina said we 
could. go. wen. she made the application. So she sent it in and we were 
qualified, but then after we had to go and get the money from FmHA. 
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Senator CHILES. Did anybody, did FmHA teU you that you had to 
use a certain contra:ctor in order to get the money ~ 

Mrs. MAESTAS. We had ~fr. Stoddard to do the work, but then when 
Ml'. Stoddard couldn't. do the work, NIr. Madrid suggested :that he had 
another contractor that could do it. Since my husband's room was col­
lapsing too, I thought it would be best to have it done. 

Senator CHILES. Did anybody tell you that, when they changed con­
tractors <ill :you, that they were gojng to change the amount of work 
they were gomg to do to your house ~ 

Mrs. MAESTAS. No. 
Senator CHILES. You were never told that ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. They never said nothing. 
,Senator YHILES. Did you think your roof was going to be replaced ~ 

DId you thmk you were going to get a new roof ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. Well, Mr. Stodciard said that it could have been done. 
Senator CHILES. He said h8 could give you a new roof for the 

amount of money~ .. 
Mrs. MAESTAS. Yes. 
Senator CHILES. What about the vent on your water heater ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. It is still tilted. I do not have a vent on my heater. 

The ~ay they put on the plywood, they pushed the vent to the side and 
took It off of the heater. 

Senator CHILES. Did anyone tell you it wasn't hooked up ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. I s,aw it, myself, but it was too late. 
Senator CHILES. Too late, it was after they had gone ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. Yes. 
Senator CHILES. Was there any other work that was supposed to 

be done on your house that was unde:r: the grant that wasn't done ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. My bathroom had to be tilf'cL It had to have the tile 

on the floor. ~ly living room had to have a panel in the floor-­
Senator CHILES. Did anybody tell you whv that wasn't done ~ 

. Mrs. MAESTAS. Yes, sir, Pete Gallegos told me that I had to choose 
eIther ,the doors or the paneling, so I thought I wonld rather have the 
d?ors Instead of th,e paneling, because the'paneling wouldn't hold the 
wmd from the outSIde. 

Senl:ltor CHILES. But you were supposed to get both ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. Yes, sir. 
Senator CHILES. "What about the bathroom floor ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. I didn't have anything done in the bathroom. 
Senator CHILES. No <,me told you why you didn't get that ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. He ~ald there wasn't enough money for it. 
Senator CHILES. I Just wanted to ask you. Do you feel like this pro­

gram has helped yon out any ~ 
Mrs. ¥AESTAS. Well, in a w~y, yes. It stopped the leaking in my· 

husband S room where he was lYIng there. 
Senator CHILES. Because the roof had already collapsed ~ 

. Mrs. MAESTAS. Had already collapsed. Well, the ceiling. The kitchen, 
It collapsed at 3 o'clock in the morning. 

Senator CHILES. The door feU off ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. The ceiling. It was before they had done the work 

and, then, after the work was done my pipes from my heater that I 
have to heat my husband's room. I have it, oh, from here to the other 
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table where the committee is, so that heat would go to his room. Those 
pipes collapsed on me too, they fell. I saw the roofing that it W:3,8 al­
ready starting to break, so I had to go to Chilimarand have them to 
come and put the pipes on, a tricot pipe. 

Senator CHILES. Do you have any questions ~ 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Chairman, I know we have a number ~f wit­

nesses but I think Lee Pacheco, Pete Gallegos, Handy, and MadrId, are 
comm~n to all of them, so I wilJ take a little time, since I won't go into 
detail with them later. 

Let me ask both Pet~ Gallegos and Lee PacihecO' . 
You received a subpena from this committee to' prO'duce. the records 

with reference to the rehabilitation jobs that we are talking about here, 
didn't yO'U~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. That's correct. 
Senator DOMENICI. And you supplied the records to the committee, 

didn't you ~ I 

Ml'. GALLEGos. We supplied the records that I had at that time. Now 
I have supplied everything to' the gr~~d jury. 

Senator DOMENICI. So you are tellIng us that you gave us what we 
asked for in the subpena. We don't have any new development plan fQr 
Mrs. :Maestas' house in this batch Qf records. 

Are you teJlling us that you didn't have them then, but you have 
found more recent records ~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. That is correct. 
Senator DOMENICI. Where were the records that you couldn't find 

when the committee subpenaed you ~ . 
Mr. G.ALLEGOS. There were same at the bookkeepers and same in 

boxes that we had and hadn't emptied. 
Senator DOMENICI. So you found more r2cords when you were issued 

a grand jury subpena than you did when this committee subpenaed 
you, is that what yQU are telling us ~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. Yes; well, the grand jury never subpenaed the rec-
ords until aTt·erward. 

Senator DOMENIQI. I understand. It was later. 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Yes. . 
Senator DO::MENIOI. Now, let me move over for just 1 minute to Mr. 

Handy. 
Did you cosign the checks wihich were in the bank, to payoff the 

$5,000 belonging to NIl'S. Maestas ~ 
Mr. HANDY. I'm not sure, but probably. 
Senatol' DOMENICI. Not sure, but probably ~ 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. What was your usual way .of having a. check 

endorsed ~ Did you go tell the homeowner the work IS all done, WIll you 
sign this check over ~ How did you do it ~ , 

MI'. HANDY. Lots of times the ciheck was brought to me, SIgned 
allready. 

Senator DOMENICI. By whom ~ 
Mr. HANDY. By the homeowner. . 
Senator DOMENICI. Is that the case in this one ~ 
Mr. HANDY. I don't remember. 
Senator DOMENICI. Was it the homeowner or was it the contractor 

who would bring you the check ~ 
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Mr. HANDY. Sometimes the contractor brought it. 
SenatOl' DOMENICI. Did yon ever go to the 'llomeowner and tell them 

they ought to sign the check ~ 
1\1:r. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. This would mean to the homeowner you were 

satisfied the work was done right ~ 
Mr. HANDY. As long as they had no complaints. 
Senator DOl\IENICI. So now you are sayi~g it ~s based on the .home­

owner's complaints whether or not you WIll cOSIgn the check, IS that 
your testimony to this committee ~ If the contractor said, "I'm finished, 
I've done my work," you go to the homeowner with a check or they 
have it there and you are going to cosign it, would you then say, "I'I? 
cosigning it, you had better sign too, because the contractor says he IS 
finished." Is that what you are telling us ~ 

Mr. HANDY. If the work was in compliance with what they were 
supposed to do, yes. 

Senator DOMENICI. But you didn't have enough experience to know 
whether it was or wasn't ~ 

Mr. HANDY. In many cases that was true. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Gallegos, do you have a contractor's license ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. What kind of a license do you have ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. GB-98. 
Senator DOMENICI. What's that ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. It is a general contractor's license. 
Senator DOMENICI. What does it cover ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. It covers everything. 
Senator DOMENICI. So you are telling us you are licensed to do 

plumbing and electrical work ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. We have to hire subcontractors to do that. 
Senator DOMENICI. So you are not licensed to do plumbing and elec­

trical work~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. No. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did you actually do the work on the Maestas 

home~ 
Mr. GALLEGos. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did you do all of the work or most of it yourself ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. We did most of it ourselves, right. 
Senator DOMENICI. "lTVho are ourselves ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Me and Lee. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did you hire anyone to work on this project ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. We had two people hired on this project. 
Senator DOMENICI. How many ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Two other people. 
Senator DOMENICI. What are they ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Laborers. 
Senator DOMENIOI. Are they expPl'ts in any kind of construction, or 

specialists ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. No. 
Senator DOMENICI. How much were you paid for the work on that 

home~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. $5,000. 
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Senator DOMENICI. You don't know how much materials were ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Not really. I would say, at least, 50 percent of it. 
Senator DOMENICI. Who approved this change of plans you are tell-

ing us about ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. They have to be approved by the Farmers Home Office 

and the owner. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did you approve of the change in the plans, Mrs. 

Maestas~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. I wasn't told anything about changing the plans. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did Farmers Home approve a change of plans ~ 
Mr. 1\UESE. No, sir, I did not, because I did not know that the con-

tractors had been changed. .. 
Senator DOMENICI. You didn't even know the contract had been 

changed~ 
Mr. MAESE. No. 
Senator DOMENICI. How about you, Mr. Madrid, did you know it ~ 
Mr. MADRID. That the contract had been changed, yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did you know the development plan had been 

changed~ 
Mr. MADRID. I knew the proposals had been changed. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did you approve the changes ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I accepted the proposal. 
Senator DOMENICI. If you have to keep records, how would you note 

tha:' the plan had been changed ~ What would you do ~ 
Mr. MADRID. It should have been documented. 
Senator DOMENICI. I don't want to take a lot of time, but here is a 

record. It isn't documented. Do you have any explanation for this ~ 
There isn't information in here about the change. 

Mr. MADRID. At that time I was working on quite a few 504 grants, 
two counties, and a lot of our documentation wasn't put in. 

Senator DOMENIOI. Let me return to Pete Gallegos. 
Have you. had your license revoked ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. No. 
Senator DOMENICI. Have you been disbarred from Farmers Home 

Administration work ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. That's right. They disbarred us before we were found 

guilty of anything. 
Senator DOMENIOI. I don't know if they were trying to find anyone 

guilty. I understand FmHA disbars people because they find their 
work is unsatisfactory. 

Did they tell you your work was unsatisfact.ory ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Yes; by letter and on one house only. 
Senator DOMENICI. When did they tell you this ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. It was in a letter a couple of months ago. 
Senator DOMENIOI. Do you have to have a building permit for a 504 

grant, rehabilitation ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. So vou are telling the committee that on all of 

the homes you rehabilitate with Federal dollars, you get building per­
mits also, is that correct ~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. I'm not posit.ive we did on all of them. 
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SenatQr DQMENICI. 1iV as this wQrk inspected by building inspectQrs 
frQm the State 'Or cQunty ~ 

Mr. GALLEGQS. MQst Qf them, they were. , 
Senator DQl\-IENICI. Are yQU telling us Mrs. Maes~as' J;tome was In­

spected, and yQur wQrk was apprQved by the buildIng InspectQrs Qf 
the State Qf New Mexico. ~ 

Mr. GALLEGQS. I dQn't think the Maestas hQuse was. 
SenatQr DQMENICI. ",iVhy wasn't it ~ 
Mr. GALLEGQS. I dQn't knQw. The inspector just never shQwe~ ,up. 
Senator DQMENICI. Were any Qther hQmes that yQU rehabIlItated 

nQt inspected 0.1' cleared by the State ~ 
Mr. GALLEGQS. Yes; we had SQme. . 
SenatQr Do.M:ENICI. So. this isn't the Qnly Qne. Y QU had Qthers where 

yQU received full payment withQut a final inspectiQn by the State ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. That is ~Qrrect. 
SenatQr DQMENICI. Did yQU get a building permit Qn the Maestas 

hQuse~ 

Mr. GALLEGQS. Yes. . . . 
SenatQr DQMENICI. Do. yQU have a recQrd Qf that buIldmg permIt ~ 
Mr. G.ALLEGQS. I cQuldn't find it. 
SenatQr DQMENIC!. Y QU have already said yQU got building permits 

Qn all the. 504's. Am I interpreting it cQrrectly ~ Let me ask the ques-
tiQn anQther way. , 

Did yQU receive building,permits Qn. all 504 h?mes that yQU bId ~ 
Mr. GALLEGQS. I dQn't thInk SQ. I thmk we mIssed twO. of them. . 
SenatQr DQMENICl. HQW CQuld YQU, as a !ic~nsed cQn~ra.ctQr, QP~ra~e 

where the law requires that yQU have a buIldmg permIt, If yQU dldn t 
have Qne~ . 

Mr. GALLEGQS. We just didn't get Qne. 
SenatQr DQMENICI. YQU just didn't get Qne. 
Mr. Madrid and Mr. Handy, when yQU cQsigned these checks fQr 

final payments did you do. sO. in ,any instances kri?wing that ther~ ~as 
nQt a Ii.nal inspectiQn by the State of New MeXICo., as to. the qualIty 
Qf work~ . . 'd 

Mr. HANDY. I ,assumed that they had gotten a bUIldIng permIt an 
that the State had inspected the house, 

SenatQr DQMENICl. Y QU assumed it ~ 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
SenatQr DQMENICI. YQU didn't require evidence that it had been 

inspected before yQU signed money to the cQntractors ~ 
Mr. HANDY. No.. 
SenatQr DQMENICI. How about you ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No. sir. , 
SenatQr DQMENICI. Were yQU required to have prQQf Qf an Inspec-

tion under yQur rules ~ . . 
Mr. :MADRID. We never had no State mspectors, never. m~de an m­

spection with us, or never tell us anything abQut a bUIldIng, check 
on a building. . . 

Senator DQMENICI. How about building permits ~ DId yQU reqUIre 
a building permit ~ " 

Mr. MADRID. They were reqUIred. SIr. 
Senator DQMENI<Jl. They were required ~ 
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Mr. MADRID. Well, Qn contracts sQmetimes the permits were nQt issued. 
Senato.r D'OMENlCI. Ho.W about yo.U, Mr. Handy ~ 
Mr. HANDY. What was the questiDn ~ 
Senato.r Do.MENICI .. Did you first require a State building permit 

before you Wo.uld oosign checks? 
Mr. HANDY. No.. 
Senator Do.MENICI. Y o.U did nQt ~ 
Do you knQW whether there is a regulation in existence at this time 

requiring a State building permit be issued ~ 
Mr. HANDY. I'm no.t sure. 
Senato.r Do.MENlOI. You're no.t sure ~ 
Mr. HANDY. No. 

Senato.r DQMENICI. Is P. & P. Oo.nstruction still a pnrtnership and is it still licensed ~ 

Mr. GALLEGo.S. No, sir; it is not a partnership. It is still licensed, yes. 
Senato.r Do.MENICI. Is it the same license ~ 
Mr. G ALLEGQS. Yes; the same license. The same number, the name has been changed. 
Senato.r Do.MENlOI. What's the new name ~ 
Mr.GALLEGQS.J.&P. 
Senato.r Do.MENICI. Why was the name changed ~ 
Mr. GALLEGQS. To. include my wife in the license. 
Senator DQMENICI. I have just been handed, Mr. Handy, Mr. Madrid, 

j\{r. Maese, a copy Qf the requirements fo.r Farmers Home for this type 
of home imprQvement. J ~ says, "All improvements will confQrm to. 
applicable laws, ordinances, cQdes, regUlations that relate to. safety 
and sanitation Qf buildings. " Were yQU a ware of that ~ 

Mr. MAESE. Yes. 
SenatQr DQMENICI. Mr. ~{aese. dQn't yQU think this means yQU must have a building permit ~ , 

Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir, and no. All contractQrs are required tD get 
one when they bid Qn the job. The State inspector fQIIQWS up on those. 

SenatQr DQMENICI. Should a State inspector clear the home before 
you disburse the money, Mr. Maese ~ 

Mr. MAESE. They have, in many instances, but nQt all the time. 
Senator DQMENICI. My questiQn is, What are the rules ~ ShQuld they 

be the same in all instances Dr not ~ 
Mr. MAESE. According to regulatiQns, yes. 
Senator DQMENICl. According to regulatiQns, yes. Why didn't they in all cases, then ~ 

Mr. MAESE. We don't get a building inspectQr up in QUI' area that 
often, and many times he will come by our Qffice and let us knQw about 
some possible prQblems in an()ther area, or a lQt of times he will come 
by and tell us that the jQb is OK. On many of these he didn't. 

SenatQr OHILES. It appears here that the attempt Qf these regula­
tions, and everything we are talking about here, is to give SQme protec­
tion to the hQmeowner. We are determining that we are dealing with 
a hQmeowner that is nQt a sQphisticated builder, and so fQr that reaSQn 
we require somebody to CQsign the checks. N QW, that cosigning is sup­
PQsed to be for some fQrm Qf protectiQn, is it nQt ~ 
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Mr. MAESE. That is correct. 
Senator CHILES. What kind of protection did Mrs. Maestas get here, 

if no one determined that there was a valid contract ~ No ~me de~er­
mined if there was a building permit ~N 0 one did any real mspectIOn 
on the job, a;nd no one wa? quali~ed, or at f~ast l\<fr. R;andy says he 
was not qualIfied to do the Inspectwn of the Job. What kmd of protec­
tion did she get ~ 

:1\11'. MAESE. I don't think she got any. ., . 
Senator CHILES. That's exactly right. She dldn t get a lIck. . 
Senator MELCHER. Mr. Chairman, I would like to pursue wIth Pete 

and Lee one aspect of this. . 
SettinO' aside your assertioIlR that you were not operatmg under the 

proposat which' was still for $5~000, and assuming that there was an­
other pr~posal, which isn't In evidence, but .as~Ul?in~ there was an­
other proposal whi-ch was for much less work. It IS stIll for the same 
amount of money, $5,000. You 'have testified, I think both of you 
have I think you agree on this, that roughly half of the $5,000 was 
spent on materials. is that correct ~ 

Mr. PACHECO. That's right. 
Senator Iv.fELCHER. Both of you testified to that ~ 
Mr. PACHECO. That is right. , 
Senator MELCHER. 1Vhat do you have to show that that s the -ca?B ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. If we could get our proposals, we could put the bIlls 

together and prove to you that we had that amount of money put in 
that house. . 

Senator MELCHER. You are saying that you have bills for materIals 
from what, a builrl.ing supply~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. That is correct. 
Senator MELCIffiR. And you can show that ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. That's right. 
Senator MELCHER. Therefore. $2,500 worth of materials you are 

claiming was purchased. How did you get your money for that $2,500 
for materials ~ . 

Mr. GALLEGOS. We probably bought it, charged it, and then paid 
it after we l{ot paid. 

Senator MELCHER. Did you show Mr. Handy the bills ~ 
:Mr. GAUJFA10S. No. 
Senator MELCHER. Did you see the bills, Mr. Handy ~ 
Mr. HA:t-.T})Y. I don't recall, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. Did you see the bills, Mrs. Maestas ~ 
Mrs. MAF..8TAS. No, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. So you, :1\11'. Handy, you asked Mrs. Maestft..<:J to 

cosign the check, and yon cosimled thp, check for $2.500 worth of 
materia.1s that YOU never saw bills for~ Is that correct ~ 

Mr. HANDY .. Yes. 
Senator MELCHER. Now. can you identify in that structure now, 

those materials that would cost $2,500, from wherever you buy these 
materials~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. I probably could. 
Senator MELCHER. What do you mean probably ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. If I looked-I" don't know if I can from the picture. 
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Senator MELCHER. You've got two estimates that that isn't possible­
that building supplies and labor, materials and labor, totaled around 
$l,OOO-but you are testifying to us, under oath, that you could iden­
tify in that structure $2,500 worth of materials ~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. 'That is correct. 
Senator MELCHER. You don't believe that, do you, Mr. Handy ~ 
Mr. HANDY. No comment on that. 
Senator MELCHER. Do you believe it' or not, Mr. Handy ~ 
Mr. HANDY. Repeat the question, please. 
Senator MELCHER. Do you believe that they could identify $2,500 

worth of materials that they put into that structure ~ 
Mr. HANDY. I don't know. 
Senator :1\1ELCH:ER. You don't believe it, do you, Mrs. Maestas ~ 
Mrs. MAESTAS. No, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. I don't believe it either. 
Thank you, :1\11'. Chairman. 
Senator DOMENICI. Well, let me ask, Mr. Maese, Mr. Madrid, and 

Mr. Handy ... Do you think this house is safe rJ.ow~ 
Mr. HANDY. I don't. 
Senator DOMENICI. Do you ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Well, what can be done to complete the work, to 

make this house safe for her ~ Do you have any suggestions ~ 
Yes, you first. 
:M:r. MAESE. About .the only thing that I could suggest right now, 

Senator Domenici, to see if the possibility of making a small subgrant 
loan under our present regulations, if there is no recourse on the con­
tractor at this time. 

Senator DOMENICI. So your only suggestion is that she might be 
entitled to a loan, which she would have to pay back to get the work 
she already thought was going to be done, with money she previously 
received from the Government, is that correct ~ 

Mr. l.\1AESE. If there is no other way to do it; yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Do either of you two have any suggestions ~ 
Mr. HANDY. In Gallup, where I work now, there is a program that 

will provide up to $15,000 in grants. I don't know how Gallup got 
it, but I am sure it is available in other areas. 

Senator DO]\fENICI. How about you ~ . 
Mr. MADRID. I would say to pursue, try to get 'a grant to do this work. 
Senator DOMENICI. Let me ask you. all three of you. 
In a sense you are custodians of Federal and ·State money, do you 

believe we should now look for additional money to do the work that. 
was already supposed to have been done, through HUD, or other 
sources ~ Is this the way we should handle these problems ~ 

Mr. MADRID. No; I think maybe the contractor should be asked to 
go back. 

Senator DOMENICT. What do you think, Mr. Maese ~ You are the 
county supervisor~ . 

Mr. MAESE. This has been our prIme concern, that we should make 
these contractors go back and complete these jobs. 

Senator DOMENICI. Have you ever recommended to Farmers Home 
that they try to make these contractors do the work previously agreed 
upon~ 
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Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir, I did. In this case, it wasn't on the Maestas 
case, it was on another case, we come in and we said, we tried to make 
amends, tried to get the contracto.r to. go. back and do the wo.rk. 

Senato.r DOMENIOI. Let me ask Ro.bert :Madrid. 
Yo.u started, at o.ne po.int, early in l1;lJ questio.ning, to. tell us ~lOw 
grants were appro.ved in terms o.f appl~cants. Y o.u saId we had a lIttle 
meeting and we lo.o.ked o.ver the applIcants. Then, yo.u changed the 
subject. 

Who. attended tho.se meetings? What was the purpo.se of tho.se 
meetings? 

Mr. :MADRID. The who.le co.unty staff o.f the Farmers ~o.me Office 
were in a meeting. It was an o.ffice meeting, a mo.nthly meetIng. 

Senator DOl\fENIOI. A monthly meeting to. determine who sho.uld 
get the grants? 

Mr. MADRID. No.; just to., say, break the wo.rk, amo.ng three o.f~ us. 
Senato.r DOl\fENIOI. How, then, were the applIcants appro.ved, Can 

yo.u tell us? Ho.w did yo.u decide who. wo.uld get the grants ~ 
Mr ~1ADRID. The peo.ple wo.uld co.me in and talk to. me. 
SeI~ato.r DOMENIOI. You made the decisio.n as to. who go.t them? 
Mr. ~IADRm. No., sir. 
Senato.r Do.MENIOI. Who. did? . 
Mr. MADRID, I wo.uld wo.rk up, I wo.uld pro.cess a lo.an and gIve them 

to. Mr. Maese fo.r appro.val. , ~ 
Senato.r Do.MENIOI. So. Mr. Maese determIned who. got them. 
1\'11'. MADRID. He appro.ved the loans, the grants. 
Senato.r Do.MENIOI. He appro.ved the grants? 
~I1'. MAnRID. Yes, sir. I t 
Senato.r Do.MENIOI. Mr. Maese, when yo.u got these pro.p?sa s 0 

appro.ve the grants, did yo.u get a number o.f ,them fr~)I~ whIch you 
had to. cho.ose, 0.1' did yo.u appro.ve each o.ne as It ca:me In, 

M.r. MAESE. We appro.ved each o.n~ as they came In. The who.le s~a~ 
was instructed, since we were runnmg sho.rt o.f mo.ney, thatldwe ad 
to work o.n the o.nes that were mo.st co.mplete, where we co.u ,spen 
the mo.ney, and try to leave it in the co.un~y, rath~r than lo.se It, and 
it wo.uld be given to. so.me other co.unty. My InstructlOns were to. pro.cess 
by date o.rder. I' k' the 

. Senato.r Do.MENIUI. So. whomever was pac ragmg o.r mao ~ng 
preliminary determinatio.ns, was really making the final deCIslOn, be­
cause yo.u appro.ved them all, is that ~orrect ? 

Mr:MAEsE. They were reco.mmendlng the~. 
Senato.r DDMENIOI. But yo.u accepted them. 
Mr MAESE. Yes, sir. . b de' atio.n Se~ator DDMENIOI. Each o.ne. No. selectlOn y yo.u, no. etermln 

o.f who sho.uld get it o.r who. sho.uldn't? 

Mr. MAESE. No., sir. d 'd d 'I' to the time that it came Senato.r DDMENIOI. It was eCI e prlO 
to. you? 

~~~Do!.e::;r~J.·Mr. Madrid. how m~ny 0i these grants did you 
app.ro.ve in the ('ounties Df Mor~ and San ~Iguel. 

Mr. MADRID. I'm no.t Rure, QUIte a few~ SIr., ... harD'e o.f in-
Senator DDMENICI. Ho.w many ho.mes were you In c b 

specting? 
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Mr. MADRID. I'm nDt sure. I had quite a few. I had the whole pro.gram. 
Senato.r DDMENIOI. Y DU had the whDle prDgram ? 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir, inspecting. 
Senato.r DDMENIOI. So. between the two. o.f you, yo.u were to. inspect 

all o.f them; is that CDrrect ? 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senato.r DDl\IENIOI. And no one else? There was no. one else to help yo.u? 
Mr. MADRID. No., sir. 

Senator DOMENIOI. I have the recDrd which indicates that yo.u 
packaged 70 applicatio.ns, o.f the 120 grants. Y o.u made 270 o.f the 323 
inspectio.ns in San Miguel and Mora Co.unties. I am no.t asking yo.u 
to. remember tho.se specifically, but do.es that so.und .right? 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
SenatDr DDMENIOI. Did you have enDugh time to. do. this wDrk thDro.ughly? 
Mr.l\fADRID. ND? sir. 
Senator DDMENIOI. Did you ever complain about being o.verworked? 
Mr. MADRID. No., sir. 
Senato.r DDMENIOI. Just one last question abo.ut VilJ anueva. I am 

nDt sure why yo.ur relatives got your grants there and I am not mak­
ing any accusa,tions. I just want you to. tell the cDmmittee how it 
happene~ in this small town, fo.ur of your relatives received gTants 
to. fix theIr homes. Can you explain that to us ~ 

Mr. MADRID. They all applied fo.r grants. 
Senato.r DDM..ENIOI. Y o.u didn't go o.ut and tell them they should? 
Mr, MADRID. No, sir. . 
Senato.r DDMENIOI. Y o.u didn't give them lany preferential treat­ment? 
Mr. :MADRID. No., sir. 
Senato.r D01lfENIOI. Would yo.u ten us why they did their own work 

while to mo.st o.f the others yo.u recommended cDntractors? 
]\.fr. :MADRID. They wanted to do. their o.wn wDrk. 
Senator DDMENIOI. As you saw the work being do.ne. didn"t it seem 

to. yo.U they were do.ing a much better job on their own than the CDn­
tractors were? 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir . 
SenatDr DDMENIOI. Do. you know why? CDuld you tell the com­

mittee, in your opinion, why, when they did it themselves, it was 
better than when licensed cDntraci;Df8 did it? 

Mr.l\fADRID. 1Ve had a number of peo.ple who were doing it the self­
help way. There was no labor invDlved 'Uilld they wo.rked at their own 
pace. No. hard labor and they had no. de,adlines. 

SenatDr DDMENIOI. So you wo.uld say this is a better way to do. it 
than using licensed cDntractDrs ? 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
SenatDr DDMENIOI. Mr. Chairman, I have no further questiDns. 
Senato.r MELCHER. Well, I noted Dne oversight when I was asking 

my questio.ns about Whether or no.t there was $2,500 wo.rth Df materials 
in Mrs. Maestas' ho.use. 

Mr. Maese, your testimo.ny, as I underst.and it, was to. the effect that 
there was -about $1,000 wo.~th o.f materials and labor in the Maestas' 
house~ 
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Mr. MAESE. No, sir, I estimated for materials only foOl' Mr. Horton 
and Mr. Moore. 

Senator 1\1ELOHER. Only materials ~ 
Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir. . 
Senator MELOHER. And you estimated what ~ 
JYIr. MAESE. $800. 
Senator MELOHER. $800 worth of materials ~ 
Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir. 
Senator MELOHER. So, along with Mrs. :Maestas and myself, you do 

n0t believe there could be $2,500 of mate.rials there ~ 
1\ir', MAESE. No ; it would be hard for me to---:-
Senator DO:UENIOI. I asked those who worked for the Government 

if they had any suggestions on how we could fix up this home. Now, 
I will ask the c.ontractors. . 

Will you go buck and finish any shoddy work that is incomplete 
on the Maestas' house ~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. ,Ve gave all the people 1 year's warranty on all of 
our work. Nothing came out until after the year's warranty was up. 

Senator DO:AfENIOI. So y.our answer is, "No ~" 
Mr. GALLEGOS. No. 
Senator DOl\1ENIOI. Where is the warranty ~ Is it in writing ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. It is in the proposal itself and it is 1 year's warranty 

on all the work we do. 
Senator DOMENIOI. So you are telling us, you gave Mrs. Maestas a 

written I-year warranty ~ 
Mr. GALLEGOS. It would have to be at Farmers Home. The proposals 

have to go to Farmers Home, because we never started a job unless 
we gave them a proposal and the figures. . 

Senator DOMENIOI. Mrs. Maestas, did you ever ge.t a copy of a war­
ranty for 1 year--

Mrs. ]}1AESTAS. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENIOI. So, Mr. Gallegos, you say the warranty was 

given to Farmers Home ~ 
1.11'. GALLF..GOS. I say the proposal itself is a warranty, on account 

of State law. 
Senator DOMENIOI. So State law requires this, but you say the 

warranty period has expired, so you are not going to go back and 
do anything ~ 

Mr. GALLEGOS. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENIOI. I have no other questions, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator MELOHER. I have no further questions. 
Thank you. 
The next panel includes Mrs. TafQya, Charles Knoop, and Mario 

Baca. 
Dr. LA VOR. Mr. Chairman, I will be very brief with this one. This 

home was chQsen simply because it is from Ri~ Arriba 90~nty. This 
is a home that was done several years ago. It Wln show SImIlar work­
manship. This is a home that was simply picked at random. I simply 
pointed to a chart and we went to it. I will read the development plan. 

The development plan will consist of repairing old plumbing, Illstalling a new 
septic tank and drain field, repair bathroom, repair walls, repair walls in two 
bedrooms, repair steps and build a ramp for a wheelchair, hook up to community 
system. 

.---~-~~-. ~.- ---- - - . 
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The total for this contract was $5,000. 
I should point out, Mr. Chairman, the Hnal inspeetion foOl' this was 

made by 1\11'. Knoop, county supervisor, on November 9, 1978. He 
said, "The items on development plan, dated October 27, 1978, not 
planned," those are his words, "all work now completed in Band 
family happy with work.~' 

I would like to briefly go through the slides to show you what was 
done. These pictures were taken about 3 weeks ago. 

This is a picture .of the front of the house. These [indicating] are 
the type of steps they have. 

This is a long shot of the front of her house. You will notice there· 
is no ramp there 2lh years after the work was done. 

Where this man is standing is where the septic tank was placed. 
The sepetic tank was placed too close to the house to be in compliance 
with State law. 

Today,3 weeks ago, we noticed that the septic tank was percolating 
an.d the odor from the septic. tank was extensive. 

Also, over here [indicating] the ground is collapsing on top of 
the septic tank because wn<on it was installed it wasn't compacted. The 
whole area is beginning to deteriorate right over the septic tank. 

This is the septic drain field which is backing up. The septic drain 
field goes right through a vegeta.ble garden area that they had. It is 
backing up quite bad.-

There was stuccoing done to the siCLe of the house. The stuccoing 
was not detailed in the original development plan. Some work was 
done by the builder which was not reflected on the plan and is not 
reflected in the official files. 

This is the batnroom. In the bathroom, Contac paper was put over 
the wall a:nd it was totally shredded when we were there. There was 
some calking, we were told, put around the bathtub, but that has just 
about disappeared now. 

Mr. 9hairman, I wn~ conclude ~he introduc~ion to this by reading 
the estllllator's evaluatIOn. "Quahty of matenal and workmanship: 
Roof, fair. Repair of interior walls, fair. Window replacement, good. 
Concrete terraces, fair. Septic tank and leach line, poor. Stucco appli­
~ati.on, good." Then he wrote a note1 "The official development plan 
IndICates that a wheelchair ramp was to be installed." Our inspection 
~evealed no permMlent type ramp installed. Raw sewage is percolat­
mg around the ground approximately 30 feet from the north side of 
t!te h(:>us~. This is a sh<?rt distance from the septic tank. These condi­
tIOns IndI~ate that possIbly one leach line instead of an adequate. drain 
fiel.d was mstalled to carry liquid to a small rock-filled pit. One partial 
strrp of roofing has been torn off, apparently as a result of winds. 

That co.mpJetes the introduction to this panel. 
Senator MELOHER. Senator Domenici. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mrs. Tafoya, are you satisfied with the work 

which was done on your house ~ 
Mrs. TAFOYA. N o't very good. 
Senator DOMENICr. What are the major problems that have to be 

corrected ~ . 
Mrs. 'TAFOY'A. Whatever they used on the restroom peeled off. It is 

no good. 
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Senator DOMENICI. What about the septic tank ~ 
Mrs. TAFOYA. It is leaking out and the odor is very excessive .. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did you expect a ramp instan~d to help ~Ith tll<.' 

wheelchair ~ Was that part of the agreement, and dId you get lt ~ 
Mrs. TAFOYA. They didn't do it as I wanted them to. 
Senator DOMENICr. Has anybody tried to correct the situation for 

you~ 
Mrs. TAFOYA. They didn't put in a ramp, just a slab of concrete 

there by the entrance. 
Senator DOMENICI. Has anything been done to correct or complete 

the work ~ Has anybody tried to correct it ~ 
Mrs. TAFOYA. There was no warranty on the work. . 
Senator DOMENICr. So no efforts have been made to fix the thIngs 

you have described or to put in the ramp ~ 
Mrs. TAFOYA. No. 
Senator DO:;\fENIcr. ~fr. Baca, are you a liceD;sed contrac~or~. 
Mr. BACA. I am working under my brother's lIcense, who IS a lIcensed 

contractor~ . 
Senator DOMENICI. Where is your brother's contracting bUSIness 

located ~ 
Mr. BACA. Baca Plumbing Co. in Albuquerque. 
Senator DOMENICI. And you are authorized to work under his license 

in Rio Arriba ~ 
Mr. BACA. The State of N C!rw :Mexico, yes. 
Senator DO~fENICI. What kind of license is that ~ . 
Mr. BACA. He has a CB-98, MM-I, and MM-2, general contractIng, 

plumbing. and gasfitting. ' . 
Senator DOl\fF.NICI. So he has those., Are you an expert in these, or do 

you just use his licenre ~ . . . 
Mr. BACA. I am an expert in those, partICuJarly the plumbmg. 
Senator DO~fENICI. Do you have to take out a license or do you use 

his license which permits you to do the work ~ 
~lr. BACA. I do the work umler him. He takes out the permits. 
Senator D01\fENICI. He gets the permits ~ 
Mr. BACA. Yes. 
Senator DOMENIOT. Do you apply for a building permit on this kind 

of work in Rio Arriba County ~ 
Mr. BACA. I didn't do any building, so I understand there is no per­

mit required. 
Semitor DOMP-NIOT. So vou didn't get a permit on her house ~ 
Mr. BACA. T didn't get 'any permit at all since she had her own per­

mit on the septic tank. 
Senator DOMENICI. She had a septic tank permit and you got no 

others? 
Mr. BACA. I did not instal1 the drainage field. Someone else did that. 
S(l,nator DOMP-NrcI. T s it vour testimony that on other homes on 

which you have done work of this type, you did not need a building 
permit~ -

Mr. BA0A. Only when there was an addition or some major altera­
tions. not for repairing cracks and minor repairs such as that. 

S€',nator DO'l\{ENICI. Weren't most or the grants close to $5,000 ~ 
Mr. BACA. Yes. 
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Senator DOMENICI. And $5,000 is not major work requiring a 
permit~ 

~fr. BACA. The FmHA never advised me to get one. They only 
wanted a permit on plumbing and wiring, as I understood it. 

Senator DOMENICI. Some of the items in the development plan for 
the Tafoya home weren't done, such as repairing the steps, and build­
ing the wheelchair ramp. Other items such as the roof, and one coat of 
stucco were done. Was there a change in this plan ~ 

Mr. HACA. There were a lot of changes in this plan. 
Senator DOl\fENICI. Who made the changes ~ 
Mr. BACA. The FmHA and the property owner, I suppose. 
Senator DOMENICI. So you are telling us that somebody else made 

the changes, hult authorized you to execute them ~ 
Mr. BACA. Yes; I put in a bid in October 1917, wd did the work, I 

think, close to 1 ye;ar later. Meanwhile they had to have a drainage 
system installed, because whrut they had w3Jsn't working. So they re­
vised my bid from septic tank and drainage field to septic tank only. 
I installed this septic tank according to regulations by the Mechan­
ical Board, which is part of the COIIlstruction Industries Division, so 
far as I know. 

Senator DOMENICI. Was it inspected by the State plumbing in-
spector~ 

Mr. BACA. I don't think so. 
Senator DOMENICI. Isn't that normal ~ 
Mr. RACA. Well, as I said, they had their own permit on the drain­

age system. I thought they had their plumbing permit also. . 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Knoop, were you the county superVIsor for 

Rio Arriba when the work was done on this home ~ 
Mr. KNOOP. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Can you tell us what role you played as a county 

supervisor ~ We are particularly interested in inspections that you 
conducted on this home. 

Mr. KNOOP. Yes; I made the final inspection. Notes on the final in­
spection said that the items in question "there was additional work 
done that was not planned on the original bid, such as the plastering 
work." At the time the final inspection was made, Mr. Baca, Mrs. 
Tafoya, and her daughter were present.. myself. On the'l'aJnp. as far 
as the ramp is concerned, the 6-by-14 sidewalk that was added by Mr. 
Bara was shown to me to be the ramp. We went through each detail 
of the bid with the daughter and Mr. Baca present, and at that time 
they were sa.tisfied with the work. I don't have the inspection report 
before me. I signed the final inspect,ion r€'port. Mrs. Tafoya signed 
the final inspection report and the check to Mr. Baca for final pay­
ment. 

Re~ardiJng changes in the development plan, the original bid was 
in 1977. There was a delav in funding of the mooey. Costs had in­
creased. Some of the work that had to be done was done. by the :family. 
So there were changes made in the hid. There was a revised bid given 
and discussed with the family, and approve.d before work started. 

Senator DOMENICI. Was jt' your role as the headman to make final 
inspection before fin.al payment was made ~ 

Mr. KNOOP. That IS correct. 

'..--,) -----------------------~~.------
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Senator DOMENIOI. So that was the rule in your county ~ 
Mr. KNOOP. Most often it was. I made one inspection a~ the wor:k 

was proceeding. If other people had ma;de inspections, I revIewed theIr 
inspections, and they review~d them WIth m~. If there were any prob­
lems they discussed them WIth me at the time they came back from . '. 
InspectIOn. .. 1 h 

Senator DOMENIOI. The USDA audit would mdlCa:te t lat t ere were 
a number of cases in your county of shoddy and Incomplete work. 
Are you aware of those audits ~ 

Mr. KNOOP. I am. . f 
Senator DOMENICI. On June 30, 1980, l\fr. Meyette, an Inspector. ~om 

Farmers Home, stated that "while in Rio Arriba County I vI.slted 
several other 504 and State grant developments. The workmans~Ip o~ 
all State -and Federal grants is as poor as those already descrIbed. 
Are you aware of that report ~ 

Mr. KNOOP. I did see a copy of it; yes. .. 
Senator DOMENIOI. How do you account for your InspectIng and 

approving procedures ~ Was this the ordi~ary way you conducted your 
supervision, by approving payments untIl someone comes along later 
and finds poor and shoddy work ~ . 

Mr. KNOOP. That comment relates to the northern par~ of RIO 
Arriba County. In that part of the c~unty,:we had ~one qUIte a few 
borrower method types of ~~nstructl<;m wIth. r~latlves and people 
doing the work themselves, hIrmg relatIves or hn'Ing people that were 
unlicensed. Because of that, some of the work was unacceptable. S?me 
of the people have not been paid comple~ely for the work on these .Jo~s 
until they are corrected. That comment IS on development that stIll IS 
in process and final payment has not been made. . . 

Senator DOMENIOI. Are you telling us so far, as your Internal audIts 
turned up shoddy work, none of those projects have been paid in full ~ 

Mr. KNOOP. As I recall, the ones we have in process no,,:" that are 
shoddy work, ther~ are still some funds left in the supervIsed bank 
account until work IS corrected. 

Senator DOMENIOI. That is your best recollection? 
Mr. KNOOP. That is what I recollect, yes, sir. . 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Chairman, I have further questIOns, but I 

yield. 'b f h t' Senator MELCHER. Mr. Baca, you are not responSI Ie or t e sep IC 
tank, is that correct? 

Mr. BACA. I am fur the tank itself, not the drai~age field. 
Senator MELOHER. Does the development plan mclude the tank? 
Mr. BACA. The first one did. 
Senator MELCHER. What was the final one? . 
Mr. BACA. They had problems apparently with their drainage sys­

tem so they had to get someone to do a good job on it so they could 
use their piumbirlg. 

Senator MELCHER. Was this you? 
Mr. BACA. No; I don't know who did it. 
Senator MELCHER. Was it part of the $5,000 ? 
Mr. BACA. It wasn't part of it. We transferred some of that m?,ney 

to other things. I don't have t.he sE'oond bid I gave them or the reVIsed, 
whatever form they have at FmHA. . 

Senator MELCHER. It is not clear about the ramp. Would you clarify 
it? 

- --- - - -------
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~fr. BACA. I would like to see the slide, if I may. 
Senator MELCHER. I think we can do that. 
Mr. BACA. I think there is one that shows the whole works. As you 

can see, that slab that we poured there, is on very hilly terrain. When 
w~ poured that slab, the end of it, this [indicating] end of it was even 
WIth the. ground. surrounding it. Tha.t h011:se is on a very steep hill. The 
ground. IS. errodmg constantly. They told me what they wanted t.here and I dId It. 

. Senator MELCHER. 1Vllat you are telling us is at the time of comple­
tIOn the end of that slab was level with the ground? 

Mr. RACA. They coul4 have negotiated the chair from the end of that 
slab onto-wherever they wanted to go. 

Senator MELCHER. Do you agree with that, Mrs. Tafoya? 
Mrs. TAFOYA. No. 

. Senator M~LCI-IER. Mr. Knoop, what can you tell us about this, you 
sIg!led off on It. You must have seen it, and you must have been aware of It. 

1\,fr. KNOOP. Well, as I remember it, as far as I can recollect, that was 
so that they could get the wheelchair on there. There was also, as you 
see on the end of that sJab, there is a hoard that he also did build there. 

Mr. BACA. No; there was no board there. 
Mr. KNOOP. This was the slab that lVIr. Baca showed me when I made the final inspection. 
Mr. BACA. Yes. 
Senator MELCHER. I have no further questions. 
Senator CUILES. ,:£,hank you. y;V: e will e.xcus~ this panel. 
Our next panel WIll be the reCIpIents of multIple grants. If they will, please come forward. 
Senator DOMENICI. Dave, could we make sure the committee knows 

where we are at this poi~t. Where is Georgia Ortega? 
¥r. RUST. We are gOIng to Mr. Casados first because of the wheel­chaIr problem. 
~enator D01\IENICI. All right. 

M Mr. RUST. We'11 have Mr. Casados and his son, Mr. Abeyta, and Mr. aese. . 
Senator OHILES. I would like to swear each of them. 
Do.you swear the testimony you're about to give before the commit­

tee WIll be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but tille truth, so help you God? 
Mrs. ORTEGA. I do. 
Mrs. SALAZAR. I do. 
Mr. OASADOS. I do. 
Mrs. MARES. I do. 
Mr. ABEYTA. I do. 
Senator DOMENICI. Will you Swear them in Spanish, p[ease. 
Mr. LOVATO. Yes. 
Senator CHILES. They understood that? 
Mr. LOVATO. Yes. 
Senator CHILES. AU riglht, thank you. 
PI:. LA VOR. Will you shut tp.at light out, please. ~fr. Chairman, 

Mus IS MI'. Casados house. He lIves on the left side of the house and 
this side is not occupied. 

This,panel will be mada up of people who received more than one 
grant from more than one agency. Mr. Casados' case, he received one 
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grant frOlITl the Department of Energy to insta~O two windows, one 
door, and they gave him six pieces of sheetrock, and the amount is 
unknown. 

He received a second loan, a section 502 loan from the Famners 
Home Administration for $2,400, to install a new roof. He received a 
third Federal grant, or a second Federal grant, section 504 loan for 
$2,600, to install all bathroOOl facilities, and add one room which will 
be used for a bathroom. 

He received a second,gTant at the same time from the State Housing 
Authority for $1,800, to do the s3lme work for the same development 
plan I just read for Farmers Home. The total he received from those 
three grants and one loan was $7,360. 

Recently, in the last few months, the Housing Authority of ~Iora 
County has awarded him a new grant designed to repair the work 
done by the Farmers Home grant and the State Housing Authority 
grant. The total officially, so far, on this house is $10,860. I was told 
the other day they may have to spend another $1,500, which would 
bring the total close to $12,000. 

If we can go through these slides very fast, we can get to Mr. 
Casados. As you will note, these pictures were taken in June. This is 
the front step to get into the house, and as you can also note, Mr. 
Casados is in a wheelchair and his son uses crutches. So here is the 
front step and there is a step here. 

This is from the inside of the house. There is a step down. This was 
the condition of the floor . You turn to the right and there is a step 
and another step to get into the kitchen. 

They put in a bathroom for :M:r. Casados and they did it by dividing 
an existing room. This is the existing adobe wall. You can see it. It is 
totally unfinished and this line is not straight. It's not a result of the 
camera. That is the way the wall is. 

This area here is a result of having to put the wiring in after the 
sheetrock wall was put up, but that again re.mained rough. This is 
looking straight ahead, and this is looking up. They didn't finish the 
ceiling. 

The marlite around the bathroom was popping off, and there is a 
problem with this house. They installed a hot water heater, and had 
they used 1 more inch of pipe when they first did it, the heater would 
have sat firmly on the ground, but it was too short, so it swung. vVhen 
they use the tub, the water goes from cold to scalding hot while they 
are in it. 

Mr. Rus'1\ You will notice there are no railings. 
Dr. LA V OR. There are no railings around here for him at all. 
Even if the bathroom was clone right, the problem is the door is too 0 

narrow for him to get his wheelchair in, and even if he could get it in, 
the sink is placed too high for the ,yheelchair, but even if the sink was 
placed properly, he couldn't get the wheelchair through here [indi­
cating] because the commode blocks the door. 

This is the kitchen, the dark walls, and there is the heater. This is 
what is being done by the new grant from fIUD. As you can see, they 
totally replaced the wall in the bathroom and the floor. We only have 
a few pictures. These were taken by the inspector. 

If 
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They have done some work, as you can see there is paint now in the 
house, and they have taken a wall out, and put in some closets, and 
made the room larger. Here is a closet, there is the bathroom, here 
is a closet, so there is an awful lot of work that is being done. 

I will just complete this by reading what the estimator found last 
week. He said: 

The quality of materials and workmanship, roof, good. 

That was part of the 502 loan. 
Exterior wire mesh construction, good. Windows and doors, good; septic tank 

and leach line underground, unable to inspect, but no apparent problems observed. 
Plywood subfloor, fair; interior walls enclosing bathroom and closet, fair. 

That's the new work. 
Paint, stain and varnish, good. Bath fixtures and wainscott over tub, fair. Porch, 

good except for exp0sed, untreated wood. Kitchen cabinets, poor. Resilient floor 
covering, poor and unacceptable from the standpoint of insulation. 

Wheelchair ramp from the kitchen to the lower level bedroom is acceptable, but 
in the absence of handrails can cause a safety hazard. 

I was there inspecting the house, 1\11'. Chairman, and there were no 
ramps going into the house and there were no ramps going from door 
to door. 

When I asked Mr. Madrid about that., he said Mr. Casados had told 
him he preferred to drag himself around from room to room and not 
use the wheelchair, which didn't make much--

Senator DOMENICI. That's all right. If that's what he said, we'll ask 
him. 

Dr. LA VOR. That's what he said. Then the last part, and this is per­
taining to the new work that is being done now. "When the wall in the 
living room area was removed, the flue for the wood stove apparatus 
was also removed, thus eliminating adequate heating of this portion of 
the house." 

The estimator said for all of the work, of approximately $12,000, 
labor and materials, $6,950, and that includes the roof and the 
stuccoing. 

Senator DOMENICI. Well, Mr. Chairman, I think we have a problem 
understanding these wrapup estimates, because they have to do with 
first work, and then they also have to do with work that's been redone. 

Senator CHILES. That's right. 
Senator DOMENICI. I would like to start with these questions. If you 

could be very specific with us, do you have an original development 
plan for the 504 ~ Do we know what is now being done with the new 
grant ~ Can you tell us specifically what items appear to be 
duplications ~ 

Dr. LA VOR. Are you Mr. Abeyta ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. Yes. 
Dr. LA VOR. Mr, Abeyta was asked specifically to provide that. 
Senator DOMENICI Mr. Abeyta, you are the director of the Mora 

County community block grant program ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. So we will understand, that's not part of 

Farmers Home ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. No. 

J' 
V 
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Senator DOMENIOI. You run that yourself ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. Yes. d' t th 
Senator DOMENICI. Can you tell us then,. what you are Olng: 0 . e 

Casados' house that was part of the prevlOus development plan for 
which a grant was approved ~ . d h 

Mr. ABEYTA. OK, I did consult with D~. ~artl~ La VOl' an . e 
told me in the bathroom there was a duphcatlon, If I would do It. 
However even though it is a duplication, the contractor a~ed to do 
it on his 'own, not to charge for it .. So it wouldn't be'a duphcate. He 
is doin/l: the work free on several thIngs. . 

On changing the .aoor so it will open to ~he outsIde, so ~hey ;vould 
come in; changing the commode bow~ 10 Inches ~o the TIght.ln the 
bathtub area, that way they could ~o In, but .he dId tha~ o~ hi~ own. 

Senator DOJ\.IENWI. You are saymg there IS no duplIcatIon. 
Mr. ABEYTA. No dupli~ation. I do ha:ve the sk~tch that ~eare 

reading out in new pictures as the wor~ IS progressIng. There s la lot 
more being done now than what the pIctures show there. I do have 
the pictures. . . kn ~ 

Senator DOMENTCI. 'Vho was the onglnal contractor, do you ow . 
Mr. ABEYTA. Well, FmHA 01'-- ~ 
Sena,tor DOJ\.fENICI. FmHA. Does the staff kno:v ~ Harry Nolan. 
Who is the ~ontractor that you contracted WIt \ ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. Richard Atkinson. .. 
Senator DOMENICI. Even though the speCIficatIOns for yours say 

some of the plumbing has to be done so the bathtub can be :used-­
Mr. ABEYTA. Those were corrected before we even went In. 
Senator DOMENICI. 1Vho corrected them ~ . 
Mr. ABEYTA. From our understanding another plumber went In 

and did the work. I don't know if he charged them. 
Senator DOMENICI. All right. . 
Mr. ABEYTA. lIe didn't charge them. The reason theJ: were haVIng 

problems, and I think they are going .to ~o.ntinue ~lavlng proble!lls, 
is that the w,aterline comes from a sprmg hIgh up In ~he mountams, 
and the pressure on those lines is verY high. If you wlll turn. on the 
faucet, you will get all the water in your face. The pressure IS very, 
very high.. . . l' 

I imagine untIl they put a redncmg valve outsIde on those Ines, 
they will always have problems with the water. . 

Senator D01\fENICI. Let me ask you, how do you perform your In-
spections ~ Do you require b~i1ding permits.~ 

Mr. ABEYTA. I have three Inspectors helpmg our program. 
Senator DO:M]~NICI. That's at present ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. That's since I started. 
Senator. DOJ\.fENIOI. How long iago did you start ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. Six months ago. 
Senator DOMENICI. So you a,re telling the committee that the State 

building inspector approves this work before you pay the contractor ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. Yes; I even. hav:e a form, where he goes,. ~nd h~s the 

State inspector, the plumbIng Inspector, and the electr;Clan SIgn. 
Senator DOJ\.IENICI. Do you find you can get State mspectors to 

come and do the inspecti.ng you require ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. In my area, yes. 

.. 
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Senator DOM'ENIOI. That's in Mora County ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. Do you think it's any different in San Miguel ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. I don't think in San Miguel it would be any different 

because the State inspectors are real close by. One lives in San Miguel 
and two in Mora. 

Senator DOMENICI. How do you approve a payment to contractors 
who do work under your block grant lIUD program ~ 

Mr. ABEYTA. We approve 40 percent after th.e work is completed. 
First we allow 50 percent for materials, and then we h.old 10 percent. 
That's after it has been completed, here we hold it for 30 days, and 
during that time we get the Snate inspectors to do their work. 

Senator DOMENIOr. Who contacted you about going up to Mr. 
Casados and fixing his house ~ 

Mr. ABEYTA. Our county manager said he had received a letter from 
you, Senator Domenici, that these people needed help, and we do have 
a committee that approves 'all applications. It's not approved by me. 
There is a committee of four of the people from Mora County. They 
are advised on all applications and we do have a point system and 
applications are based on the point system. 

Senator DO.MENlOr. So you found in your application procedure this 
house was entItled to help ~ 

Mr. ABEYTA. It was in pretty bad shape, yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did Robert J\{adrid ever contact you and ask you 

to go up and see if you could help ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. No; before me there was another director. He con­

tacted Robert to see what he could do about that picture that you 
showed on the bat.ht.ub. because the marHte was coming loose and he 
wrote notes here that the grant was already closed, that'it was 100 per­
cent completed and that they couldn~t do anything about it. I do have 
the notes. 

Senator DOMENICr. Have you been present here today to hear 
testimony~ 

Mr. ABEY'l'A. Yes. 
Senator D<?M:ENICI. Do you have any problems in your profn'am with 

sho~dy and Incomplete work which you have already finished paying 
for In total ~ Has this happened in your program ~ 

Mr. ABEYTA. We do have problems, but not of shoddy work, because 
we do not pay until we get the final inspection from the State inspec­
tor, and the problems are, that some contractors are quitting. 

But we are running a strong pro,gram. We have some people back 
here, in fact some of the com,mittee that contacted you some time back. 
After I came in they liked the work we were doing. 

Senator D01\I.'ENICr. Do you feel confident you could get the work 
done and still inspect properly ~ 

Mr. ABEYTA. I think so. 
Renator DOMF,NICI. Do you have any trouble nnding contractors ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. We have about fonr h>ft, bnt I think we will finish by 

November. Our office deadline is November 15, and we should be 
through ·around that time. The total of the houses that will be re­
modeled will be about 90. 
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Senator DOMENICI. When you first visited the Maestas' house-the 
Casados' house, were you aware of the previous loan and grants that 
had been spent on it? 

Mr. ABEYTA. Yes; in fact, I got copies from them of all the work 
that had been done previously. 

Senator DOl\fENICI. Do you think the work was done thoroughly ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. On the roof part, it was OK. The cement part was 

OK. The bathroom part was bad. 
Senator DOMENICI. Would you have approved this project for final 

payment under your program ~ 
1\1:1'. ABEYTA. No, sir. I got the pictures and there was no way we 

could approve it. In fact, in these pictures that are shown there, we 
are still progressing with a lot more work on our grant, and you can 
see some of the pictures that were taken yesterday. 

However, on that contract, they are supposed to put the railings for 
the ramp, because he cannot got up on the ramp that we already did. 
You can see that on the pictures, if you would like to see them. 

Senator DOMENICI. Maybe we can talk with Mr. Casados fOl' just a 
minute. I know it's very difficult for him. Let's just have him talk with 
us a little bit. 

fMr. Casados testified through interl)reter R. A. Lovato.] 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Casados, are you satisfied with the work that 

has been done on your house ~ 
Mr. CASADOS. They haven't finished. 
Senator DOMENIOI. I know this gets confusing, but before Mr. 

Abeyta came in, were you satisfied with the work that had been done 
before he started with his new grant ~ 

Mr. CASADOS. Not on the part where the piping was put for the bat:.­
room and now they have to install a new facility to make it right. 

Senator DOMENICI. Does he also remember he borrowed money and 
got a loan to repair his house ~ 

Mr. CASADOS. Yes. 
Senator DOMENIOI. How much was that for ~ 
Mr. CASADOS. I--
Mr. ABEYTA. Here is his copy. 
Senator DOMENICI. Could. you state for the record how much it is, 

Mr. Abeyta. 
Mr. ABEYTA. $2,400. 
Senator DOMENICI. $2,400. Is anvthing due on this and has he been 

able to pay it ~ w 

Mr. ABEYTA. The loan was made in 1974 and it's a 10-year loan at 
1 percent. 

Senator DOMENIOI. I have no further ques.tions, Mr. Chairman. 
~enator CHILES. Mr. Abeyta, do you have any reservations about 

usmg the funds appropriated for lInD programs to correct the short­
comings for work done by Farmers Home ~ 

Mr. ABEYTA. 1Ve were going to do it before and we didn't know ex­
actly how much work was done, but then when I talked to Mr. La VOl', 
he sort of commented not to duplicate, or that is what I understood, 
so at that point, even though I knew he needed that cDmmDde bowl to 
be moved so he cDuld go intD the bathroom in the wheelchair, I talked 

,. ... 
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to the contractor, and he agreed to do a lot more extra work, so we 
wouldn't be duplicating the services. 

Senator CHILES. Did Robert Madrid cDntact you about this case and 
ask you to provide additional funding to 'CDrrect the work that had 
been done~ 

Mr. ABEYTA. No. 
Senator CHILES. You didn't ,have any conversations with Robert ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. I did talk to ihim about another grant. 
Senat.or CHILES. Not. aJbout this one ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. No; there were people coming in for assistance and we 

had too many applicatiDns. We had 145 applicants, and we only had 
money for 90, plus anothe:r 90 that ca.me in late, so at that point we 
lmew he-Robert l\1:adrid-had a grant f.or approximately $33,000, 
so we were referring people to him, just referring. 

Senator CHIJJES. All right, thank you, Mr. Casados. I think we will 
now move .on. 

Dr. LA VOR. Ms. Ortega and her daughter will be next. 
.Mr. ABEYTA. I would like to make a comment. I think Mr. La VOl' 

Imsunderstood that we wDuld be using more money and he quoted the 
figure $1,500. Just for the record it will be $690. 

Senator DDMENICI. $690 ~ 
. Mr. ABEYTA. Yes; th~t was to install the railings, make the ramps 

bI~g~r. We took a cO!llmlttee of people up there, County Commissioner 
WIlham Gandert saId we needed a few minor chana-es because he could 
110t go up in t~e wheelchair even though we had built a ramp. 

In fact, I WIsh you could see some of the pictures that are being 
dono now. 

Senator DO:M:ENICI. Could we see those ~ 
Mr. ABEYTA. Yes; you can see the before and after and that's how 

the house looked before we had these pictures. 
Senator CHILES. Thank you, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Do we need 1\1:1'. Abeyta to stay~ 
Senator CHILES. No. 
Dr. LA VOR. No. 
Senator DOMENIOI. ,]}hank you very much. 
Dr. LA VOR. Thank you very much. 
Senat~H' ·PHILES. Mr. Casado~, we thank you very rilU~h for coming 

and testIfymg before the commIttee. 
Dr. LA Vo~. 1\{r. Chairman, this next home is owned by Mrs. Ortega .. 

She has receIved several grants. The first was from the weatherization 
progra1'll: for doors, weather stripping-for storms, weather stripping, 
storm wmdows, and cement work and it is unclear as to h.oW much 
was spent, but it can't exceed $560. 

The second was a Farmers Home 504 a-rant and I will read vou the 
aC~l~al language: "The grant win be us~ to install bathroom; repair 
ceIlIng, roo!, and porch deck." That was for $5,000. 

She recelve~ a second g!ant from the State Honsing Authority to 
do the followmg and I WIn read you the official file. "G.rant will be 
used to repair bedroom and kitchen ceilings and install new electrical 
box and new decking on porch." This is a repeat of the other. That 
grant was for $3,500. 

79-347 a - 81 - 4 
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The total was $8,500 spent on her house when the first report was 
written. Since that time the State Housing Authority has awarded 
another $3,100 whieh they call an emergency grant for a total of 
$11,600. 

Mrs. SALAZAR. Excuse me, :Mr. Chairman, it's $3.500. 
Dr. LA VOR. Mr. Chairman, $3,500, so it is a total of $11,900. If I 

can briefly go through the slides, I will show you what exists. This is 
the house from the side. This is one of the 1dndows that was installed 
under the weatherization program, and I believe this is another one 
that then was installed under the weatherization program. The porch 
that was put on, is this porch, and you will note the distance between 
the top of the porch and the steps. 

As you will see, for an older person, it is too far to step dow~ ::nd 
there are nO,handrailings and you must h?ld ~m to go down. T~Is IS a 
slide taken by the estimator last week. ThIs gIVes you a better Idea of 
it, and this is the porch. . , 

This house had electrIcal work done and It was red tagged by the 
building inspectors O;t t.hre~ diffe.rent occasions. ~t is still red tag;ge~. 
The last time the bluldlng Inspector red tagged It w~s May 1~, ~~s 
new emergency grant is now correcting that. I don t know If It IS 
finished yet. 

Since the first report, however, I understand. the house was r~d 
tagged by the plumbing inspector, because the septIC.system was put In 
improperly. This is an example of some of the electrIcal work, the out­
lets, I saw. 

Senator DOMENICI. Who was the prime contractor ~ 
Dr. LA VOR. P. &P. 
l\1rs. SALAZAR. P. & P. 
Senator DOMENICI. All right. .. . 
Dr. LA VOR. They built the bathroom by takIng an eXlstmg, ~ pe­

lieve it is about an 8- by 8-foot room and simply put up a partItIOn 
down the center of the room and this iR the bathroom. It looks larger, 
because I was using a wide-angle lens. That's only 4 feet and they put 
in instead of a new tub. an old tub. But when th~. work W3,S done, 
th~re was no ventilation in the room. and s.o com~]alnts we,re made to 
the builder, so he came back and put that wmdow In. The wIndow goes 
clear through to the other room. 

This was taken by the estim~tor just last .wee]r. It show~ the .water 
heater and you will note there IS no flue, whICh IS a. t~tal vI~latIOn of 
all of the codes. It mnkes the house very unsaf,e. ThIS IS, ag-am. by tJ;e 
estimator last week. This shows the new electrIcal work.belng done In 
the house. I should point out when I was there t.he first tIme, when you 
put a plug into the outlet, sparks came out. There were burn marks 
aronnd the ceiling light fixture. So, as you can 'see they are correct-
ingit. . . 

Is this a new door they are puttIng In ~ 
Mrs. SAJ.tAZAR. Yes. . b' 
Dr. LA VOR. They are putting in a door, so a lot of work IS eInU! 

done now. . , t 'I(t 
I will then conclude, Mr. Chairman, with the estImator s repor . iT. 

said-
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The quality of materials and workmanship, porch step and roof good' lowered 
ceilings, !~ir; roofing,. fair; electrical. work, poor, unacceptable, red-tagg~d ; doors 
and partitIOn wall, faIr; bathroom wmdow, good; plumbing good' except septic 
tank, which is not properly functioning, apparf'ntly due to inadequate drain 
field; and then water heater, poor, not vented, safety and hl~alth hazard. 

Qut of $1.1,90q, that includes the work that is being done now. The 
estImator saId thIS was worth about $5,015. 

Senator CHILES. Mrs. Ortega, are you satisfied with the work that 
has been done on Your house ~ 

Mrs. ORTEGA. No. 
Senator CHILES. What is the status of your electric bill--
Mrs. SALAZAR [interrupting]. Mr. Chairman, excuse me. I have been 

elected spokesperson for my mother. ' 
H~r electrical hill. since this wiring has been installed, has been 

runnmg my mother $68 a month. 
Senator CHILES. What was it before ~ 
Mrs. SALAZAR. I think about $12 to $17. 
Senator CHILES. What is the accumuJated bill she has now ~ 
Mrs. SALAZAR. The last one my mother turned in to Mr Madrid 

Robert Madrid, was for $128. . " 
Senator CHILES. Has any agency indicated a willin<l'lless to help pay 

the bill ~ b 

Mrs. SALAZAR. Mr. Chairman, at the time before this all happened ,r. had ~ meeting with Mr. Galleg~s. He had agreed that my mother'~ 
mg:h bIlls were due to the electrIcal system they had installed. He 
agre~d to go back and pay my mother for all the money she had been 
puttmg' out, and as of today, he has not done anything. 

Senakor CHILES. Do you think the high bill is as a result of the work 
that has been done ~ 

l\1rs. SALAZAR. Yes. sir, it was. 
Senator CmLEs. What is causing it ~ 
Mrs. SALAZAR. I talked to the electril,~al power collector which is 

Fernandos Gallegos, from Las Vegas. T talked to him over'the week­
end. He told me all of the wires had . Jeen connected together. There 
w'ere no separate outlets, they were all hooked toq:ether. 

He didn't understand how thu,t how:;e hadn't caught on fire. 
. Senator CmLES. Mr. Maese. did FmHA countersign the $5 000 check 
In the Ortega case 1 day after it was deposited ~ , 

Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir. I didn't Imow that at the time but it was 
brought to my attention when we met with t.he people. ' 

Senator CHILES. Is that a common procedure to write out the whole 
amonnt the day after it is put in there ~ 

1\{r. MAERE. No, sir. 
Senator CHUJES. Isn't the procedure normally that as the contractor 

brings. in some bills and asks'for a partial payment, that you then make 
a partml payment ~ 

Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir. 
~enato~ CHIT ES. Do you know whether at the time the $5.000 wa& 

paId .out ln one lump sum, whether the work had been completed f.lJt 
th~ tune the $5,000 was paid out., or was it just in advance ~ 

Mr. MAESE. I do not know, sir, because I had not inspected the house 
prior to the complaints coming in. 
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Senator CHILES. Who countersigned that check ~ 
Mr. MAESE. According to the records, Steve Handy. 
Senator CHILES. You don't know whether the work was done before 

the grant was approved or not ~ 
1\fr. MAESE. No, sir, I don't. 
Senator CHILES. Why did Farmers Home pay to install a septic tank 

for a home that could be served by the city sewer system ~ 
Mr. 1\fAESE. I believe at the original time of the bid, we did not 

know the city sewer system was coming through. The city sewer system 
came in there about 5 to 6 months after that job was completed. 

Senator CHILES. After the job was completed ~ 
Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir. 
Senator CHILES. Senator Domenici. 
Senator DOMENICI. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Let me see if I understand. 1\1:r. :Maese, when a $5,000 grant is ap­

proved, the $5,000 is made available immediately to be deposited in 
the bank? 

Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir. 
Senator D01.\{ENICI. In this case, I understand the $5,000 was de­

posited in the bank, and someone went to Ms. Ortega the sameiay or 
the next day, which is it~ 

Mr. MAESE. I think it was the next day. 
Senator DOllrnNICI. The next day then, and had her sign a $5,000 

check for the contractor, and the Farmers I-Iome representative co­
signed that check? 

Mr. MAESE. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. I..Iet me ask you, was the work started before 

you ever had an agreement or did they just advance $5,000 to this con-
tractor? . 

Mr. MAESE. Not to my knowledge, Senator. 
Senator DOMENICI. Which is i~ r 
Mr. MAESE. I don't t.hink it had been started. 
Senator DOllfENICI. If this is the case, in this instance. the contractor 

was given $5,000 before he started working, is that right? 
Mr. }fAFRE. Yes, sir. nccording to the records. :May i-­
Senator DOMENICI. Please. 
M"-,, ~ESE. In previous conversations with the' Housing Authority 

people, we were going to work two grants and it was my understand­
ing at the time thn.t they were g-oing- to pro('('ss the State ~r~mt first 
and then onrs. Whether the work was started prior to that., I cannot 
verify that for sure. 

Senator DOMENICI. The inspection reports, ~1r. M':aese, would indi­
cate this work had starterl before t.he monev went in the bnnk. The in­
spector's report.. by Mr. Handy, stated, "Fifty percent completed on 
February 14, 1979," and final completion February 23, 1979, when the 
mON'V WflS ileno8ited. How c01l1il thnt be ~ 

Mr: M~ESE. The only way it con11 have hnppened is somebody had 
to authorIze to start construction pl'lor to that. 

Senator DOMENICI. So in this case, somebody anthorized the con­
tractor to start work on her house before she even had a grant. is that 
correct~ . 

Mr. MAESE. A.s far as I can understand, yes. 

--~---~ ----
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Senator DOll{ENICI. Well, you are the supervisor. Was that done or 
not 2 

Mr. MAESE. As far as the work starting, I c3;nno~ tell you. As far. as 
loan approved"the grant approved, I don't belIeve It was started prlor 
to the grant beIng approved. 

Senator DOMENICI. How can we find;ut when the grant was ap·· 
d 2 prove . " N 1 f th t d Mr. MAESE. If you will look over at posltlOn o. 0 a ocu-

ment, you will find a 440-1. 
Senator DOMENICI. What date is that ~ 
Mr. MAESE. January 30, 1979. . 
Senator DOM'ENICI. Why would it take so long to get the mO:&9Y In 

the bank~ 
Mr MAESE. Because we do not have the money here. We have to send 

for it in St. Louis, to the finance office, and it will vary from 10 days 
to 3 or 4 months. I 

Senator DOMENICI. In this case your records woul~ reflect that before 
you had the money in the bank, work was progressIng ~ 

Mr. MAESE. It should be noted in there. It should be documen~ed. 
Mrs. SALAZAR. Excuse me, Mr. Chairman. I just spoke to my motller 

and she said work had not been started yet. . 
Senator DOMENICI. All right, we will let the file speak for Itself 

on those dates. ~ 
Now let me ask you: Do you remember signing the check for $5,000 . 
Mrs. ORTEGA. Yes. I signed. 
Senator DOIV.iENIOr. Wheu you signed it, had they already started 

to work~ . f 
Mrs. SALAZAR. She just went to the bank. One of the sec~etaries rom 

1\1:r. Maese's office took my mother to the b~nk to dep:osit the money 
in the bank. Mr. Gallegos and Bobby MadrId went wI~h them. 

Senator DOMENICI. I want to be very specific on tIns, and :please 
tell your mother to think very carefully. The money was put In the 
account for her and she signed a $5,000 check. Had they started work 
or not on that day ~ 

1\1:r8. ORTEGA. No, the next daVe 
Mrs. SALAZAR. Not that day, the next day, she said. 
Se,nator DOMENIOI. Did they tell her anything about why she would 

be paying the whole $5,000 aU-at one time ~ 
Mrs. SALAZAR. No. ,. h h k ~ 
Senator DOMENIOI. Why did she think she was SIgnIng t~ e c ec . 

What did she think she was doing in signing the.check~ 
Mrs. SALAZAR. She just thought they were gOIng to put the money 

in the bank :at that particular time, until the 'York was c<?mplete~, 
and then a check was supposed to be have been Issued, but It wasu t. 

Senator DOMENIOI. So she was taken down to the bank where she 
signed the check, in the pres~nce of. Robert Madrid and Pete Gal~egos ~ 

Mrs. SALAZAR. No; LorraIne LUJan, the s~cretary, Mr. Maese s sec­
retary, was the one who went to the bank WIth my mother, when they 
took the check. 

Senator DOME1';T(;f~ [Spanish spoken.] 
Mrs. ORTEGA. t '~)'i~,rmish spoken.] 
Senator DOMENICI. Would you interpret that ~ 

\ 
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Mrs. ORTEGA. Si. 
Senator DOMENICI. I will do that. When she went with Pete Galle­

gos and Robert Madrid, they took her to his secretary and they went 
to the bank. The secreta:ry went to the bank with her, and at the bank 
she signed the check. 

N:ow Clan I ask you, do you know whether the signature of Mr. 
Handy was on that check when you signed it~ Was that signature on 
it when you signed it at the bank? 

Mrs. ORTEGA. Si. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Chairman, she says she thinks that Handy's 

signature was on it when she signed it at the bank. That would be her 
testimony. . 

Now one more time, ask her why she was signing a check for $5,000. 
What did she understand? . 
Mrs. SAJ-lAZAR. Because they told her to sign it. 
Senator DOMENICI. For what. ~ 
Mrs. ORTEGA. [Spanish spoken.] 
Senator DOMENICI. To fix your house ~ 
Mrs. ORTEGA. Si. 
Senator DOMENICI. I wonder, ,.Mr. Chail"man, if we might put that 

Clheck in the record.1 

Senator CHILES. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. What is the present situation with reference to 

the Ihouse? Can you quickly explain to us what or how things are now 
and where tihings stand? 

Mrs. SALAZAR. Mr. Chairman, they have started. Like I said, Fer­
nandos Gallegos, he's the ellectrical contractor. He has started to work 
on the house for the electrical part and he's just not finished with it. 
Willie Roybal has started construction on the house all over again. 
He has patched up the outside by the 'poreh, and they are in t~e process 
of putting in new stairs, and they are in the process of redOIng some 
of the walls in tlhe kitchen, and also in the bathroom. 

Senator DOMENICI. Mollie, did you have something to ask? 
Mrs. SALAZAR. No, I think it has been answered. 
Senator DOMENICI. AU right. 
Mrs. SALAZAR. Thank you. 
Senator CHILES. Thank you very much for your appearance here 

today. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Chail"man, I wonder if you would just per­

mit me-I think they can be excused. 
Mrs. SALAZAR. Mr. Chairman, I think there is another question she 

would like to ask. 
There was another check that was brought to my mother's house, 

by Mr. Handy, at one particular time and. she doee:l't kno:v- exactly 
what it was for. It was for $2,000, and she dIdn't know what It was for 
or anything, and the way ihe l;landled tha~ was just very improper .. 

Dr. LA VOR. It was a HOUSIng Authorrty check for $2,000, I beheve. 
Senator DOMENICI. Well, what happened? Another check was 

brought to her ~ 
'Mrs. SALAZAR. Yes, to the house for wpparently $2,000. Now, she 

really doesn't know for what amount it was. She doesn't lmow whether 

1 Retained in committee files. 
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it was for $2.000, $200, or what it was for. Stev~ Han~y went over to 
my mother's house and told my mother, here, SIgn thIS check, I want 
you to sign this check over to 'me. 

Senator D01'\'1ENICI. I think it was for $2,000. 
Dr. LA VOR. 'Ve thought it was that original check that she said 

she siO'ned and she explained this morning, so the only other check 
that {;e know of that Handy cosigned was the Housing Authority 
grant. 

Senator CHILES. Who brought the check to her ~ 
Mrs. SALAZAR. Steve. 
Senator CHILES. Did he explain to you what the check was fod 
Mrs. SALAZAR. No; he didn't. 
Senator CHILE..<;;. Did he explain to her the amount of the check ~ 
Mrs. SALAZAR. No; he didn't either. 
Senator CI-IILF..8. So she doesn't lmow what the amount was. Was 

it before or after she signed the other check ~ 
Mrs. SALAZAR. It was after. 
Senator CIflLES. Does she lmow how long after~ 
Mrs. SALAZAR. Two or three months, I think. 
Senator CHILES. I see. Thank you very much. . 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Chairman, for t1e record, I am lookmg 

. at ;a list of it'ems that were furnished me by our committee investi­
~ators, including some photographs, just as comparisons. Here is a 
$5,000 grant on a. house in your State, and it includes 10 items, new 
bathroom, new septic system, new roof, new hot water heaters, new 
kitchen base and sink, complete plumbing, new ceiling, new siding 
on outside, new windows, floors repaired as needed, at a total cost 
of $5,000. Sir, we have pictures of these, and for our record I would 
like them included. 

Senator CHILES. I think we will put them in at an appropri,ate 
place. This is in comparison with some of the pictures that you have 
in these northern New Mexico counties. 

Senator Dm:IENICI. We have one, just by coincidence, which is much 
more than $5,000 by up front piggybacking, not after the fact, where 
they replaced the roof and siding' of an entire house, including- a new 
front door, new gutters and downspouts, fO'r $9,400. I would like the 
record to reflect what that. looks like, in comparison. 

Senator CHIIJES. That's from Pennsylvania ~ 
Senator DOMENICI. This one is from Pennsylvania. 
Senator CHILES. We will place those in the record.1 

Senator DOl\:IENWI. 'TIhank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator CHILES. All right: Mr. Oastillos" would you raise your right 

hand~ 
Senator DOl\:IENICT. Senor CastillO's. 
Senator CHILES. Would you raise your hand, :Mr. Castillos. 
Do you swear the testimony you are about to' g-ive before the com­

mittee win be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so 
help you God ~ 

Mr. RUST. He understands no English, Mr. Chairman . 
Mr. CASTTLLOS. Yes. 
Senator DOM:ENIcr. Thank you. 

1 Retained in committee files. 
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Senator CHILES. Thank you. . 
Dr. LA VOR. Mr. Chairman, in the interest of time I will, then, do 

both of these cases together and I will present them at one time. 
The fir~t house belongs to Mrs. Mares, and she received a $4,800 

grant from Farmers Home to replace two doors that were in bad 
shape, replace rotted-out kitchen linoleum and living room floor, and 
to covel' wood floors, and replace frames in ki'tchen 'and living room, 
and replace six windows. That was $4,800. . . 

She received the second grant from the State hIghway authorIty 
to repair soffits and install electrical wiring, install new window~, ~nd 
paint interior. That was for $3,500, for a tota;l of $8,300. The ihUl14mg 
inspector didn't go to her house bec-ause she wasn't home at the tlm~. 
Let me just quickly run through and show you what was done to this 
house. 

These are the windows that she had originally in her house. They 
wero supposed to 'be r:ep.laced. This is ~hat she's gat. They were sI?aller 
windows, because tIllS .IS what the 'bUll del' had In ?tock, Sf! he sImply 
framed it in and filled m that area. These are 'the wIndows In the front 
of the house. The door was not replaced, and those are the fra~ed-in 
windows. This is what was supposed to have been replaced, It w~s 
not. This is the back door that was supposed to have been replaced, It 
wasn't replaced either. This is the roof in the kitchen, and it is a 
single wall and it is supposed to be a triple wall. I'm not sure of my 
terms, but this is improper, and if you will notice on the 'top it is 
not completely filled in and the roof leaks just above it. . 

This is the linoleum that was put in the bathroom, and you WIll 
notice there are three layers of linoleum. When I was at the house the 
'first time Mrs. ~fares picked up a piece of linoleum and went like that. 
That is when I took that picture. Instead of replacing or removing the 
rotted-out floors, they left the rotted-out floors, put some fiberboard 
over it, 'and covered it with this inexpensive tile. 

Now, the next house, the one of ~fr. Castinos. Mr. Castillos received 
a grant from Farmers Home to do the following: Repair roof, ceilings, 
floors, install kitchen cabinet, install new doors, install new floor 
coverings on all floors. That was $2,900. 

He received a second grant for $3,500 to, repair walls in two bed­
rooms, install new electrical wiring in dwelling, repair kitchen ceiling, 
and paint interior. 

As you can see, Mr. Chairman, the roof, it was not done. On the side 
of the house there is a hole in the attic which wasn't corrected, and 
there is a crack in the wall that wasn't fixed. 

Senator DO~fENICI. Who is the contractor on this ~ 
Dr. LA VOR. P. & P. 
Senator DOMENICI. On both of them? 
Dr. LA VOR. I'm not sure if it was-yes, it was on both of them. 
This was, there was some work done in the bathroom and this was 

the condition of the bathroom in June. 
This is the kitchen and you can see there was some patching done. 

This is the electrical wiring and you can see it is outside the wall, 
there are wires outside the waH which is a code violation. You will 
also notice that the waH with the patches is beginning to crack again. 

This is the same picture, but it shows the floor. The next picture, 
please, this is the condition of the floor less than 1 year later. This is 
the new floor. 
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This is another picture of the side wall. Thi~ flue is not ~egal: It 
should be a straight flue. The flue must be straIght up and It IS Im-
properly vented. . .. 

This is the overall room. These are the cabmets that were Installed, 
and you have some idea of what is t~ere. I think ~hat is the last sl~de. 

Mr. Chairman, the estimator saId, r?of repaIr, l?oor; elec~rlCal 
service, good; subfloor and floor coverIng, poor; kitchen cabmets, 
good; he estimated labor and materials a maximum of $3,025 out of 
the $6,400. 

Senator CHILES. Mrs. Mares, are you satisfied with the work that 
you had done? 

Mrs. MARES. No. 
Senator CHILES. Why not ~ 
Mrs. MARES. Because the first job they made over there, they went 

and put in. They made other frames and put them over the other ones. 
They never done anything else. 

Senator CHILES. So you ended up with less window than you had to 
start with. 

Mrs. MARES. So when they ¢ve me other money, the ne~ time, t~ey 
hire another man to do the Job 'and that's when they bUIld the WIn­
dows. There are supposed to be four windows. 

Senator CHILES. Do you know why Albert Garcia was unable to do 
the work on your house, as was originally planned? . 

Mrs. MARES. He said he was too busy, because I want hIm to go and 
do the job, you know. . 

Senator CHILES. Did you select P. & P. ConstructIOn Co. ? 
Mrs. ~RES. ]fo. 
Senator CHILES. This house, Mrs. Mares, appears to be in fairly 

good condition, as compared to some of the others we have seen today. 
Why would it take almost $9,000 to do the work if it had been done 
by-

Mrs. ~RES. They were supposed to fix the roof because it was leak­
ing, and they say they checked the roof and couldn't find any leaks, 
hut it was leaking, I told them it was leaking, but they didn't fi~ t~e 
roof or anything. They were suppose? to fix the bath, but th~y dldn t 
do it because they said they were gOIng to go back and do the work, 
and they never did went back. 

Senator CHILES. Thank you. 
Mr. Maese, I was asking why would it take $9,000 to do what should 

have been able to be done for less than $5,000? 
Mr. MAESE. If this was part of the development inspection, like 

originally planned, this house is pretty good sized, bigger tha.n most, 
it is better maintained than most of them. If you look at the work that 
was done, it was not part of the development work. 

Senator CHIr.lES. They did not follow the development plan? 
Mr. MAESE. No, sir. 
Mrs. MARES. It wasn't working. 
Senator CHILES. Who inspected this house? 
Mr. MAESE. Without looking at the file I couldn't tell you, right 

away, but she tells me that Robert Madrid did most of the inspecting 
on this house. 

Senator CHILES. We will hand you the file and while we are doing 
that let me go to Mr. Castillos. 
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Mr. Castinos, the pictures that we have seen make it appe!1r that ,an 
awful lot of work needs to be done to your house. Are you satIsfied wIth 
the work that has been done ~ 

Mr. CASTILLOS. He said that there was a lot of work that was done 
that was absolutely unnecessary or very poor and that some of the 
things come up that I can't remember. . 

Senator CmLES. Did he select P. & P. ConstructIon Co. ~ 
Mr. CASTILLOS. Yes; I think that's the same man, P. & P. 
Senator DOMENICI. The question was, did he select P. & P., or who 

d'de 
1 :Hr. CASTILLOS. No ; Madrid, that's the same man, P. & P. 
Senator CHILES. Did he say Mr. Madrid ~ 
Mr CASTILLOS. Did he say Mr. Madrid ~ Yes. e 
Se~ator DOMENICI. Mr. Maese, who inspected the Castillos house. 
Mr. MAESE. Robert Madrid. 
Senator DOMENICI. Robert Madrid ~ 
Mr. MAESE. Yes,sir. . 
Senator CHILES. We thank you very much for your testImony. 
We are going to recess the hearings now for an hour for lunch. We 

will start back promptly at 1 :30. 
Senator Domenici, I am going to have to catch a plane to g~ back to 

Washington. I want to ask you and Senator Melcher to contmue the 
hearing, if you will. . , 

Senator D01\fENICI. Thank you very much, Mr. ChaIrman, we 11 com­
plete them this afternoon. 

[Whereupon, the committee recessed at 12 :30 p.m., to reconvene at 
1 :30 p.m.] 

AFTER RECESS 

Senator MELCHER. The hearing will come to order. . 
This afternoon our first witness will be Drew Cloud, ~tate dIrector, 

Farmers Home Administration. He will be accompanIed by Frank 
Glover, Roberto Maese, Charles Knoop, John Handy, and Robert 
Madrid. .. t th 

Mr. Cloud, we understand' that you have gIven s.ome testImony 0 e 
grand jury. ~ e wi~l res~ect ~hose particular pOInts and not Intrude 
into the grand Jury InvestIgatIon. . 

Did you give any testimony, Mr. Glover, to the grand Jury~ 
Mr. GLOVER. No. . 
Senator MELCHER. I don't believe any of the rest of you have, Just 

Mr. Cloud. 
Please proceed. 

STATEMENT OF DREW CLOUD, ALBUQUERQUE, N. MEX., STATE 
DIRECTOR, FARMERS ROME ADMtNISTRATION 

Mr. CLOUD. Mr. Chairman and Senator Domenici, I have a short 
statement I would like to read to the committee. . . 

I am Drew Cloud State director for the Farmers Home AdmInIstra­
tion in New l\fexiCC:. Be assured that this agency will cooperate fully 
with the Senate Special Committee on Aging, and have been cooperat­
ing with your special committee. 
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It has been my pleasure to serve as Sta~e ~irec~or on two separa~ 
occasions' first from 1961 to 1968, and begmnmg In March 1979 until , . 
the present tIme. . .. . 

You will recall that the 1960's ushered In maSSIve socIal, economIc, 
and technological programs, the New Frontier, Rural Development, 
the space program, the war on poverty, food stamps, and many others. 
It was a time of dramatic action, a time of intensive effort to provide 
low-income people with basic necessities of life, including adequate 
income, safe, decent, sanitary housing, and proper nutrition" 

These were the conditions in 1964 when Farmers Home Administra­
tion activated a ·concerted effort to improve housing conditions in rural 
America, principally through the 502 homeownership and the 504 
home improvement pro~rams. 

FmHA's authority for making home improvement loans and/or 
grants was originally provided in section 504, title V, of the Housing 
Act of 1949. During tIDe 1950's and early 1960's, funding and program 
activity for 504 assistance were minimal. 

There is in my stat.ement a table showing the 504 loans and grants 
made in the State of New Mexico since 1964 until the present. You will 
note in that graph, Mr. Chairman, that approximately 82.1 percent of 
all the grants made iby the Farmers Home Administration have been 
in this four-county area of San Miguel, Mora, Rio Arriba, and Taos 
Counties. 

We reflect that we have had a total of 3,030 people helped during 
this period of time. These figures are reflected in the graph also. 

Many of these people receiving the 504 grants had no indoor plumb­
ing, their roofs leaked continuously, drafts turned the house into a 
refrigerator in the winter, walls were covered with newspaper, win­
dows and doors had no screens to keep out disease-bearing insects. 
The comforts of home taken for granted by millions of Ainericans 
were only dreams for thousands of rural New Mexicans before the 504 
program was available tolhelp them. 

The 15-year figures record tremendous g-rowth in the 504 program 
in New Mexico, from 1 loan and 47 grants in 1964 totaling $45,010, to 
83 loans and 211 grants amounting to $1,000,420 in fiscal year 1979. 
In 1964 the grant and loan funds were scarce. Maximum loan or grant 
or a combination of both was $1,000. 

We have another w.a;ph that will indicate the growth of our prob­
lem versus the growth of onr personnel: This is one of our problems. 
Between 1966 and 1976 we received no grant funds whatsoever. Funds 
for 504 grants to the elderly were made available in 1977. Loan au­
thority was increased from $1,000 to $2,500, to $3,500, to $5,000, then to 
the current combination of grant and loa.ns of $7,500. The maximum 
loan repayment period is 20 years, commensurate with the borrower's 
ability to pay. Interest is 1 percent. 

Two important statistics deserve special attention-total program 
volume and number of full-time FmHA personnel. Total program 
volume in 1964 was $6.3 million. The total number of full-time per­
sonnel was 79. The figures for 1979 were $110.1 million and 93 perma­
nent full-time personnel respectively. An increase of over 900 percent 
in program volume compared with a 11 percent. increase in personnel. 
Attached to my statement is an illustration of the ra,tio between pro-
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gram volume and available personnel FmHA-NM fo~ fiscal years 
1971-75 a peak period for 504 loans. Program volume Jump~d from 
$13.2 td $38.4 million, while total available personnel, full tIme and 
part time, actually decreased from 96 to 92. The facts speak for them­
selves. 

During the 1970's a number of inI?-ovati<?ns were .i~tr~uced .to co~e 
with tremendous program growth, Includmg partICIpatIOn WIth pn­
vate lenders, and other funding agencies, to stret~h availabl~ FmHA. 
dollars and use of gratuitous employees to allevIate excessIve work 
~~& •• 

In March 1978 a memorandum of understandmg was entered mto 
between FmHA' and the New Mexico State Housing Authority 
whereby home loan processors were assigned to 10 FmHA c~unty of­
fices to assist in our rural housing program. County offices Involved 
were Espanola, Taos, Las Vegas, Estancia, Los Lunas, Socorro, Albu­
querque, Silver Oity, Roswell, and Gallup. 

In 1978 the New Mexico State Legislature appropriated $200,000 
which funded 'a rural housing grant program to assist rural elderly 62 
vears of age or older. . 
v Home loan processors were re~ponsible for assisting in ~he adm~n­
istration of rerrular FmHA housmg programs, processIng side-by-side 
State grants fur housing projects cofunded by ~mHA and proc~­
ing State-only home' improvement grants. MaxImum for grant IS 
$5.000. . . 

The State pro~ram was not refunded by the State legIsla.ture In 
1979. Instead the Community Services Administration provided $200,-
000 for continuation of the grant program. 

Home loan processors at all times have been e.mployees o~ t~e St~te 
of New I\rIexico. subject to applicable ~tate laws ~nd ad~I!lIstratn:-e 
procedure. The New Mexico State Housmg AuthorIty admInIsters thIS 
housing assistance program. 

The concept of this mutual assistance agreement ~et~e~n Federal 
and State government~ is good . .t\s .has ~n the case In SImIlar under­
takings, actual operatIOn of the JOl~t asslstan~e program has clearly 
defined the difference between rhetorIc and realIty. 

It h~s been my policy while serving as St!lte Di~ect<?r for Farm~rs 
Home Administration to act as soon as pOSSIble to Institute correctIve 
measures when I become aware of specific problems. When I learned 
of deficiencies that oce-nrred following some 504 grants. I reviewed 
the problems with the district director and county supervisor. . 

Senator DOl\[ENICI. Drew. the State program was not refunded In 

1979. Do you know why. of your own know}edge ~ 
·Mr. Or"ouD. Senator Dunn waR the chaIrman of the Senate Appro-. 

priations Committee. He did not look on the program with favor. 
. Senator DOl\fENICI. ",Vas this program discontinued. as a R"eneral 

matter of prinriple or did they think it wasn't bein~ run well ~ 
Mr. CLOUD. In my brief discm:;sions with Senator Dunn, he just 

told me it was ,a maher of principle. 
Spnator DOMENTCT. Thank you, ~{r. Chairman. 
Mr. CLOUD. I rlirected the construction analyst for the St-ate office 

to review condit.ions flt each home and provide me wit.h a detailed 
report. I then assigned him to work on remedying the problems. 

" 
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When I became aware of the problems -concerning administration 
of the 504 program in San Miguel County, I requested an audit be 
conducted by the USDA's Office of Audit in Temple, Tex. This 'action 
was initiated, but is being held in abeyance pending the outcome of 
the Senate review. Results of the audit verified the need for adminis­
trative action. 

In retrospect, it is my sincere opinion that the 504 housing pro­
gram has brought much good to New Mexico. Without a doubt, it 
has improved living conditions land brought hope iand better health 
to thousands of elderly people in our State. The ratio of problem 
cases to good loans or grants is probably 150 to 1. We do not deny 
our mistakes made in administering the 504 program, but we are very 
proud of the role that Farmers Home Administration has played in 
helping low income, elderly, rural NI""V Mexicans .acquire decent hous­
ing, decent and sanitary housing. 

Thank you, Senator, and I will be happy to respond to any questions. 

ADDITIONAL STATEMENT OF DREW CLOUD 

Mr. Chairman, I wish to thank you and the other members of this committee 
for the opportunity to provide additional;estimony on the section 504: housing 
program in New Mexico. 

Farmers Home Administration is v~ry concerned about the plight of our 
Nation's elderly. Most of Farmers HOIne involvement in rural areas is with the 
low-income resident. We see firsthand the struggles facing a person or family on 
a fixed income. 

The section 504 housing program was designed for less fortunate citizens, 
to make their homes safe and sanitary. 

Across the Nation, the 504 program has been extremely successful. Our financ­
ing has replaced roofs -and kitchens, built bathrooms, and provided for proper 
ventilation and weatherization from Alaska to the Virgin Islands and Maine to 
Ha waH. It is a good program. 

A.s you are aware, our legal lending limits are $5,000 for a loan or grant, with 
a limit of $7,500 for a combination of both. I'm sure we are all very much aware 
of exactly how far $5,000 goes these days in the construction industry. Not very 
far. . 

New Mexico was not as fortunate as some other States like Florida and 
Pennsylvania to have CETA employees assigned to the rphabilitation jobs. Actions 
like these make these all-too-few dollars go so much further. 

I am not here to provide excuses for what ]\;11'. J.Ja VOl' uncovered in New 
Mexico. Some persons connected with Farmers Home and the 504 program may 
h.ave used poor judgment in carrying out their duties. There have heen problems, 
but fnll and complete investi~ations, audits, and the courts will decide what 
action needs to he taken. 

But these problems are not represf'ntative of the 504 program in New Mexico 
as well as the rest of the Nation. There are some more widespread documenta­
tion problems in New Mexico, which we are addreSSing. 

If this committee were to investigate the more than 3,600 10ans and grants 
made in New Mexico under this program, the committee would find, hy and 
large, many satisfied borrowers and recipients. But, alas, you would find some 
who are not. 

Many recipients don't fully understand our mandate of "safe ana sanitary" 
housing. They often have visions of their modest home converted to a beautiful 
house. We are often hampered by language difficulties, a situation even recog­
nized by Senator Domenici in his opening remarks. But the most important fact 
is inflution. Rising ('OE;ts have taken their toll on the 504 program. We often 
can't do all the work needed with $5,000. 

As I mentioned in earlier testimony, the increa~;ed workload on FmHA em­
ployees has been enormous. In this program 810n<". our growth from 1 loan and 47 
grants in fiscal year 1964 totaling $45,010, to 83 loans and 211 g.l\'lnts totaling 
$1,006,420 in fiscal year 1979 has placed a tremendous amount of pressure on 
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our emplO'yees. You must realize that our total program volume ha's grO'wn from 
$6 million to $110.1 million in the same amount of time. Since 1964, our staff 
has only grown by 14 employees. That is a 900-percent increase in program volume 
and a 17-percent increase in persO'nnel, resulting sometimes in less than desirable 
servicing pr'actices. 

In the 1970's, as we were experiencing such rapid growth, several innovations 
were introduced to FmHA. TheRe included participation from funding agencies 
to stretch FmHA funds and using gratuitous employees to alleviate excessive 
workloads. ~eo the average county supervisor this assistance was a godsend. 

It should be pointed out for the record, that testimony regarding FmHA's 
New Mexico 504 housing program at the Santa Fe hearing on October 8 was 
limited, by the SpeCial Committee, to the period after I, Drew Cloud, returned 
as State Director on March 17, 1979. There was no. discussion whatsoever of the 
critical period of time when the prO'lllems originated. 

Operation of Our 504 progr-am in north-central New Mexico counties changed 
substanti,ally after March 1978, when a memorandum O'f understanding was 
entered into between FmHA-NM and the New Mexico Planning Office. "Home 
Loan Processors" were assigned to FmHA county offices. Although these individ­
uals were invO'lved in prO'cessing housing applications that included FmHA 
grants and loans as well a'S State grants, their allegiance was to the New Mexico 
State Planning Office, which supervised and directed their activities, not the 
Farmers Home Administration. An in-depth inquiry intO' the 12-month time frame, 
March 1978 to March 1979, would have pr:ovided a much clearer picture of this 
entire matter. 

Also during that year the New Mexico State Legislature appropriated $200,000 
for rural housing grants to the elderly, with a maximum grant of $5,000. 

In 1979, Oommunity Services AdministratiO'n prO'vided $200,000 for the con­
tinuation of the legislatures' project. 

Soon after my appointment as State Director of FmITA in New Mexico, I 
became aware of deficiencies that were occurring in 504: grants. Action was 
taken to have a construction analyst review the problem projects and provide 
me wi,th a detailed report. I then assigned him to work on remedying these 
problems. 

When I became aware of the problems in San Miguel County, I promptly 
requested an official audit by FmHA. This action has been initiated but is being 
held in abeyance pending the outcome of this committee's actions. 

A number of firm actions have been taken since the October 8 hearing, County 
Supervisor Roberto Maese has been relocated from Las Vegas to Estancia, 
N. Mex., as an Assistant County Supervisor. Tom Ramsey, County Supervisor at 
Taos is being transferred to and placed in charge of the county office in Las 
Vegas. Mr. Ramsey is a seasoned, experienced FmHA Supervisor with an out­
standing record of accomplishments in program administration. 

Results of the audit will determine the administrative action necessary. We 
will abide by civil service regulations in this regard. . 

There has been criticism by this committee of promotions given to persons con­
nected with Farmers Home. One promotion was granted before I became FmHA 
State Director and the other promotion was granted under the merit promotion 
program, before the seriousness of the charges were known. 

I thank you for the opportunity to provide this additional testimony. I appre­
ciate your concern and look forward to the conclusions that will be drawn from 
this body. 

Senator ~1ELOHER. Mr. Cloud, I have got a personal question first. 
You were in this capacity.during what I take to be the I(ennedy­
Johnson years? 

Mr. CLOUD. Yes, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. Then you were reappointed as of ~1arch 1979. 

Wha~ were you doing between the time Jimmy Carter became Presi­
dent In 1977 and Iv.farch 1979 ~ Were you with Farmers Home ~ 

Mr. CLOUD. No, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. You accepted the post in March 1979 ~ 
Mr. CLOUD. Yes. 
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Senator ~CH~R. SO whatever has happened in the last year, year 
and a half WIth tlll~ program, was your direct responsibility? 

Mr. CLOUD. Yes, SIr. 
Senator MELCHER. Nobody else's? 
Mr. CLOUD. Right. 
Senator MELCHER. You are the "top dog" here in New Mexico in 

Farmers Home? 
Mr. CLOUD. Yes. 
Sen!1to,r MELCHER. You know, I have worked with Farmers Ilome in 

estabhshmg programs and funding for them ever since I came to Con­
fSress. I don't lmow whether you were here this morning for my open­
I!lg remarks, but I stressed the fact that Pete and I, and others in 
Congress, who come from States where agriculture is so important, 
really go to. b.at an~ hope that we can do some good for the Farmers 
Home A~m~nIstratIOn programs because they do so much for the entire 
communIty In so many areas. 

Now, 504 is a !elativ~ly small program. I know the problems the 
FmHA has ha~ In gettm~ perso!lnel. I went up and down that hill 
through th~ .N IXO~ admInIstratIOn, the Ford administration, the 
Carter admInIstratIOn, and have had only limited success with any of 
them.. It doesn't s~em to make any difference that I am a Democrat and 
;rresId~nt Carter IS a Democrat. I don't seem to have any more success 
In gettmg help fo: Farmers Home' Administration on personnel or soil 
c~:nservatIOn serVIce than I had with President Ford and President 
Nnwn. We have really gon~ to bat and we have done some good for 
you. You show t~at mod~st Increase that you listed in your testimony. 

I want to zero In on thIS prog~al?' I ~on't know any,thing about the 
rest of the Fa,rmers .H~~e AdmInIstratIOn programs In New Mexico, 
but I know thIS one Isn t In very good shape, 504. You are responsible. 

. Now~ you haye got three people here who are, I guess, county super­
VIsors, IS that rIght? 

Mr. CLOUD. Yes. 
. Senator MELCHER. Does that mean there are three counties involved 
In the 504 program ? 

Mr. CLOUD. No, sir. 
Sena~or MELCHE;R. Tell me about this, then, how many counties are 

we talkmg about WIth the 504 program? 
Mr. Cr:oUD. We have 504 programs in all counties, but the bulk of the 

problem IS there. 
Senator MELCHER. Are we talking about 90 per-cent? 
Mr. CLOUD. It is 82.1 percent. 
Senator MELCHER .. Eighty-two percent is in three counties. Let's talk 

about the personnel In those three counties, because if you don't have 
en~mgh personnel for the 504 program, it is obvious we h'ave to do some­
tlung. I understoo~ y~u to say this morning that you had two people 
~nder y~m who aSSIst In these programs, a whole ranO'e of programs 
IS that rIght? b, 

~1r. CLOUD. Yes, sir. 
Senator ~~E~CHE~. Are there just three of you for all the Farmers 

Home AdmInIstratIOn programs, or three of you just for housing 
programs? 
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Mr. MAESE. There are two of us for all the Farmers Home pro­
grams and one was for assisting in housing also, two clerks. 

Senator :MELCHER. f\JI right" I don't know ~ow many 504 pro­
gram grants you had In the past year and you thInk you had enough 
personnel to handle them ~ 

].\1r. MAESE. We had five grants in the past year. 
Senator MELCHER. And you had enough personnel to handle it ~ 
Mr. MAESE. Yes. 
Senator l\{ELCHER. I-Iow about 1979 ~ 
Mr. MAESE. I think we had enough. 
Senator MELCHER. So let's lay to rest the personnel problem. Let's 

zero in on why the personnel did nGt perform. Is it because it was out 
of hand when you got there in l\1arch 1979, and you just never caught 
up with it~ 

Mr. CLOUD. Senator, if I just back up a step. You are aware that 
the 504 program was reduced this past year and it was reduced even 
more in fiscal year 1981. Our records, that I picked up this morning, 
show that the Las Vegas office made six 504 grants last year, fiscal year 
1980, but it made 50 in Las Vegas in fiscal year 1979, 75 in 1978. 

Senator MELCHER.W e aren't going to talk about 1978 because we 
can't hGld you accountable for it. We will discuss 1979 with you. You 
had people worki~g with these prog.rams. I th~nk it could have bee?­
done. It is a questIOn of why they weren't qualIfied. ~Ir. Handy testI­
fied that he was not qualified and he was in that office then. 

Mr. CLOUD. I heard 1\111'. Handy testify, his testimony. Senator, I 
can't unde,rstand. Anybody that comes to work ~ith us re?eived ~x­
tensive training in our program. We have an ongOln~ full-bme tram­
inO' program in Kansas City that we send our supervIsors to. We have 
frgm two to four training sessions a year in-State, and we have a 
week set up in N ovemher for training on housing. 

Senator MELCHER. I don't mean you need these training programs, 
and obviously they don't ~ork, unless you. h.aye got somebody out there 
that is doing a job. That IS your responsIbI~Ity to kn?W wheth~r they 
are doing the job. I don't think you were dom,g your Job. That ~s your 
main responsibility, to know that these people are out there usmg up 
these Federal dollars, know at the time what they are doing with them. 
l\fy goodness, with all ,Your experience. with the Farm'~rs Home Ad­
ministration and all thIS process of ha vmg the money tIed up, so ~hat 
the person who is getting the grant has to sign, and the supervIsor 
has to sign, this is a time-tested procedure. f?r Farmers Home Ad­
ministration. You are well aware of why It IS done and the whole 
principle behind it. You know how effective it can be as long as tIfere 
is somebody that is cosigning that, that lmows what they ar~ domg. 

Now, I am not going to get into the. question ~f fr~ud w;,th you 
people, particularly because of the ongOIng grand Jury In,:estIgatlOn. 
There is no question under this procedure when th~ supervIs~r,.or the 
supervisor's deputy, has to sign that chec~, ~long WIth t?-e .re~Ip,Ient of 
the check, there is only one reason, derehctlO?- of duty If It.Isn t do~e 
rio'ht as in some instances we saw this mornmg. Your testImony thIS 
after~oon, that only 1 loan out of 150 wen~ sour, doesn't seem to be the 
case in 504, I am sorry to say. I hope that IS the general case through-
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~>ut the country. That isn't too bad. It doesn't seem to be the case here 
m 504. 

I ~m not going to as~ :rou. any more questions at this time because 
I thmk Senator DomenlCI WIll get more pertinent questions into the 
record. I may want to followup after that. 

Senator Domenici. 
Senator DOMENICI. May I say also that I don't know if in your 

stateme:r:t t~~ 151 figure w~s intended to mean that you really believed 
only 1 In ~i)0 of the .sectIOn 504 $5,000 grant programs were mis­
handled. I hope you dIdn't say ~hat. y~)U did s~y probably. 

Mr. CLOUD. We figure that smce t~IS .prof:;I'am was originated in 
~964 we h~ve helped 3.,000 people. It IS Just elementary if we broke 
It do~n--If you would look at those loans you were checking this 
mo!nmg, most of those were made before I came on as State director. 
It IS What I have been doing since I came on that I would like to defend. 

Se~ator DOME~ICI. Talso ,,:ant t? say, pre:v, I know you have a prob­
lem nght now w~th a grand JUry InvestIgatIOn. I am not going to pull 
?ut aJ~ tihe.se a1!.dIts we. have reVIewed afu..r we becwme involved in this 
InyestIgatIOn. 1. am gomg: to ten you, as hon~stly as I can, that I don't 
thInk very ~uch ~as bemg done t.o clean It up until very recently. 
I reapy can t beheve those two gentlemen who testified here this 
mornmg, both of whom have been up there for a long time. Now one 
ha~ been promoted and is in Gallup: He is not there any more. I can't 
beheye any real effort was made untIl very, very recently to get inspec­
tors In the fieJl~ who were doing the job right. I hope to. get it done 
now. I would hke before you leave, to the extent that you can fOol' you 
to tell us,. and I dGn't want it now, but shortly, just what 'is being 
done. I thmk S~nator Melcher has made the right point. W,B want to 
be able 0 COnVIIl!C~ ourselves that management decisions have been 
~ade whICh are gomg to )m2~ke this kind of tihing very, very minimal 
If ever. Then, we can go to Congress and push for program increases: 

I want to say to you also that I a.,qked you about the $200,000 at the 
Stat~ level, because I ~ant y.0u to know I hav~ told t~e people in State 
hOUSIng, that I .personally ~hmk the program, If run rIght, wiI[ succeed. 
I am gomg to Pennsy IvanI~, and I am goapg to FlGrida, and look at it, 
because what I have seen IS tremendous In terms of coordination. If 
I were to show y~u some ~f the pictures of what has happened to a 
home by proper pIggybackIngz and what has g:otten dOone with $9,000 
versus what We have :seen ~er~ III ~O homes, I thmk you will agree with 
me. If we ?an movE.' In tIns dIrectIOn we ought to do it. I told them I 
:would testIfy. before the State le'~~latu~e, to ask that they put money 
In for the State to make the reqUISIte actd-ons to o'et a good job done 
bu~ I am sure we a~e not going to get much sympathy there. We are not 
gOll1g to get any In t,he Congress either until we can tell them this 
progra!TI has .been straIghtened up. 'I 

Ha,:mg saId tha~, let me just ask you what are you doing right now 
to straIghten up thls progr3Jm ? 
. Mr. CLOUD. SenatGr, I asked our audit seetion to audit this program 
In those areas. I lu:ve now asked them to expand that audit to cover 
all progrwms, not Just 504. There is an ongoing investigation-now, 
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this is the audit section-tht::l'e is an ongoing investigation by the in­
vestigation division to see if there are any indictments that can be 
brought. I have been advised by counsel and by the Department's 
Farmers Home Administration to not make any personnel chang~s 
01' any actministratiy;e decisions until all of the evidence is in. ThIs 
is why we are treading water until the investigation is complete. 

In the meantime, I sent in a team of an assistant district director, a 
housing inspector, and three long-time career county supervisors into 
that office. I said that I wanted them to go over every loan there, 
every 504 loan, then go to the contractors and tell them that they 
have not fulfilled their obligations. This was done. The contractors 
have been less than cooperative. We plan on taking other decisions 
when the gran~ jury brings its fin~ings. Then we ~ill mak~ the. neces­
sary personnel changes. We are lrInd of stuck wIth the SItuatIOn we 
are in until the investigation is complete. 

Senator DOMENICI. There have been no personnel changes at this 
point~ 

Mr. CLOUD. That is right. 
Senator DOMENICI. And that is on the advice of whom ~ 
Mr. CLOUD. The housing chief in Washington and our.own counsel. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Maese testified this morning that he left 

the work in thE' field completely up to H '"',ndy and MadrId. They testi­
fied they weren't properly trained in {!"at respect. There is evidence 
that some of these homes were issued permits, others weren't. There 
is evidence some were inspected by building inspectors and some 
weren't. This was over a long period of time. Let me as~ you, why, 
in your opinion, does it take so long to find out those thIngs ~ 

Mr. CLOUD. Senator, this was called to my attention in 1979. The 
rural housing chief and I went and met with Ernest Coriz, the director 
of the Construction Industries Commission. We. agreed with him at 
that time-there had been some problems within the Construction 
Industries Commission. Mr. Coriz was also new. He agreed that he 
would inspect every house 'from that point forward. We .sent .a bul­
letin to the field and told all of our employees, from thIS pOInt on 
you are going to have licensed. contractors, licens~d plu~bers, license.d 
electricians, and you are gOIng to get State InSpectIOns. Now, It 
wasn't true before this. 

Senator' DOMENICI. My point is, as I read your own regulations, 
all of those were required before you did that. All you did was restate 
the law, restate the regUlations. 

Mr. CLOUD. Yes, sir; I did it as the State director. 
Senator DOMENICI. My question is how can it get that bad for that 

10nO" and we not find out about it. The State law says contractors have 
to be licensed. We have evidence that some aren't licensed. I under­
stand the State law says any constrl!ction work over $.500 must have 
the proper permit. I understand the Inspectors are reqUIred on numer­
ous phases, such 3:s e~ectrical, plumbing. yve ha:ve seen examples of 
supervisors both SIgnIng the checks and dI~burslI~g the money under 
circumstances where some or all of those InspectIOns were not com­
plied with. Isn't there within the bureaucracy a syst~m wh~ch would 
catch this very easily ~ If so, who should have caught It ~ Is It the guy 
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who runs the office ~n La~ Vegas or Mora County or Rio Arriba who 
should have caught It ~ Is It the county supervisor ~ 

. Mr. CLO~. Senator~ I think the buck stops at the Sta.te director. I 
dId catch .It. lir. Corlz came on new to correct the problems in the 
ConstructIOn Industries Commission and I came on new tOo correct 
them for the !-armers Home Administration. We are working to 
correct them rIght now. 

Senator DOl\{ENICI. 'Yell, you know, I really dOon't like to say this 
but I don't believe you. What is the date today 'and what year e ' 

Mr. CLOUD. The date is the 8th of October. . 
Senator DOl\IENICI. 1980 ~ 
Mr. CLOUD. Yes. 
Senator DOl\IENIC~. There haBD;'t been one personnell change other 

than M~. I!andy gOIng fro!ll an Inspector in. the field, where. he tells 
us he. dldn t ~mow how to Inspect. He has been made director of the 
office In lVlcI(mley County. To my knowledge at this point, there have 
been absolutely 1}0 other cha1,?-ges that I am aware of, of any substance. 
I have s~en the ~ndepth audIts that you have in your possession. You 
~av~ haQ bhe~ In your :possession for a long time. This is Octobe1r. 

on. t you thInk that aSIde from technical rules personnel changes 
are In order, Drew ~ , 

Mr. CLOUD. Yes; I do. 
Sena.tor DOl\fENICI. Tlutt ?-asn't been done yet ~ 
Mr. CLOUD. I have been dIrected not to do it until the investigations 

are comp~ete. There has been ,a gre.at change that isn't visible here. 
The confhct-and there was a confhct-between the State employees 
and the Federal employees to where apparently our employees were 
~old that the Sta~e .en~pl<~yees w.ould go out and pretty well run the 
004 program. Tl;IS IS IndICated In the records. Now that I am State 
dIrector, we don t have those gratuitous employees. I have gone back 
~hthe ;Fedeba1 employees and said, look, tpis is your responsibility. 

ere IS no 0 y else that you can pass thIS on to. You have got to 
make the loan, you. h,aye got to inspect the loan or grant. It is abso-

flute~y your responsIbIlIty 'and you are going to have to be responsible or It. 
Senator DOMENICI •. You debarred P. & P. Construction ~ 
Mr. OLOUD. Yes, SIr. . 
Senator DOMENICI. Now it is J. & P. Construction e 
Mr. CLOUD. The debarment still stands. • 
Senator DOMENICI. J. & P. debarred ~ 
Mr. CLOUD. Yes, sir. 
Senat.or Do.ME~~TCI. Let me, Mr. Chairman move to the other wit-

nesses, If you WIll. ' 

Senator MELCHER. Ceriainly. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. I-Iandy how long did you work in the 

Farmers Home Office in Las Veg~s ~ 
Mr. If ANDY. About 2 years. 
S~nadtor DOMENICI. Would you describe the traininO' that you 

receIve to prepare you for this job ~ EI 

b·M\!IANDY. ,The lack of.training that I referred to was in the reha-
1 I a lOn, not In new hOUSIng or anything else. I am not a ware of any 
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programs that we have for strictly rehab, which, I believe, is probably 
necess~,ry because it is quite a bit different from new construction and 
from anything else that we do. . . 

Senator DOMENICI. So you stand by your statement thIS mornIng 
that you were not properly trained to do this kind of insp~ction ~ 

Mr. RANDY. Yes, sir. I had not worked on 504 at all before I came 
to Las Vegas. 

Senator 10MENICI. Well, ~Ir. Handy, we are trying to find out this 
afternoon how we can improve this program, how.we can make ~t work. 
Why do we have the problems we have in thIS program, In your 
opinion ~ . .. . . 

Mr. fIANDY. The program IS lImIted In the amount of funds It can 
supply. A great number of ~~P" houses I hav? seen 504 .u~ed o~ could 
not be brought up to a tot!1iiy safe and sanItary condltron WIth the 
amount of funds that arp.availahle, $5,000 or $7,500. What we do in 
Gallup, HUD can come in there and grant up to $15,000. They can 
make low'interest loans. We can augment their funds. Some of those 
houses can receive $24,000, $25,000 in grants alone. That way the 
houses can be brought up completely to standards. 

The people there, tlwt work on those, are natives of the area, the guy 
that does the work has been in construction all his life and tha.t is what 
he is doing. I have learned a great deal from him. 

Senator DO~IENICI. I understand. One of the thoughts going through 
my mind is, it is awfully difficult, to repair some of these houses, and 
certainly awfully difficult with only $5,000. I read the regu1ations very 
carefully. They sent them down to the offices, the fie1d offices, the 
Washington office. There is one which says, right out, that you don't 
approve a grant unless at the time you are finished with it, the house 
is sanitary and healthy. Right from the beginning grants WL.re being 
made apparently to homes that didn't meet this criterion. That is true, 
isn't it ~ 

l\fr. HANDY. That is true. 
Senator DOMENICI. There are plenty of homes which need help in the 

area, aren't there ~ 
Mr. 'HANDY. Yes,sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. If you didn't nick one, you could find five others, 

couldn't you, that are looking for help ~ 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. Our staff working on tllis matter indicated to 

us you often helped Robert Madrid when he was very busy. What lrinds 
of thin~s did Robert Madrid ask you to do for him ~ 

Mr. HANDY. Inspections mostly. 
Senator DO~IENICI. Did you ever teII him, or your supervisor, that 

you felt inadequate in doing inspections of this type ~ 
Mr. IIANDY. I don't know whether I specifically t01d them, but 

Bobby and I both felt that we weren't qualified 011 rehabs. 
Senator DO:M:ENICI. Well, when you talked wit,ll our people, you said 

a lot of the things you were asked to do by Robert Madri~ you n~w 
think were a mistake. What did you mean by t.hat ~ What IS a "mIS­
take" about the things you were asked to do and did ~ 

Mr. HANDY. Well, \vhat we are here for right now, having to ex­
plnin all these things we did. 
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Senator DoMENICI. Do you mean such as doing inspections for him 
when you shouldn't have ~ 

Mr. HANDY. Right. 
Senator DOMENICI. What else ~ 
Mr. HANDY. That is the main thing right there, the inspections. 
Senator DOMENICI. What was mistaken about that ~ I don't under-

stand. 
Mr. HANDY. I should not have kept doing them if I knew I wasn't 

qualified. 
Senator DOMENICI. So you shouldn't have done your own, and you 

compounded it by helping him out by doing some for him ~ 
Mr.lIANDY. The ones I did were 502, new houses, where I feel, I am 

well qualified. 
Senator DOMENICI. Your own job you felt qualified. in, and when 

you went and helped on this you didn't. What you mean by a mistake ~ 
~rr. HANDY. Right. 
Senator DOMENICI. Do we have a document here we wanted him to 

look at~ 
We will give you these two. Look at the signatures. I want you to 

tell me 'about them. 
You have a bank signature card there in front of you and two 

checks. The checks appear to be signed by different people, is that 
rig-ht ~ 

Mr. HANDY. Yes, it appears that way. 
Senator DOMENICI. Look at all three signatures there in front of 

you. Did you sign Juanita l\fadrid's signature on the bank card or on 
ei tl";er of the checks ~ 

lUI'. HANDY. No, sir, I did not. 
Senator DOMENICI. Would you look at them. I will ask you the same 

question. Did you sign Juanita liadria's signature on the bank card ~ 
Mr. HANDY. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. And on either of the checks ~ 
1\ir. HANDY. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Knoop, how many contractors have you 

debarred in Rio Arriba County ~ 
Mr. KNOOP. We never have went to' a debarment proceeding on any. 
Senator DOMENICI. Irow do you disciplllle contractors that do 

shoddy work up there ~ 
Mr. KNOOP. "Ven, the one that we have had the worst trouble with 

is no longer in the construction business. As far as I am concerned, he 
will never do any more work. 

Senator DOMENICI. You ean correct, me if I am wrong, but in re.view­
ing our file of the Senate committee, I detect the problem cases which 
have been dis('overed in Rio Arriba County have been discovered 
either by auditors, or internal auditors, after the fact, many times 
months after .. II}- your county, these cases were reported in the news­
pa pers. If thIS IS correct, and maybe you will want to challenge my 
statement, t.ell me why they weren't found by you in your office ~ 

Mr. KNOOP. I don't be-Heve that is correct. We were very much aware 
of this problem up north before t;he newspapers ever got a hold of it. 
A contractor was terminated on these jobs. One of the jobs, the con­
tractor wasn't even allowed to start the job. This cuntractor was ter-
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minated on all four j09s and he was never allowed to complete any 
of the four contracts he had. 

Senator DOJ.\fENIOI. Who was that ~ 
Mr. KNooP. He ran under the license of L. & W. Oonstruction 00. 
Senator DOMENIOI. Is this the one who left the State ~ 
Mr. KNooP. Yes; the other instances we have had trouble with con­

tractors, some of them were unlicensed, and we are not allowing any 
unlicensed contractors to complete any work at this time. 

Senator DOMENIOI. Then you must. have allowed them at some time 
if you ion't let them now. Why did you ever let them ~ 

Mr. KNOOP. In certain areas, it was very difficult to find a good li­
censed contractor to do the work, so these are members or friends of 
the family that do construction work that aren't licensed, who com­
pleted the work. They are very difficult to find. 

Senator DOMENICI. JHr. Knoop and Mr. Maese, have either of you 
received any new -directives 01' tightened procedures since these prob­
lems were revealed in the audits and the investigation @ You answer 
first,Mr. Knoop. 

Mr. I(NooP. I believe we have, from the standpoint of requiring a 
licensed contractor. Also) signing our construction contracts whereby 
40 percent of the funds are withheld until the job is completed, final, 
and the family is satisfied with the work, and FmHA ha;s signed out 
finally on the work, 40 percent of the person's funds are withheld. 

We did recently have a licensed contractor, who was licensed, that 
balked at that requirement, and he was doing shoddy work, and he is 
no longer going to fulfill that type of contract, because he can't live 
witih. the 40 percent withholdment of funds until he gets done. 

Senator DOMENIOI. :Mr. ~Iaese @ 

Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir, we have had some tightening up instruction 
from both the District Director and the State office, including touoo­
ing base with our building contractors in our area and it has helped. 

Senator DOMENIOI. Oould you tell me why you think you have so 
many problems with 504 progTam @ 

Mr. MAESE. At the time I was transferred back to Las Vegas, there 
were 107 applications, and there was another batch of applications 
that had heenapproved since the year ·before, and the grants had been 
awarded and they were stiU under construction. 

I didn't know the extent of what training the people had. The only 
think I knew is that they had been in our office longer thMl, since I 
had been gone and, also, ther~ was a lot of construction going on. 

At that point, I talked to my district office and discus~ed the possi­
bility of getting additional help, and a lot of these problems that 
were going on at the time were already under constructio'1 when I 
moved in. 

The other reason I wasn't aware of a lot of the problems is that 
~he people never complained to me in my office. According to the 
mstruction, if we do not hear a complaint, we take it for granted 
the people are satisfied. 

Senator DOMENIOI. Are you charged with the responsibility of 
keeping a file on each of these 504's in your office in the county ~ 

Mr. MAESE. Y 88, sir. 
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Senator DOMENICI. Some of them didn't even have a signed con­
tract with the contraotor, isn't that right ~ 

Mr. MAESE. I don't think any of them did. 
Senator DOMENICI. How do you expect anyone to enforce anything 

against a contractor without 'a contract ~ 
Mr. MAESE. We discussed that on one of the audits in 1979, because 

there was an ongoing one when I was transferred in and we discussed 
that with the auditor. They said on a proposa:l, if it's 'accepted, once 
you make $1 payment, it is considered a contract. 

Besides tha,t, most of these 504's, SenatOl.', according to the regula­
tion, they bring in their own people to do the work, and they have 
a choice to either to contract method or borrower method. 

SenatoT DOMENICI. I undersband. The files clearly reflect whether 
they had a contractor or whpther they were doing it themselves. I am 
only concerned that we can't get these homes repaired. One of the 
reasons is, the contraotor is telling us he doesn't have a contract 
with anyone. Certainly he doesn't have one with Farmers Ifome, isn't 
that correct, at least not an open contract @ 

There might be some implied commitment, but he doesn't have one 
with the owners, unless it's the way you say. 

Mr. MAESE. The agreement is done :;etween the owner and the man 
doing the work, be he a contractor or otherwise. 

Senator DOMENICI. I understand. 
Mr. MAESE. Weare not part of the contract. 
Senator DOMENICI. WaIt a minute now. You live up there. You have 

seen the kind of people we 'are trying to help. You saw some right 
here today. Don't you think you have a responsibility to help these 
people, many of whom can't read English ~ They don't know about 
sigming a contract or not signing one. 

You are saying that's not your responsibility ~ 
Mr. MAESE. No, sir, I didn't say that. Like I said before, a lot of 

~hese were closed and under construction prior to me being transferred 
In. 

My instruction has always been in my office and any office I have been 
in, to have a preconstruction conference with the owner and the con­
tractor or the men doing the work under the borrower method and 
agree on what is going to be done. 

When I was transferred into that office, I didn't find any on the 
cases I remember. The two cases that came to me and asked if they 
could do the work and change it from the contract method to the bor­
rower method, I did revise the development plan and I did have a 
preconstruction conference. 

Senator DOMENICI. How long have you been in charge of the office ~ 
Mr. MAESE. I was transferred back to Las Vegas in October 1978. 
Senator DOMENICI. October 1978 ~ 
Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir. ' 
Senator DOME:t·ncr. Are you telling the committee from that time to 

this, on all of these 504's, you actually had preconstruction conferences 
with Farmers Home personnel, contractor, and owner in attendance ~ 

Mr. MAESE. I said there was just a few. 
Senator DOMENICI. What happened to the rest of them ~ 
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Mr.lVIAEsE. I don't know, sir. I wasn't there. . g 
Senator DOMENICI. So it would be prior to that, you are saYIng. 
Mr. MAESE. Yes, sir. 'H g 
Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Glover, what do you do for Far!TIe:r: some. 
Mr. GLOVER. I am District Director for the northern dIstrIct. 
Senator DOMENICI. Wbat does that mear: ~ . 
Mr. GLOVER. I have supervisory capacIty over nIne county super­

visors, in the northern part of the State 'lnd eastern pa:r:t . 
Senator DOMENICI. In laymen's language, then, In. between Mr. 

Cloud and field offices such as the one Mr. ;Maese runs In ~he c:ounty, 
you are the next boss up and you have nIne such counties; IS that 
correct~ 

Mr. GLOVER. Yes, sir. '. . 
Senator DOMENICI. Are these three, San MIguel, RIO ArrIba, and 

Mora under your supervision ~ . 
Mr. GLOVER. Yes, sir, that's two county offices Invol,:"ed. 
Senator DOMENICI. How long have you been in that Job? 
Mr. GLOVER. Since November 5, 1979. \ 
Senator DOl\IENICI. Where were you before that ~ 
Mr. GLOVER. Las Cruces. 
Senator DOMENICI. What was your job there ~ 
Mr. GLOVER. I was assistant district director. . 
Senator DOl\fENICI. Are you aware of? or have :you receIyed.any new 

authority directions, or procedures, deSIgned to tighten up thIS system 
since you have been in charge ~ 

Mr. GLOVER. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOllIENICI. What are they ~ 
Mr. GLOVER. Before I went into the job, I made a trip f;o northern 

Rio Arriba County with the State Director and the housmg people, 
the county supervisor, a construction analyst, and an O.I.G. audItor 
and reviewed the problems that were there. . 

We discussed at that time that there. was a need for tIghter deyelop­
ment plans, more detail on the development. plans, and some ~Ind of 
drawing to show what work was planned to be done, and that mspec­
tions should be made based on that development plan and thm:e ~raw­
ings where anybody that was inspecting it would have enough In the 
file to look at the development plan, and any bids that then were 
there, and determine what work was to be done. . . 

We also discussed at that time the need for wrItten. cont~acts W:lth 
contractors. Subsequently, the audit was completed In RIO ArrIba 
County. The State Director requested my comments o~ tI~e .a!ldlt. 

One of my comments, which he pass~d ~n to th~ auqlt. QIYISlOn, was 
that we would meet with the constructIOn l1!du~trles .dIVISlO? to deter­
mine their procedures and try to get .ours ~n hne with. theIrs. I~ the 
meetinO' he spoke of awhile ago, meetmg WIt.h Mr. COrIZ, I was In on b • 

that meetmg. . . 
After the meetinO' we did get out a State instructIon whIch, you all 

were saying a whil~ ago, restated the instruction. It does more than 
restate the instruction. 

Senator DOMENICI. Tell us. 
Mr. GLOVER. Our Farmers Home instruction says that work can .be 

done by the contract method or by the borrower method. The State In-
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struction that was put out by Mr. Cloud says that work can be done 
by the contract method or by the borrower method if the borrower 
himself does the work in accordance with what Mr. Coriz told us the 
State of New Mexico required, or there had to be a variance issued by 
the C~>nstruction Industries Commission prior to any other work being done In any other manner. 

Senator DOMENICI. That last one seems to me, from the little bit I'1j1q 
s~en, to be totally unnecessary. The only good ones we've seen are wher. 
they did it themselves. Now we are making it more difficult because 
we don't want unlicensed people doing the work. 
~r. GLOVER. F'O,r myself and, I think, for Farmers Home adminis­

tration, I agree WIth you. However, when we talked to Mr. Coriz his 
interpretation of the State law ~ that unless the person, himself, q~ali­
fied for the homeowner's permIt, and could do the work himself the 
homeowner's permit could not be issued. ' 

Mr. Cloud asked Mr. Coriz a question at that meeting of a case 
where a grandmother had a grandson that would do the work could 
she do it under a homeowner's permit, and Mr. Coriz's answ~r was "No." 

Senator DOMENICI. Well, that won't get better work done from wl1at I've seen. 
Mr. GLOVER. No, sir. 

Senator DOllfENICI. Who was running the Las Vegas office before 1\-11'. Maese went there ~ 
11!fr. GLOVER. J De Gurule. 
Senator DOMENICI. Where is he now ~ 
Mr. GLOVER. He's in our State office in the farmer program section. 
Sen.ator DOllfENIC~. So if Mr. Maese says he came there and inherited 

all thIS, the person Just ahead of him was the gentleman we just re­ferred to, is that correct ~ 
Mr. GLOVER. Yes, sir. 

Senator DOMENICI. Has he been promoted Upward? Is that what happened to him? 
Mr. GLOVER. Yes, sir. 

Senator DOMENI~I. Did you ask him, :qrew, wf1at happened in that 
office when he was In charge 'Of terms of InspectIOns and the kinds of things you are ordering now? 

Mr. CLOUD. Yes: I have, sir, and he was moved there, of course, be­
fore I ~3;s on board. The orders of the day were to get those loans made 
and tlus IS why we have had to come back: in and tighten them back up. 
Se~ator DOMENICI. Robert, let me just ask you a couple questions. 1Vho IS Edward Madrid ~ 
Mr. MADRID. fIe is my brother.-
Senator DOMENICI. Is he a contractor of any type ~ 
Mr. MADRID. He's a journeyman electrician . 
Senator DOMENICI. So he is not a licensed contractor but he is an electrician ~ , 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 

Senator DOMllNwr. Has he ever done any of the work on any projects which you've been involved in ~ 
Mr. MADRID. He did one of the jobs for P. & P. 
Senator DOMENICI. Do you remember which one ~ 

79-347 0 - 81 - 6 

.-~-~-~~----.------ --



" , 

~. 

" 

70 

Mr. MADRID. Georgia Ortega. 
Senator DOMENICI. Did he do all the wiring on that home ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I don't think so. I don't remember. . . 
Senator DO~IENICI. We have evidence here. There IS a receIpt for 

$125. Do you know what it is for ~ 
11r. MADRID. Well--
Senator DOMENICI. Is that the bill to do the Ortega work ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I suppose so, sir. 
Senator D01\IENICI. Do you know ~ If you don't know, you can tell 

us you don't know. 
~[r. MADRID. I don't. FIe dealt with P. & P. on this. . 
Senator DOMENICI. So if he had an arrangement to do work, It 

would have been with P. & P. on that job, is that what you are 
saying~ . 

Mr. MADRID, Yes, S1r. • . d 
Senator DOMENICI. There is one more here for some materIal charge 

to P. & P. Would you look at it and just tell us, if you can, what 
that's all about ~ .' 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir; P. & P. asked me to pIck up some pault. I 
picked it up for him. . 

Senator DOMENICI. So the contractor asked you to get some. paInt 
for him and that's the receipt in front of you ~ 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. You signed for it ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 2 
Senator DOMENICI. What did you do with that. 
Mr. MADRID. I gave it to P. & P. . 
Senator DmIENICI. Is that for one of these Jobs ~ 
~{r.MADRID. Yes, sir. . ~ 
Senator DOMENICI. Do you remember wInch one. 
~{r.MADRID.~o,sir. . I I f 
Senator DOMENICI. Was this something you dId regu ar y or con-

t.ractors, as an employee of the State and Farmers Home ~ 
Mr. MADRID. ~o, sir. .. . 2 
Senator DOMENICI. This was an exceptIOnal sItuatIon.. . 
Mr. MADRID. I just did it this time. H~ asked me to do It for him. 
Se.nator DOMENICi. Thank you, Mr. OhaIrman. . 
Senator :MELCHER. Mr. Madrid, ther~ are a number of qnestIOns 

regarding your participation in this WhICh we l;eed to J::ave answhred. 
As I understand from what you told us thIS mornIng, you 3:ve, 

for a number of years been a housing specialist for the State hOUSIng 
and rural development authority ~ 

~1r.MADRID. Yes,sir. . 
Senator MELCHER: Is that about 3 years ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. f d te t f 
Senator MELCHER. "V ould you tell us the nature 0 an. ex n 0 

your training ~ This morning, I don't recall whether you dId or not. 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator MEl"Cl·TER .. vVhat is it ~ , 
Mr. MADRID. I went to training in Rio Arriba Oounty, I don t know 

how many months it. was, maybe 2. 
Senator MEl,CHEll. Two months ~ 
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;Mr .. MADRID. Yes, and we were taught how to process all housing ap­
plIcatIOns through the Farmers flome. 

Senator }fELCHER. Does that have anything to do with recognizing 
building flaws and quality of work ~ 
. Mr. ~DRID. ~ 0, sir. ""Ve never got to--I never got to see construc­

tIon. 
Senator MELCHER. Have you ever worked on construction or 

building~ 
~{r. ~DRID. ~ 0, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. So other than training in the pa,perwork how 

to handle th~ forms, you weren't trained to recognize whether ~r not 
the constructIOn was done in a proper manner ~ 

Mr. ~DRID. ~ 0, sir . 
. Senator l\fELCHER. I assume you are still handling home rehabilita­
~IOn grant for the State hOUSIng and rural development authority; 
IS that correct? 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
S~nator MELCHER. You told us this morning, I believe, and correct 

:n:e If I am wrong, that your first cousin, is Pete GalleO'os. Is that 
TI~¥ ~ 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. . 
Senator. ~tIEr~CHER. Did you tell Mr. l'Iaese at allY time that you 

were not dIrectly related to Pete Gallegos ¥ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 

. Senator ~fELCIIER. Did you tell him your wife wa'j a distant rela-
tIve of Pete Gallegos ~ 

Mr. ~DRID. ~ 0, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. Is she ¥ 
Mr. l'IADRID. ~ 0, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. Are you related to Juanita Madrid ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. v\rhat is the relationship ~ 
Mr. M.ADRID. She is my grandmother. 
Senator MELCHER. Are you related to Jose Flores ¥ 
Mr. ~DRID. No, sir. 
Senator l'IELCHER. Are you related to Tobias Flores ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. How ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I-Ie's my uncle. 
Senator MELOHER. Are you related to Maris Galiz ~ 
Mr. MADRID. ~ 0, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. Are you related to Modesta Galiz ¥ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir, she is a great-aunt. 
Senator MELCHER. Are you related to Aurelia Ortez ¥ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir, she is a great-aunt. 
Senator MELCHER, Are you related to Delfinio Pacheco g 
Mr. MADRID. ~o, sir. . . 
.Senator MELCHER. Did you arrange grants for all of the above that 

I Just llamed ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. How did you arrange those grants ~ 
Mr. MADRID. People applied for the grants and I processed them. 
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Senator ::MELCHER. You processed them ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator ::MELCHER. You were not told, as part of your job, that proc~ 

essing grants for your relatives had anything 'Yrong with it. ~ . . 
Mr. MADRID. I didn't think there was anythIng wrong WIth It, SIr. 
Senator ::MELCHER. You weren't told there was ~ Nobody has ques~ 

tioned that ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No. 
Senator MELCHER. You weren't warned that it may be improper ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator ::MELCHER. Would anybody else have processed those grants 

if you did not ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Excuse me, sir ~ 
Senator MELCHER. Would there be anybody else to process those 

grants if you did not ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator ::MELCHER. There would be ~ 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. . . 
Senator ::MELCHER. Have all the elderly that have applIed f~r thIS 

type of assistance been granted assistance and been able to get It ~ 
Mr. MADRID. The majority of them, sir, have. 
Senator MELCHER. The majority, but not all ~ 
:Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. Did you direct any grants to Pete Gallegos, your 

cousin~ , 
Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
Senator :MELCHER. Why ~ 
Mr. MADRID. People couldn't find contra~tors and we were pretty 

busy at the time, all the contractors were tIed up and he asked me­
they would ask me if there were any contractors, and I referred Pete 
to go talk to them. . 

Senator MELCHER. Did you ever tell a grant applIcant that the gr~nt 
would be likely to be approved if they selected P. & P. ConstructIOn 
Co. ~ 

Mr. ~1.ADRID. No, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. You never did that ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No. 
Senator MELCHER. Did you just send P~te Gallegos to the home of 

some of Hle recipients without even consultIng them ~ 
Mr. MADRID. They asked me if I could send a contractor over and I 

have done this with many contractors. . 
Senator MELCHER. My question wasn't exactly that

1 
Mr. ~a~rl,d. 

Did you send Pete Gaflegos over ~o the homes of. s~me of the reCIple:nts 
without even consultmg or talkmg to the recIpIents about sendIng 
Mr. Gallegos to see them ~ 

Mr. MADRID. No, sir. . 
Senator MELCHER. You have never done that: all right. DId you 

actually make all the inspections, land I think we have 2~7 .that '!1re 
credited to you by the Las Vegas Farmers Home AdmIllistratIOn 
Office~ 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
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Se:t;ator MEL?HER. Have you received any specialized training in­
spec~Ing home I~provement work~ I think yoOU have answered that 
prevIOusly by saYIng no, you had not ~ 

Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. OK. 
Mr. MADRID. I've had training in the paper, yoOU know. 
Mr. MELCHER. PaJ?erwork, but not actual rehabilitation ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No. SIr. 
Senator MELCHER. Not the actual work that would be done in eonstruction ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. Lt was ?n:the-job training. 
Senator MELCHER. If fa reCIpIent suggests a change in their devel~ 

opment plan, what needs to be done to revise the work plan ~ 
~ir. MADRID. The development should be revised. 

. Sen~t<?r ~ELCHER. How do you do it ~ You say you've had on~the~ 
Job traInIng In the construction part, but yoU were sent to school for the 
paperwork. I would assume that paperwork part would include how 
you change these job descriptions. Can you tell us how that is done ~ 
.. lV!-r. MADRID. Any new development WoOuld have been written up and 
mltlaled by the co~tractor and the applicant and myself or a Farmers 
Home representatIve. / . 
~enator MELCHER. Either yourself or Farmers Home, not neces­sarIly both, correct ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I would imagine Farmers Home would have to sign. 

. Senat<;>r ~iELCHER. We seem to have had some problems this morn­
Ing E.ndlng that, a1}Y change in the development plan for the first 
home we looked at I~ the slide presentation, if you recall. 

Mr. MADRID. Yes, SIr. 
Mr. MELpHER. Do you know what the regulations require, to mlake 

a chanf{e In the development plan ~ Are yoOU familiar with those regulatIOns ~ 
:Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator MELOHER. That w~sn't part of the paperwork training ~ 
Mr. MADRID. I was aware If ,a development had to be changed it 

had to be signed by all parties involved. ' 
Senator MEr"?HER. When you ~articipated in these changes, did you 

make an entry In the case file notIng such a ciliange and describing the change that we made ~ 
Mr. MADRID. No, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. You just initialed somethino- ~ 
Mr. MADRID. A proposal was issued on it and the development plan wasn't changed. 

. Senator MllLCHEH .. I asked. you this morninO' whether you ever prof­
Ited from any of thIS, and this is a similar question, practically the same. 

'Ifave you eyer been offered a kickback from a contractor who 
wanted ~o r~celve work ~ 1-~ave you ever been offered anything in the 
terms of a kICkback or pront to you personally 2 

1\11'. MADRID. No, sir. . 

Sen.a~or ;MELCHER. M~r. Handy, Y~l~ said J:'ou are not qualified for 
reh!1blhtatlOn work, but you are qualIfied for Inspection on new homes Is tnat what you told me ~ . 
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Mr. HANDY. Yes. . 
Senator MELCHER. This puzzles me. You know constructIOn well 

enough, you think, to approve new construction. What amounts of 
loans are you talking about ther~ ~ 

Mr. HANDY. On new constructIOn ~ 
Senator MELCHER. Yes. . 
Mr. HANDY. At that time, they ran $30,000. . .., 
Senator ~1Er.CHER. You think you can tell good constructIOn If It s 

new, but you can't tell good rehabilitation work~ . 
Mr. HANDY. This rehabilitation is not the same type of constructIOn 

as new eonstruction. You !have adobe, you have railroad ties, a great 
deal of different things involved. 

Senator MELCHER. In the case of :Mrs. Maestas, which we went 
through very thoroughly, because it was the first one v:e dealt witp. 
this morning, P. & P. said they spent $2,500 for mateI'lals. What IS 
there about your qualifications that couldn't verify whether or not 
they spent $2,500 for materials ~ 

Mr. HANDY. I don't suppose there is anything. 
Senator MELCHER. You can do that, can't you ~ . 
Mr. HANDY. Yes, they could have brought me the receIpts. 
Senator MELCHER. They did not then ~ 
Mr. HANDY. :~o. 
Senator J\fELCHER. And you never requested them ~ 
Mr. HANDY. No. 
Senator MELCHER. What is there about qualifications that has any­

thing to do with your la:ck of qualifications, that you don't demand to 
see what the materials are ~ 

Mr.lliNDY. Nothing. 
Senator MELCHER. r think that's a copout, to say you are unquali­

fied. I don't know if that is some sort of a defense for you or not. 
I don',t know how you can give those checks without knowing what 
you are signing for. 

There is no ~'armers Home Administration program I am aware of 
that when any of their employees signs a check, they aren't liable and 
responsible for the expenditure of that fund being 'proper, according 
to your own regulations. 

Are you going to tell me, you are going to testify to me that you 
are not qualified to properly sign those checks ~ Is that the extent of 
your testimony ~ 

Mr. HANDY. No. 
Senator MELCHER. You were qualified to make that judgment, were 

you not~ 
Mr. HANDY. Well, like I said, I didn't know how to look at a rehab 

house and know exactly whether it was done right or how much 
money should have been spent on it. I could have verified all the 
receipts, that's right, but I couldn't verify the l,abor. 

Senator 1vIELCHER, I am letting you off the hook on the labor, but 
I let P. & P. off the hook on the labor. I didn't even ask them what 
the~ charged. They volunteered that half of it was materials, so 
obVIously the other half is labor. 
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Senator DOl\oIENICI. ~fr. Chairman, the regulations require docu­
mentation on labor. 
. Senato~ MELCHER. I am sure they do, but I am sure that Mr. Handy 
IS a qualIfied person for Farmers Home A dministration to look at 
the receipts for materials and to look to see where those materials are 
placed. 

Mr. Cloud~ 
Mr. CLOUD. Yes, sir. 
Senator ~LCHER. You say you don't want to change personnel, 

that you. are mstructed not, to change personnel. There is something 
about firmg ~omebody untIl they are proven guilty. But there are 
also changes m personnel that have to do with the responsibility vou 
can't a void, on whether or not anybody that is signing one of these 
checks, in this instance for these 504 programs, whether or not they 
know what they are signing for. 

You :~re not going to t~ll me that despite what any sort of onhigh, 
gener.ahzed :r:ee;o!llmendatIOn to you is about personnel, that changes 
your responsIbIlIty to make sure that anybody that signs one of these 
checks knows exactly what they are signing ror. 
, Mr. CLO:on. Senator, I just heard this today, myself, and the counter­

:,Ignature IS on there to see the money is spent for the purposes it was 
Intended. That's why we countersign. 

Senator ~~CHER. I would be more comfortable, Mr. Cloud, if you 
would drop thIS stuff about not having personnel changes and O'et right 
to the point of how you ,are going to make sure that when thO:e checks 
ar~ countersigned that they are, for the proper purpose. How are you 
gOIng to do that ~ 

,Mr. CLOUD. We have tightened it up. This is what our District 
Dlrector--
, Senator :MEL?HER. If you only. heard about it today, at this hear­
Ing, how could It have gone on this long~ You've got all this auditing 
stuff. You've ~ot the Inspector General, the Office of the Inspector 
Gen~ral, runnmg aroun~ for m<;>nths. You had newspaper stories. 
Y0l! ve got knowledge th~s commIttee met, and that was in executive 
seSSIOn on June 30, to reVIew the memo we got on this whole e,pisode. 

You ar~ aware that we, very politely I would say, and very nicely 
very conSIderately, asked Farmers Home Administration after that 
meeting in a,letter signed by. the ranking membe.r, Senator Domenici 
of t.he commIttee and the chaIrman, Senator Chiles of this committee 
askmg the1!l to lo?k into this, and that was the tail end .of last June: 

You are Just gomg to tell us that you are only aware now that under 
the proc~ss of 504, which follows the same type of process as other 
Farmer~ Home Admini~tra~ion programs, tha~ your employees are 
responsIble for counterSI,grnng those checks WIth the recipient the 
grantee-- ' 

Mr. CLOUD, I--
Senator MELCHER, I am not comfortable with your response. 
Mr .. CLC~UD. I have hyo questions ~ere. When this was called to my 

atte~tlOn In 1~79, I saId at that pomt that we had to have receipts 
and Lhose receIpts had to be checked. But on Mrs. Maestas today is 
the first time I was a ware of it. ' 

Senator MELCHER. All right, I'm glad to clari:fy that point. Just on 
her. 



76 

Mr. CLOUD. Yes. 
Senator l\!fELCHER. That still doesn't make me too comfortable, be­

cause I am not sure you are doing much about this. 
Mr. CLOUD. We have tightened it up and Senator Domenici men­

tioned that we also had to account for lahore We weren't doing that 
then and we are doing that now. We are tightening it up both ways. 

Senator MELCHER. All right, that's all I'm going to ask. 
Senator Domenici. 
Senator DOMENICI. Would you give John Handy those documents. 
This morning we heard from Mrs. Ortega about this $5,000 check. 

Will you look at it there, please? 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. When was that check signed? 
1\-1r. HANDY. February 23. 
Senator DOMENICI. Were you p.resent when it was signed by Mrs. 

Ortega? 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. She said you took her to the bank and had her 

sign it? . . ~ 
Mr. HANDY. She dId not say that. I dIdn't ,take her to the bank. 
Senator DOl\fENICI. No, excuse me. She saId she went to the bank 

with a secretary. Were you there 'at the bank? 
Mr. BANDY. No. h 
Senator DOMENICI. I thought you just said you were present w en 

she signed it. . 
Mr. HANDY. I thought she signed it at her house or In th~ office. 

I am not sure. I don't remember going to the bank and watchmg her 
sign it. , t 

Senator DOMENICr. In any event, it. seemed that she was sayIng 0 

this committee that it was on your suggestion, your request, that she 
sign the check. 

~rr. HANDY. Yes; the work was done on that day, 100 percent 
completed. , . 

Senator DOMENICI. So you are saying that In thIS case there were 
no advances given to this contract~r? 

J\{r. HANDY. That's what I am sayIng. . 
Senator DOl\fENICr. He did an the work and then you gave hIm the 

full $5,000? 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Senator DOl\fENICI. That wasn't very customary, was it ~ 
Mr. HANDY. What? 
Senator DOl\fENICr. That you pay it all at once? They drew down 

on their ;obs, didn't they? ,. . 
Mr. I-IANDY. "Vhat happened J:11 thIS case, I beheve the loan was 

approved on January 31, is that Iwrrect? 
Senator DOMENICI. That is what seems to he in the record. 
Mr. HANDY. Shortly therea:f.~,tlr we knew whai; day that check was 

going to arrive, so P. '& P. startpd construction somp,where before the 
14th of Februarv. on the stren¢h of knowing that check was going to 
be there on the 22d or when~ver it was. 

Senator DOMENrcr. The 22d of! what? 
Mr. HANDY. ]~ebruary, or wh€lnever this check w~s deposited. ~y the 

time that check was deposited the work was finIshed, accordmg to 
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~he development plan. You mentioned I had two inspection renorts In there. :.l:" _ 

Senator DOMENrcr. And you saw the house? 
Mr. HANDY. Yes. 
Se~atol' DOMENICr. She mentioned 'also there was a $2 000 check you sIgned? , 
J\fr.IIANDY. Yes. 
Senator DOMENrcr. Wl:at was that about? What was it for? 
Mr. HANDY. I have no Idea. 
,Senator.D~l\fENICI. You are saying you didn't have anvthing to do 

wIth her sIgnIng that check? ~ 

f Mr., HANDY. I didn't have any authority to siO'n any checks except or thIS Farmers Home.. 0 

Senator DOl\IENICI. Y o~ didn't countersign it, the $2,000 cheek? 
Mr. HANDY. I su~e d~m t remember it. I didn't have any authority to, so why should I SIgn It? 
Senator DOl\fENIC;, Bob, do you know anything about it ? 
Mr. MADlUD. I can t remember that, Senator. 
Senator DOl\IENICI. Do we have it here? 

M
Were you working with the State housing authority at that time? r. MADRID. Yes. 
Senator: D~l\fENrcr. Did you handle a block grant of moneys they 

were puttIng Into homes ? ~ , 
Mr. MADRID. It was CSA money. 
Senator DOl\:mYICr .. Through tlie State housing? 
Mr. MADRID. 1: es, SIr. . 

f Shena~or DOMENICr. If that is what the $2,000 was, were you in charge o t. at. 
ltfr. MADRID. Yes, sir. 
S~nator DOl\!ENICI. 'Vould you have inspected tlH~ home for that Qr 

would he have Inspected the home for that ~- , 
Mr. MADRID. qn occasions, I would inspect for Farmers IIome on 

C~A grants and Inspect those. Farmers Home personnel were allowed to Inspect those. 
Senator DOMENICr. I have nothinO' further Mr Chrurman ' 

'_ ~:~ahtor ~IELclmR. 'I'hank you aU ~ery muc}l fo; your' parti~ipation 
Ill. v~1IS earIng. You are excused. 

Ernest Coriz, director of Construction Industries Division Depart­
ment of C?mm~iice and ~ndustry, Sante Fe, State of New Me~ico. 

Mr. Conz, Wla you raIse your right hand. 
Dr: you solemnly swear that the testimony you are about to O'ive is 

the truth, the whole t.ruth, and nothing but the truth so help vOl~God 2 
Mr. CORIz. I do. ' " . 
Senator DmfEN!CT. Mr. Coriz, do you have a prepared statement? 
Mr. CORIz. No, SIr. 
Senator DOl\IENTcr. YO~l just received a general subpena to appear. 

I have some general questIons. 
W ~)UI.d ~o~ tell us Jour title, and very briefly what is the authority 

and ]Uns~lCtlOn of the agency or commission you are in charge of for 
New MeXICO? 
,. Mr. CORIz. My name is Ernest Coriz. I work for the Commerce and 
__ p:dustry D~partJ?~n.t. I am the division director of the Construc .. 
hon IndustrIes DIVISIon. 
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The Construction Industries Division i.n the State of New :Mexico 
licensed approximately 13,000 contractors, 31,000 licensed specialty 
areas. vVe are charged, under the Construction Industries License Act 
to promote the genera~ welfare of, the people of New l\1:~xico by p,ro­
viding for the protectIon of the lIves, prope~ty, econom!c w~ll-bemg 
against subs~andard 0:'; ?azardous ~onstructIOn, alte~a~IOn, lnsta~la­
tion connectIOn, demohtlOn, Oor repalr work, and provI~mg protect~on 
agai~st phy::;~cal irresponsibility of pe~son3, engaged.In ~onstruch,on 
occupations Gr' trades. We do that by lIcenslng, exammatlOn, and In-
spection. , l\ . .f" ; , 

Senator DOl\'IENICI. Can you clarIfy for us, under ;N" ew l.ex.,?o 1a 'Y, 
when building permits are required for constructIon work In thIS 
State~ _ 

Mr. CORIz. Yes, sir. " I 
Mr. Chairman, under the State o~ Nevy Mexlco, ConstructlOn n­

dustries Division, rules and reg~latlOm" m t~e area of general con­
struction and the area of mechanIcal constructlOn, our rules and regu­
lations read: 

Section 201 of the code requires that any person, desiring to construct, altel:~ 
re air 01: demolition of any building which causes same to be do~e shall firsL 
Ob1ai~ permit, except for the listed limitations. Exceptions, those bemg $500 and 
under. 

In the area--
Senator DOMENICI. Let's make sure we have that down:R3;t .. 
This means all of the 504 grants for $5,000 for rehablhtatlon of 

homes require a building permit und er State law ~ 
Mr. CORIz. That is correct., S 
Senator DOMENICI. Now, is the permlt proc~ss tl~e only ~ay a tate 

inspector would have of knowing what there lS to lnspect. f d 
Mr. CORIz. In the permit application ~hel:e are a number 0 ocu-

ments that accompany this permit applIcatIOn. , . b d 
One is a drawing or a description of the work. The perm~t lS ase 

upon the compliance of the uniform building codes, mechanlcal. codes, 
electrical codes rules and regulations. An individual who applIes fJr 
a permit cannot receive a permit unless he specifies the typ~ of wor {, 
and what the work to be done is, so we ~an ,check for comphance. 

The obliaation of obtaining a permlt hes upon the ge~eral con­
tractor of the job. 'Ve place full responsibility on that indivld~al. The 
general contractor has complete obl~gation for t~le cO.mplete Job. H~ 
also supervises any subcontractor whlCh could be, In tIns ~ase.' mechdn 
ical or electrical but the genera] contractor has that obhgatlOn un er , . 
our laws and rules and regulatlOns. . 

Senator DOMENICI. If that's the case, I assume the .State of New 
:Mexico follows up with appropriate inspections, as req1llred under the 
law, when a permit is issued. Is that not ?orrect ~ . 

Mr. CORIZ: That is correct. I would hke to explaIn that. 
Just because a permit is issued, we have many people ,!ho t!llm out 

permits that take 11h years to maybe. constru~t ~omethmg, becau~e 
they do it at their pace. Under the unlform b~llJdm~ code .that oblI­
gatIon of inspections, that obligation of reqUlrll~g ll1spectlOnsT1al~s 
upon the general contractor or the person performIng; the 'York. . ele 
are c('rtain phases in the construction end that calls for InspectlOns. 

w~ ___ ~ __________________ • __________ __ 
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Footing inspections when concrete is being poured so they, in turn, 
have to notify us that they are ready to pour concrete so we are there. 
That obligation falls upon the contractor. 

Senator DOMENICI. Your inspectors don't have any problem, to your 
knowledge, of knowing how to inspect rehabilitation, do they? 

Mr. CORIz. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. If they inspect some of these homes we have 

seen, and they don't meet specifications, what would they do ~ 
MI'. CORIZ. Well, our inspectors couldn't-under the bid procedures, 

if you look at some of those documents and what was said this morn­
ing, the specifications of the job called for replace a roof, fix a bath­
room. Well, my inspectors are not mindreaders. Are we talking about 
a new sink, an old sink, lavatory, urinal, what type of tile, size of 
the door, these are the things that go in the application for a permit, 
the specifications. It becomes very difficult for these individuals, for 
my inspectors to make those inspections, because we don't know 
whether we are talking about a 3-foot-wide door, 2-foot-6-inch hol­
low core, solid core. ~o from the inspection standpoint it becomes 
very difficult, because in the process there are, no specifications, there 
are no drawjngs as to what has to be done. Everything is very difficult. 

Senator DOMENICI. But what about some of the things you have 
heard~ 

Mr. CORIZ. If it was outright code violations, yes, we can pick 
those up. 

Senator DOlVIENICI. You can pick those up ? 
Mr. CORIZ. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. So that to the extent those kinds of things were 

in existence, and full payment made, and, as.a matter of fact, if in­
spectors from your office would have checked them out, there would 
have been an opportunity for Farmers Home to have actual knowl­
edge they didn't meet code, or were unsafe, or didn't meet minimum 
standards~ 

Mr. CORIz. If it didn't meet the standards we would have red 
taggbd it, as shown on one of the slides there. There was a tag on an 
electrical box or meter that didn't meet the minimum national elec­
trical code and our inspectors would tag those and notify the con­
tractor not to proceed unless those corrections were made. 

Senator DOMENICI. Now, if they have to :Jet a permit for work of 
$500 or more, under law, the permit would indicate the kinds of things 
that you would have to inspect, would it not ~ 

Mr. CORIZ. The permit refers basically to about four documents. 
the national electrical code, the national plumbing code, the uniform 
building code, and the compliance with those codes in general. It 
doesn't have specific items that ha VB to be checked. Our inspectors 
know what those items are. 

Senator DOMENICI. How long have you been in this job ~ 
Mr. CORIZ. Approximately 13 months. 
Senator DOMENIC.I. Have you found a number of licensed con­

tractors to be unqualified ~ 
Mr. CORIZ. Yes, sir. In the review of our records, within the State 

of New Mexico, over the past 10 years, the prior administration prob­
ably revoked in the neighborhood of 10 licenses becausr ' f incom-
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petency, physical responsibility, or deviations from codes and what 
not. The last year we have probably revoked about 70 licenses, and 
suspended maybe 60 licenses for noncompliance or deviation from 
codes. 

Senator DOMENICI. Do you have sufficient inspectors for this j ob ~ 
Mr. CORIz. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. Is that improvjng or not ~ 
]\11'. CORIz.· "Ve are tryin~ to t:!:et ad.ditional inspectors and some new 

innovative programs that would allow our inspectors to perfor!il m?st 
inspections. As it stands now we have. gener;.al construct~on ~n­
spectors that just handle general constructIOn. "\i\i e have. electrIcal ill­
spect~rs that handle electrical. Mechanical inspectors, mechanical. 
Liquid petroleum gas insp'3ctors, liquid petroleum gas. So w~at we are 
doing is trying to cross-train .o~r insp~ctors t.o h~ ve mecha;lllcal check 
electrical, through proper trammg and eXamInatIOn and gIve us more 
inspectors. We have difficulty in staffing in~pecto!s. . . 

Senator DOMENICI. The audits and the InvestIgatIOns the commIttee 
has conducted continues to turn up additional homes where shoddy 
work has been done. Would it be possible for you to compile a master 
list of homes that have been rehabilitated by this program, in the State 
and, then, visit them over the next few months ~ 

Mr. CORIz. We would have no problem. As I understand it, most of 
these are in rural areas, outside the eities. We have, by joint powers 
agreement in the State of New Mexico, certain cities that perform the 
rural inspections by joint P?wers agre.em.ent with the St~t~ of ~ew 
]\1exico. If any of those locatIOns fell wIthIn those commun~tIes, CItIes, 
or counties, by this joint powers agreement we could go In or have 
someone go in and, yes, inspect those units. 

Senator DOMENICI. I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if the committee would 
want to discuss whether we want to officially request that this be done. 
I know one of your concerns is what are we going to do, if ~ny~hing, 
to correct the situation. Not only in the future, as you have mdIC~ted 
in your questions, but also find s0l!le way to cor~ect these past defi~Ien­
des. Perhaps we ought to ,defer thIS and determme what the commIttee 
thinks about how this might be done. 

Senator MELCHER. I think we ought to consider it, because it might 
be very constructive to form, and beneficial to the people that ~a ve 
received the grants, the 504 grants. I am personally sympathetIc to 
t.hat suggestion. . 

Mr. CORIz. Mr. Chairman, I have a letter here that is dated 
March 24, 19~0, in :which I wrote to Drew. Cloud concernin.g a meet­
ing we had, ill settIng up a system by whICh we could begIn to look 
at some of these programs. Mr. Cloud ~51me to my .o,ffice, and mem~ers 
of his staff, and we were concerned wIth the qualIty of constructIOn. 
The fact that, in many cases, unqualified contractors, unlicensed con­
tractors, were performing work that could be considered hazardous 
to the occupant of that dwelling. We had an indepth conversation. 
I supplied that office with the rules and regulations, statutes, a list 
of our inspectors, the requirements of the law, and the use of con­
tractors, subcontractors, and a program by which homeowners .could 
do limited work on their dwellings by a system that we employ In ~he 
State of New Mexico. These are some of the documents that I supplIed 
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the Farmers Home Administration in the hopes that we could begin 
to look at the problem of faulty construction. 

I feel that we have a program that didn't get this way overnight 
and the solutions to the program will not be solved overnight. There 
are many areas that we are aware of where help is required, training 
is required, and money is requireri. In many cases, the Federa~ G?V­
ernment actually causes a lot of the problems. The weatherIzatIOn 
program, the insulation program, they set up good programs, bu~ the 
administration, the funding, the qualificatIOn, and the educatIOnal 
process of the people that adminiHter the program are not there. They 
are no different from the State. I have looked at the State's program. 
I am an engineer, I have spent 15 years working for the fourth largest 
corporation in the world. I feel I am qualified and I understand con­
struction. Construction is no different in New Mexico than it is in 
South Carolina or Montana. I have worked in Billings, Butte) I have 
worked under the labor programs there at Anaconda. I think I have 
a feel for it, but the Federal Government can assist us, not by just 
providing money, but there are a lot of programs where qualified peo­
ple need to be hired. Now, you've got to have some programs that 
need to go further than funding. You look at the weatherization pro­
gram. The Department of Energy is beginning to install energy con­
servation flues in chimneys. Who is qualified ~ How do we get t~le 
people to make those installations properly and safely~. Who WIll 
inspect them ~ The dual programs that that program prOVIdes, I look 
at the State of New Mexico, we have a system to handle it, yet, because 
of bureaucracy, we create another inspection force. Why isn't that 
money given to us to train our people who already have that 
capability. 

These 'are some 'Of the things and we can go on and on. There 'are 
programs: and I think assistance th~t the FedeDal and the State gov-
ernment can give some OT these agenCIes. . 

Senator DOMENICr. I guess it goes without saying that you will agree 
the inspectors on rehabilit,ation programs for Farmers Home ought to 
have the basic oapacity to understand the questions th3~t Senator 
Melcher is asking today. 

Mr. CORIZ. There isn't one qualified employee in Farmers Ho~e 
Administration to inspect construction. The law says that every In­
spector in the State of New Mexico must be certified by my agency. 
I may be wrong. Farmers Home, HUD, Bnreau of Indian Affairs, and 
all those Federal progra.as that operate in the Stlate of New Mexico: do 
not have certified inspectors. Under the laws of Ne:w Mexico and the 
rights of our State, the Federal Government has CIrcumvented those 
laws by FHA, HUD inspectors, BIA inspectors that may not be 
qualified . 

Through funding, just ·through funding. 
Senator DOMENrcr. I have no further questions. 
Senat'Or MELCHER. Do you lmow a former State building inspector 

named Sam England ~ 
Mr. CORTZ. Yes, sir. ~ 
Senator MELCHER. J....pparently he isn't a building inspec.tor any mOore. 

Is there some reason for that ~ 
Mr. CORIz. Mr. England was an electrical inspector. }~e was em­

ployed prior to my taking 'Over the di vision. After I took over the 
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division he became a multiple inspector. lIe WM ~ qua;lified, this is the 
program I was talking about, he was an electrIcal Inspector, and I 
promoted him to a mnlti,ple i?spection program. , , 

He be-came a mechl1rucal mspector 'an.d an electrIcal Inspector. Be­
cause of this tri-inspection ability he was transferred 00 an ~rea, the 
surrounding area of Taos. After apout 4 months on that assIgnm~nt 
he came to me and told me that he Just was not oapa~le of, peri?rmIng 
the duties and he would like to resign. We accepted hIS resI~atIOn.,He 
seemed to be a very intelligent indh':~ua~, in the area O! InspectIon. 
Eleotrical, mainly. He passed the exammatlOn for mechanIcal and gen-
el1al construction. . . 

He resigned; he was not asked to resign, but he submItted his 
~gn~~ , " d 

Senator MELCHER. He was helpful to the COmmIttee InvestI&"ator an 
indicated that someone in your divisi~~ se:r;tt dow~ instructI~ns that 
he was to cease inspecting home rehabllIta:tIOn proJ~ts submItted by 
Farmers Home Administration, St.ate housmg au!ihonty, atI?-d, s?, forth. 
Do you know what actually happened and who In your dIVIsIOn was 
responsible for this order ~ 

Mr. CORIz. I think, Mr. Chairman, the pro~le!ll arose th~t th~re 
could have been some personal difference of opInIon concerrung. hi!? 
and a contl1actor. They were rac~al-oriented. The fact th~,t the In~I­
vidual was a Mexican-American. Charges wer~ made ,agaInst my In­
spector that he could have been somewhat vreju;diced. There were 
some bad feelings between a contl1aotor and an IndlvI~ual. . 

To my knowledge, I know of no one who gave hIm those mstruc­
tions-they didn't come from me. 

Senator :MELCHER. Do you think ~t came fro~ a con~ractor ~ 
Mr. CORIz. I think, the accusatIOns that I Investlgate~, they were 

both ways from the contractor to the inspector, to the Inspector, to 
the contra~tor. "Ve looked at it, and that was probably one of the 
reasons why we assigned him to the area; north. ~e ran t~~ area 
around Espanola and because of his multIple speCIal capabIlIty we 
moved him to Taos, N. Mex. . ' 

We don't tolerate any contractor malting threats agaInst our In­
spectors or contractors. As a matter of fact, one of the findings on a 
contractor we suspended his license hecause he bodily threw one of 
our inspectors off the jobsite. We took it to h.earings, we su~pended 
his license for 30 to 45 days because of that actIOn and we don t toler-
ate that. " I 

Senator MELCHER, Mr, Baca says he uses his brother s lIcense. s 
there anything wrong with that ~ , . 

Mr. CORIz. The SpeCID(; rulas and regulatIOns do no~ reqUIre tha~. 
We intend to, I have notes he.re,. and I intend to look Into that. It IS 
against our rules and re,gulations, the .statut~ of, the Sta~e of New 
Mexico and I can quote directly~ "A lIcense IS ne~ther a.ssIgnabl.e ~r 
transferable or may be legally used by any entIty to 'Yhom It IS 
issued." That's a direct violation of the rules and regulatlOns of the 
Construction Industries Lict'nsing Act. 

Senator DOl\fENICI. Mr. Ch~jr.man, I don't think we made the CO?­
struction Industries Division letter of March 24, 1980, from Mr. COrIZ, 
a part of our record. 
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~ena.tor MELCHER. We will make it a part of the record right at 
~p~U , 

1\.1r. CORIz. I would like to add a few other documents to the record 
I have some documents here that are bid documents that are bein . 

sent out to contractors to perform bids. I would like to just read on: of them. 

It says" '~Cont:a~tor to provide and install all materials to construct 
a new ceIlmg, lIVIng r00!ll:,"-thes~ are. just some of the examples 
that I quoted, about wrItIng speCIficatIOns and requiring it says 
"plaster with consi~tent l~~hing wi~e mesh <?r ~cratch, one r~und coat 
and one other coat. SpeCI~catIOll~ ln ~he b~IldIng code calls for three 
~oat~ on., So there are outrIght VIOlatIOns In the bid process that are 
In VIOlatIOn of the uniform building code. These were picked up in 
Espanola yesterday. 

Dr. LA YORe ,Vhat are they under HUn? 
Mr. CORIz. Yes; that's a HUn progr~tm, but I am sure if you look 

through the docume~ts-not only, when I speak about these Federal 
agenCIes, I a~ spe~kmg no~ only toward Farmers Home, but HUD, 
the Bureau of Indian Affalrs, they are no different. I think there is 
a tremendous amount of help that needs to be done in these areas 

Senator ME~CHE~. 'l1hese are under the HUn program ~ . 
Mr. Coruz.1hat IS my understanding yes sir. 
Senator DOME~ICr. ",YeU, ~he point y~U a.;e making, then, is the Fed-

eral Government IS lettIng bIds that are not in compliance. 
Mr. CORIz. That don't comply originally. 
Senator DOl\.fENICr. So that e \'en if somebody does all of that­
Mr. CORIz. It could be in violation. 
Senator DOl\fENICI. Could be red tagged ~ 
Mr. CORIz. Yes, sir. 
Senat?r MELCHER. ,lVell, we want to make this a part of the record, 

a.Jong ,Wlt~ your testImony, Mr. C<?riz. The 504 program, the regula.­
t~ons for Ii armers ~0!lle does reqUIre very specific procedures for the 
bIds ~nd the ~esc~IptIOns. We are not so sure that is being done. It 
doesn t seem hke It, f!,om some of the work we have reviewed, but 
nevertheles~ we are gomg to make them a part of the record with the 
understandmg that, they are probably referring to some HUD wor'k. 

Mr. COIUZ. Yes, SIr. 
Senator D01\fENICI. Thank: you very much, Mr. Coriz. 
Mr. COlUZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator l\fELcHER. N oe Lara. lIe's been delayed? 
Senator DOlVIENICI. He is en route. 
Sena;tor ¥E~CHER. 1\1r. ~~orley, will you briefly compare what you 

found I~ a SImIlar ~rogram In Pennsylvania and Florida as compared 
to here In New MexIco? ' 

Mr. MORLEY. Yes, sir. 
is. Senator DOl\-fENICI. I think h~ should tell us, for the record, who he 

Senator MELCH:n:R. Yes; would you do that, please ~ 
M

We have sworn In every other witness so we will swear you in too r. Morley. , 

1 Retained in committee files, 
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Senator MELCHER. Would you raise your right hand, Mr. Morley. 
Do you solemnly swear the testimony you are ahout to give the com­

mittee is the whole truth, and nothing but the tru th, so h~lp you God? 
Mr. :M:ORLEY. I do. 

STATEMENT OJ? CHARLES H. MORLEY, WASHINGTON, D.C., CHIEF 
INVESTIGATuR, SENATE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AGING 

Mr. MORLEY. My name is Chuck Morley. I am an investigator with 
the Senate Specia;l Committee on Aging. 

At the committee's request, several weeks ago, I very briefly visited 
two counties in Florida and two counties in Pennsylvania, for ,the pur­
pose of reviewing their Farmers Home section 504 program. My review 
consisted of brief but I felt convincing steps. I interviewed the county 
supervisors in the counties I visited. I reviewed the FarmeJ.'lS Home 
files for compliance with the Farmers Home instnwtions. I physically 
insp 3Cted, I believe, 20 houses. 

What I found in all four counties that I visited was that the county 
supervisors were very aggressively pursuing the 504 program. In all 
four counties they had, I won't sayan adequate staff, but a staff that 
seemed to be very thoroughly familiar with the 504 program. I think 
they were understaffed, that's what they tf)ld me, for the amount of 
program they had. 

The files were very thick. Any given file I looked at compared radi­
cally to the files we have seen in New Mexico. As a general rule, I think 
I can say the files had all the required documentation under the instr~c­
tions, which is to say they had signed contracts, they had warrantle..'), 
they had releases of liens, they had notifications to the applicants that 
the warranty periods were going to expire at the end of the year aftRr 
the warranty period. They had all the required notes to be made by the 
Farmers Home employees. They had volu~inous receipts a:nd bills 
given by the contractors to Farmers Home, In order to get pmd. They 
had statements of labor performed, as required by the instructions. 
They had very detailed estimates provided by the contractors that even 
went down to the details as to what type of lumber would be used in the 
construction, what grade of paint would be used, what grade of. 
shingles, and what poundage they would be, et cetera. 

Senator DOMENICI. Could I interrupt !:!nd ask a question ~ I really 
think I should have asked it throughout the day because it is very 
important. 

As 'a· matter of fact, without release of liens these houses could be 
built, reconstructed and remodeled, checks signed, contractor paid, and 
if the snpplia.r wasn't paid, the lumberman wasn't paid, a subcontractor 
wasn't paid, they could come along and P'lt a lien on the homeowner, 
who would be responsible. 

Mr. MORLEY. Absolutely. 
Without a release of the material lien, the lumber company could 

file a lien ap:ainst the house. 
Senator DOME1'HCI. That would have been an easy way to get a 

double bill ~ 
Mr. MORLEY. Oh, certainly. 
Senator DOMENICI. So you must h&1"e found bills for materials in 

those files from the other States ~ 
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Mr. MORLEY. Yes; I did. As I say, many of them. The files that I 
reviewed averaged half an inch to an inch thick. They were quite thick, 
any given file. 

The workmanshjp on the houses was, in general, very good ,to excel­
lent. They had several different programs, and maybe I should hriefly 
discuss them, in both States that I visited. 

We have been talking here about piggybacking and using other pro­
grams' funds. In Florida, the two counties that I visited made use of a 
tricounty redevelopment association. It was county funded, I believe 
through State and Federal funds. One county had a county employee 
detailed to Farmers Home, much like Mr. lVIadrid was. That county 
employee, who was paid by the county, under county supervision, 
had been given the primary responsibility for all 504 programs in that 
county in Florida. The county supervisor, however, was very familiar 
with that employee's work, went with him to the inspections until he 
was certain that he was doing a qualified job and, in general, monitored 
his activities very closely. 

That county employee, in my opinion, did a tremendous job in that 
program and they are certainly in hopes that they can keep that county 
employee attached to Farmers Home. He did all the packaging. He 
helped the people obtain the contracts. He helped them with filling 
out the applications. He inspected their jobsites frequently. He insured 
that the county inspections-in Florida, they have county inspections­
were all done before any checks were issued, and also insured that the 
applicants were very happy with the program. 

In Florida, I believe I visited 12 homes. I interviewed 10 of the 12 
people, simply because two people weren't home when I was there. 
They were all extremely delighted with the program. In essence, they 
couldn't say enough good about it. They were very happy with the 
Farmers Home employees. They were very happy with their homes. 
Many of them had never had inside plumbing of any sort. They now 
have inside plumbing. Some of them had never had electricity. They 
now have electricity. Some of their homes had no inside walls, virtually 
no roofs, and the wind would blow through. Now they have roofs, very 
excellent roofs. They not only have inside walls, they have new outside 
walls. In essence, the workmanship and the quality of the product 
provided to the people I saw in Florida and Pennsylvania was out­
standing. They were very enthusiastic about the program. 

Senator DOMENICI. You spent 3 days here, didn't you ~ 
Mr. MORLEY. Yas, sir, I think it was in the very first part of 

September that I came here, that I saw four houses here. personally. 
Not just the slides, I visited the homes. There is a radical contrast. 

I have exl1ibit files here and I took a substantial number of photo­
graphs in Florida, unfortunately they are not slides. I did not take 
as many in Pennsylvania, mainly beea,use of the camera that I had 
and the fact that it was pouring down rain. You can see from these 
files that the workmanship is jusftremendous. 

I would like to mention another thing that they d.id in Florida, the 
tricounty development authorit.y that they workf.\d with supplied 
CETA labor to work on houses. So that Farmers Home would give 
$5~000 to the applicant and that $5.000 would go further than 
$5,000 that you had to give to a contractor, for instance, because there 
was no labor involved, the:r€.\ was no overhead involved. 
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I saw homes that were literally rebuilt for $5,000. If I can just take 
a second, what I am talking about :is new roof, new outside walls, new 
inside walls, new floors inside, new ceilings inside, new electrical, new 
plumbing, new septic, all for $5,000. It was all required, because I 
saw some before pictures of these houses and they were in terrible 
shape and they were virtually rebuilt. To me that is an example of 
what Farmers Home can really do for this program. 

Another thing they did in all four counties that I visited was to make 
use of part-time CETA workers and part-time green thumb workers 
to assist in the office. TIns lightened the workload so that the pro­
fessionals in Farmers Home could apply their time to professional 
work rather than to the clerical work. 

Senator DO]'IENICI. So, in a nutshell, you are telling us that in the 
two States you visited at the reque.':lt of the committee, you saw pro­
grams handled much differently, and the finished product was far 
superior to what you found here ~ 

Mr. MORLEY. That is correct, yes, sir. 
Senator D01\IENICI. Mr. Ohairman, I understand our next witness 

has not y~t arrived. Perhaps, if it is the pleasure of the Chair, we 
could recess for a few minutes. I don't think we will take very long, 
once he has arrived. He had a meeting in Albuqueil'que and that 
accounts for his delay. 

Senator MELOHER. I think your testimony, Ohuck, is helpful for this 
hearing record. I want to express my appreciation for that. 

We will stand in recess for 15 minutes. 
[There followed a short recess.] 
Senator MELCHER. The committee will come to order. 
Our last scheduled witness today is N oe Lara, director, State Hous­

ing and Rural Development Authority, State of New Mexico. 
Mr. Lara, will you stand and raise your right hand? 
Do you solemnly swear the testimony you 'are about to give this 

committee will be the truth, the whole truth, ,and nothing but the 
tru.th, so help you God? 

Mr. LARA. Yes, sir. . 
Sena;tor MELCHER. Thank you. Please proceed. 

STATEMENT OF NOE LARA, SANTA FE, N. MEX., DIRECTOR, NEW 
MEXICO STATE HOUSING AND RURAL DEVELOPMENT AU­
THORITY 

Mr. LARA. My name is N oe Lara. and I have been the director of the 
State housing and rural development authority since January 1979. 
Sinee that time, with limited staff and resources, we have made every 
~ffOlt Ito expand the activities of the authority in order to respond to 
t?-e responsibilities assigned to us by both legislation and ,administra­
tIOn mandate. 

General legislation and administrative policy mandate the State 
housing authority to develop and administer programs to increase 
housing opportuni,ties, especi1ally in rural areas 'and among cithr,ens 
with low and moderate incomes. Priority efforts are directed to pro­
viding a,'Olsistance in meeting the most pressing housing needs of the 
elderly, the handicapped, minorities~ and farmworkers of the State, 
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and to assist the native AmeriC'an popula;tion with its efforts to secure 
decent housing. . . t 

Specifically! the State housing lauthorlty IS mandated to carry ou 
the following: . . . . . ' p 

A-Coordinate and mobIlIze traI~ng and t8?hnical asslstanc .. 
B-Be responsible for data col!BctIOn1 I!l~nnmg, and ;re~earch. . 
C-Carry out housing promotIOn actIVItIes and publIc InformatIon 

discrimination. " d 
D-Administer Federal and other funds which are receIve, con-

trolled, and disbursed. . d 
The State housing authority was renamed t?-e State h?~SIng an 

rural development ·authority ,and Wlas charged WIth the addItIOnal task 
of coordinating the aotivities of the Gover~or's Rural !?evelopment 
Council and the advisory board to the counCIl. The counCIl was asked 
to develop and recommend to the Gov~rnor a State rural. development 
policy, and an investment stna-t:-egy to Implement the .PO~ICY, 

The State housing and rural develoPJ (lent authot:lty s overall goal 
is to leverage State and Federal funds ~o the maxI~um extent posi 
sible to effect rural development while preservrng our natura 

resources. h 't . t hn' 11 The State housing and rural development aut 01'1 y IS ec lca y 
under the State planning division of the department of finance a:nd 
administration. Among our many respons~biliti~s the ~t,ate ~lousmg 
and rural ,development authority has experIence In a~mmIste~mg two 
home repair grant programs in northern New MeXICO countIes. One 
program which was State funded, provided grant moneys of up to 
$5 000 td elderly citizens. 'Ve defined elderly as 65 y~~rs and older. 
The $200,000 appropriation pro~ided 61 gr~nts to the CItIzens of Santa 
Fe Taos and Rio Arriba Oountles. To qualIfy for State grants we used 
Fa~mers'Home eligibility criteria, except that the State defined elder~y 
as 65 rather than 62. The program was administered by State paId 
staff 'some which were assigned to the Farmers Ho}ne county o~?e. 

The State housing and rural development authorIty also admmls­
tered a home repair program funded through a grant from the qom­
munity Services Administration. The $200,00~ ~rant pr?vlded 
approximately 70 grants to. families ,:,ho fe~l wItllln qSA mcome 
O'uidelines and who resided In Taos, RIO ArrIba, San MIguel, Santa 
Fe and Mora Oounties. . ., 1 

Eligible dockets were rated on a !feeds priorI~Y baSIS f~r, ~l'st of al , 
elderly low income; second, handICapped; thIrd, low-me?me ne~~s 
and we had to state under that, safety hazards, new plumbmg faCIh-
ties, and weatherization. . . d 

A draft study on housing needs by our office found 3: mmImum ~e~ 
of $462 million of public housing assistance :for low-~ncome famIlIes 
alone. In contrast to this, the Farmers. Home, the prlI"!lUry source of 
fundinO' for these types of programs, If current fundmg !evels c~m­
tinue, ;ill invest a total of $400 mil~ion. during the same tIme perIod 
for all of its programs. Our data IndICate the greatest need to be 
3,mong low-income families in rural areas. 

Furthermore, another study we ~ave u~?-e.rtaken, showed that. t?e 
need for just bathroom and plumbmg faCIlItIes among rural famIlIes 
alone would cost a minimum of $23,384,000. As these needs show, the 
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rural areas of New Mexico have specific and sometimes unique prob­
lems which can be addressed by State and Federal agencies. 

,Ve ha',ve applied and expect to receive a grant from CSA to assist 
with the rehabilitation of about '70 homes of low-income families. 
Because 'We are a State agency with statewide responsibilities we have 
been requested and intend to use these funds to leverage additional 
moneys for needy families. Additionally, we think the specific involve­
ment of the State housing and rural development authority personnel 
in this program is appropriate because it provides opportunities to 
become .directly involved with the people. It also provides a perspec­
tive which immediately il"lforms our other responsibiIitie8. 

We have established specific procedures and guidelines for the dis­
bursement of funds. These procedures include careful selection of 
a,ppropriate recipients; careful monitoring of expeuditures; and care­
ful inspection of work, both in progress and completed. 

Since we learned of the investigation, my office has been pleased to 
cooperate with Senator Domenici's office and the Senate Special Com­
mittee on Aging staff in any way requested. 

I appreciate the opportunity to be able to briefly explain to you 
our programs and responsibilities. 

I will new, and at any time in the future, be glad to answer any 
questions that you might have. 

Senator MELOHER. Can you explain to me, are you getting any State 
funds, right now, for the program ~ 

Mr. LARA. There are no F)tate funds for the program now, sir. 
Senator MELOHER. So whatever funds you are using is from Com­

munity Services Administration ~ 
Mr. 'LARA. That is correct. 
Senator MELOHER. The State program is getting Federal funds, 

almost entirely or entirely~ 
Mr, LARA. For this particular program, as I mentioned, Senator, 

we do a lot of other activities, other than administer home repair 
progr&ms. We are funded bv the State for staff. We did have a 
$200,000 CSA grant, federally"funded, which we don't have any money 
in that program any more. As I mentioned in my statement, we have 
applied, to CSA, we have received approval, but have not had any 
money.disbursed today. 

Senator MELCHER. As of yet ~ 
Mr. LARA. As of yet. 
Senator MELCHER. But you received approval and that will be for 

up to 70 homes ~ 
:Mr. LARA. That is correct, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. We received testimony today that makes it 

clearer. In a few cases your program is used to correct or redo shoddy 
work done under the 504 program. How .do you account for this ~ Is 
that what you view the CSA funds fm and, for that matter, the State 
funds~ 

Mr. LARA. No, sir, that is not an accurate statement. We leveraged 
our funds with both Farmers Home Administration moneys and, 
ag-ain, the statement was made and we are encouraged by the Federal 
Government to leverage funds, because we have found that many of 
these homes, it takes a lot more than $3,500 to repair. We feel like 

~~---------~------------
.----------.--~-----

i 

, 

J' 
I 

\: 

I' 
\ 
l. 
\ 

~ 

.. 

89 

we are workin.g together with the Federal Government, whether they 
were communIty development block grant program, whether It was 
the Farmers Home County, Farmers Home Office we are able to assist 
the families much better. ' 

Senator MELCHER. ,Vhen you say leverage, do you mean add on to the 
$5,000 grant for 504 ~ 

Mr. LAR...'\.. We use them in combination, sir. 
Senator MELCHER. All right. In other words, instead of a $5,000 

grant from Farmers I-Iome you would have what $2000 additional 
State ~ , , 

Mr. LARA. It could be $2,000 up to $3,500. 
Senator MELCHER. CSA funds ~ 
Mr. LARA. Yes, sir. 
Senator MELOHER. flow do you supervise your housing inspectors 

such as Mr. Madrid ~ , 
~Ir. LARA. I can tell you how we supervisee". him before and the situa-

tion as it is now, Senu..tor. ' 
Fi:r:st, of a~l, we were under an agreement with the Farmers Home 

AdmInIstratIOn, under the gratuitous provision to provide staff~ 
maybe I should go into that a little bit more. ' 

The State started a program which we called the assistant loan proc­
essors program. It w~s funded b1 CETA and it:was a pilot program. 
It was pretty successful to the pOInt where the leo-Islature appropriated 
moneys to farm field people, to be assigned to th~ Farmers Home Office 
to help out. For many years we have had moneys into the Farmers 
Home, but we have never had them out in the field because Farmers 
Home, C<;>llgre~s, has never appropriated enough money for their staff. 
We felt hke thIS was an area where the State and the Federal Govern­
ment should c~operate; and get u~ the needed money out in the field. 

At that partIcular tIme the asSIStant loan processor was supervised 
by the county supervisor. 

Presently, and because of the l;nood, I gu~s, of our legislature, the 
prog:ra;n was de;funded, ~xcept In two partIcular counties and that 
was In raos and In San MIguel Counties. 

We found, because of the greater need for the Farmers Home pro­
gram, that pretty soon an the grant moneys were gone from Farmers 
Home and our staff was there trying to administer some o-f our pro­
grams. We really were taking up space at Farmers Home so we elected 
to remove us from the office. ,Ve were not gettino- any more Farmers 
Home activity because the money had already bee:f{ spent. So we mov~d 
from that office to another place. 

Senator ,MELCHER. It aP1?ears though that 1\1:r. Madrid had a pretty 
free hand In the sense of dIspensing State Housing Authority grants. 

Mr. LARA. No, sir, he did not. 
Senator MELCHER, How did you supervise that then ~ 
Mr. LARA. The eSA grant-!et me just m.ayl?e go through the proc­

ess. I am sure that he has done It. but let me do It one more time. 
The pr?cess

y 
tha:t we J1ave is, No.1, we have particular counties that 

we work In. tVe advertIse, word of mouth, the CAP agencies, et cetera, 
tell the people that we do have a grant program through the Farmers 
Home Office. They ten them there is another reso-urce other than Farm­
ers Home. Then applications are taken, and agr.t.in the criteria was that 
they had to be within CSA income guidelines. 
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Those same families are brought to what we call 3: policy advis?ry 
committee, composed pf people from each of the COU!lties that are b~mg 
serviced. The policy advisory committee, th~n, reVIews these apphca­
tions and then votes on whether they are gomg to approve the grants 
or not, if money is available. At that time we go. thrOl;lgh th~ pro~ss 
of taking it to the dep.artm~~t of finan?e admmistratl(~n to. Issue the 
check and it goes out, In a JOInt supervIsed account, wIth SIgnatures 
from the State personnel, as well as the ~lient themselves. . 

Senator MELCHER. vVhat standards dId you set for contractors wIsh-
ing to participate in this program ~ . 

Mr. LARA. We started using, more or less, what the Farmers Home 
people were using. They are more familiar with who the contract?rs 
are that are out there. Which ones have had proven records of workIng 
with them. At times, and especially when housing construction was 
pretty, there was a lot of activity into it, most of the contractors went 
for bigger jobs Albuquerque or somewhere else, but there were some 
contractors at the local leveI and we felt like, the philosophy that we 
have had is to use contractors, local contractors, because we feel that 
not only are we providing a decent home for som~one there, but w~ are 
also stimulating the economy. One contractor wI~h four or five httle 
grants could make a living for himself and his famIly. . 

Senator J\lIELCHER. "Vhat action can you take or did you take agaInst 
contractors who did unacceptable, shoddy work ~ 

Mr. LARA. From the eSA grant, sir, we only had one perS?n that 
really came to our State office and said, there is a problem WIth one 
of our contractors, houses, et cetera. We felt like we took the pr0I!er 
action, at the time. We had a meeting with the contractor, asked hIm 
to go back and do t.he work. Apparently the work was not done. yv e 
joined Farmers Home in requesting that he be debarred from domg 
work. . 

Senator MELCHER. Well, it appears to us that, not n~cessa~Ily know­
ing all of the 504 grants, but from what we have reVIewed It appears 
to us that there are a number of them, a high percentage of them, 
where the work wasn't really satisfactory, but the particular person 
involved, whose home it was, was unaware that there shou~d. be a 
process of tenin~ y?u! inspectors. anq the F3;rmers ¥ome AdmIlllstra­
tion personnel, theIr Inspectors, that Indeed It wasn t good. It seems to 
be the breakdown that, since it was the impression of the homeowner, 
that since it was a grant program, that wha~ver came tJ:l~y had to 
accept. They didn't know anybody to complaIn to: So waltmg for a 
complaint seems to ha1' > worked toward perpetuatIng a number, and 
it appears to me, at leru:.t, I will speak only for myself, as one m~mb~r 
of the committee, a high percentage of 5~4 grants money resultmg In 
very shoddy, unsatisfactory work and a dIsgrace to the program. 

How do you respond to that ~ 1\1r. 1\{adrid did not impress us 3;s 
being capable of discerning what was shoddy work. In fact, he testI­
fied that he was incapable oInoing it and all he know about construc­
tion was on-the-io~ training, Ui~in~ his ~o~ds. Those are not mv 
words. Those are hIS words. on-the-Job traInmg. and yet he had 207 
different grants that he hanrllerl. I understand what you told us ~nd 
I understand your part in this. He was your employee and responSIble 
to you and you are responsible for his a,ctions. Have I spoken correctly 
on that~ 
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Are you responsible for his actions or lack of actions or lack of 
knowledge, lack of .capability?' , 

. Mr. LARA. Ye~, SIr, I am. I believe that Mr. Madrid underestimated 
hImself though, In terms of his capabilities. 

Senator ~ELCHE~. In n~y judgment, in some of the 504 grants that 
we have reVIewed, If he dId have capability he did not exercise it and 
report that there was s~oddy work, identify what was wrong. Tell 
the p.erson wh?se home It was and, indeed, I can't get over the fact 
~~at I~ seems hk~ these elderly people felt that they had no recourse. 
l.hat It was a grant program, and what came to them was all there 
was supposed to be. 
. Of course, as taxpayers, and t.heJ: are taxpayers, and we ought to 
l~~em~er that the .elderlJ: had contrIbuted through longer years, par­
tIc~patlng and paymg theIr taxes than we have at our age I just don't 
beheve what you have told us. ' 

As demonstrated, an awareness of how bad off 504 programs were 
and to the extent that you participated in that with eSA funds or 
Stat,e funds, how bad off the whole kit and caboodle is. 

DId you know and.approve of the widespread use of piggybacking 
of your agency funds In homes that had received assistance ~ 

Mr. LARA. Sure. 
Senator MELCH~R. Yon app~oved of that? Thought it was necessary ~ 
Mr. LARA. That IS correct., SIr. 
Se~atOl' MELCHER. I thinl~ I l!nde~stand that, because the $5,000 

wasn t enough to correct the SItuatIOn, Isn't that right? 
Mr. LARA. That is correct, sir. 
Senat?r MELCHER. I.can understand that and I can tell you that I 

agree :WIth you, but I. Just am di~appointed in the fact that I think 
there IS a breal{down In ~h~ effectIv~ness of the 504 program here. To 
t~e exte;nt th~t you partIcIpated, pIggybacking and otherwise I am 
dIsaPPOInted In that too. ' 
. I hope that contrary to what I think is a rather discouraging' situa­

tion h~re in New l\'Iexico in the 594 program, I hope what we find 
throughout the res~ of the country IS more in the pattern of what we 
had ~een led to. beheve from sta.ff investigations in Pennsylvania and 
FlOrIda where It seems to be working rather well. I have not really 
checked my .o'Yn State of Montana, which I will in the next few 
weeks, to see If It appears to have been successful there. 

We want the pr?g:ram to work and I am sure you do too. 
Senator Domenici. 
Senator DOl\fENICr. Let me sta~ at the latest and go backward. 
FJ;aye ~ou made ~om.e changes In the way you would administer re-

habIlItatIOn funds~ In lIght of what you have found out? 
Mr. LARA. Yes, Senator. 
Agai~, many of the cases of alleged shoddy work et cetera we 

Ie!1rned I!l y~)Ur press statement, sir. People never came 'forward t~ us. 
Llk€', I saId, Just a few of them. 

You mentioned some of the cases in your press statement a few 
rrlOnths ago, .and ~pparently there had been an investigation and you 
had been talnng plCtures and th~ngs like that, sir. 

S We may have be~n, and agam I feel very responsible and I think 
enator Melcher saId, whether I was responsible for the actions or 
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the things that happened, I feel very responsible, sir, because i was 
administering the program. 

We have amended our applicatian forms, et. cetera, so tha~ they cS!l 
be bilingual. We have forms that say, eve.n If you have sIgned thIS 
completed work form you still have thi~ telepho;le numb~r that you 
can call. In other words, dan't feel this IS the ena:. of the lme because 
you have signed and a'pp~,aved, the last.inspectia? an it. That was one 
thing that you were brIngmg up, maybe we erred In the fact that may~e 
a lot of the elderly people didn't know that they had recourse If 
shoddy work was d~r:e. ",Ve have correc~d that. ",Ve have added mare 
forms a lot more bIlIngual forms. I thmk our peaple are a lot more 
attundd. We have had twa warkshops instructing them and we have 
had peaple from the construction industry division, et cetera, to' come 
to us and tell us. here are the laws, here's what we want dane, at 
cetera and things 'are going to' be a lot better administered. 

Sen~tor DOMENTcr. I want to share tIllS with you. Some of the rec­
ommendations found in the report are made by the GAO, who looked 
at all this and helped us. We'll give you those. I hape the~ will be 
helpful, but obviously, there is a tatal lack af ~xchange af InfarJ?-a­
tion from Farmers Home to yau. I am nat blammg yau. I am saymg 
they knew about many more homes than anything we'released when we 
started the investiO"3;tion. Their audits shaw a number of them and 
the concern I havee>is similar to Senator Melcher's. You know, thls is 
kind af rolling down hill. You rely on them sa you piggyback after 
them because you assume they are doing right. We can tell you they 
didn't obtain any evidence that the ·material w.as 3:ct~ally J:>aught, 
whlch is required by their awn rules. I'm not saYlIl;g It IS requIred b1 
your rules, but if you assumed samebady was dOIng that, It. wasn. t 
being d'One. If yau assumed that they had labor costs that were In theIr 
regulations, same expert an your staff said they have a pretty good set 
of regulations, and so you put same mare in. I can tell :you, yau :vere 
following a pragram which did not do what the regulatIOns requIred. 
That seems to be the case in, at least~ 20 examples. I dan't know how 
many af them have received CSA. or other State money, but I would 
assume same of them. 

There is another matter I do think you ought to look at. I have gone 
aut and checked haw piggybacking is done and it is a gaad system, but 
basically it is all dane in advance. 

In other words, $5,000 and $2,000 is laoked at tagether or $3,000 
and $8,000 0'1' $7,000 will do a joh, and the ;ab is then cantracted. Now 
we have evidence this is not the farmat. That first would gO' and be 
completed and money paid. In fact, we have them where the final chec]r 
is drawn and it is cosigned, as you know. Then the $2,000 comes. That IS 
not piggybacking in the sense that yau leverage: and that's not what 
your goal is, is it'-~ It might have happened, but that's not the best way 
to' dO' it, is it ~ . 

Mr. LARA. No, sir. We did it that way, again, we are talkmg ab~>ut 
changes we have made. One of the things we are daing now is creatmg 
a plan far each applicant. If they require more than the money t~at we 
have available. then we will see what other resources are avaIlable. 
It could be that we will wind up with just one grant, again, for $3,500 
because Farmers Home doesn't have any mare money in the grant 
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program and the peaple can't wait until next year, before the snow 
eames, to' fix their roaf or something like that. It could be that we'll 
do that and Farmers Home will came in whenever they get their 
money, but we are gaing to' make every effort possible, from here on 
to be able to laak at a plan for the family and work in whatever re~ 
saurces are available. . 

Senator DOMENICl. Senator Melcher has properly stated what Rabert 
Madrid said abaut his supervisian and his cosigning of the checks, in 
terms of his inspectian qualifications. In fact, he clearly indicated that 
he didn't think he was qualified to dO' them. 

Was he directly responsible tc you or, as you worked it, was he 
responsible to' Farmers Home or responsible to both ~ How do you 
see that ~ 

Mr. LARA. Proba,bly to both wauld be mare accurate. 
Senator DOMENICI. Even if he was only signing and inspecting their 

program, was he was still responsible to you ~ 
Mr. LARA. When he was working on Farmers Home programs, both 

the county supervisal' and myself approved, for example, sick leave, 
annual leave, administrative type of things, but he was on schedule 
with his calendar working far Farmers Home. 

Senator DOIrl:ENICr. Naw, I think you stated that you did.n't remove 
Robert because of any audit finding· but you removed hlm for some 
other reason ~ 

Mr. LARA. That is correct. sir. 
Senator DaMENICI. What was the exact reason he was removed ~ It 

seems to have came at the time the internal audits were 1'8viewed. 
Mr. LARA. I think I mentioned that Farmers Home .J longer had 

any grant moneys. Consequently he wasn't working {)u any Farmers 
Hame type af things and sa we had him just working on CSA and 
assisting, again, the increased activity that I mentianed:' at the begin­
ning, we were now getting intO' providing technical assistance, CDBG 
and other types of programs. Weare trying to' get him gaing intO' other 
areas, like Santa Rasa and other areas where he hasn't been before, 
to' provide mare services. 

Senator DOMENlCI. In yaur grant program you have described a 
very elabarate system of determining the applicant, fram among many, 
that wauld get the grant. Were yau aware that Farmers Home was not 
daing this, accarding to' their own audits? They didn't have that and 
they weren't following the first come, first served. Somebady who 
worked for them, frequently Rabert 'Or other:s, selected them on their 
own~ 

Mr. LARA. I would be surprised if that happened. No, I was not 
aware. 

Senator DaMEN~CI. In any event, yau didn't do yours that way ~ 
Mr. LARA. No. SIr. 
Senator Dal\:rENrCI. ",Vhat if you followed up right behind Farmer 

Harne. Wauld you just assume that they were entitled to it, or would 
you gO' throu~h yaur process of evaluation ~ 

Mr. LARA. The same pracess on every applicant. 
Senatar DaMENICI. Did the fact they had received a Farmers Hame 

grant and thehouse wasn't totally repaired, for whatever reason, have 
any bearing an whether or nat yau would give the additional maney ~ 

'I 
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Mr. LARA. I'm sorry, sir, would you repeat thaH 
Senator DOMENICI. I assume you would have a number of applicants 

for $2,000 or $3,000 grants. Did the fact that an applicant had a $5,000 
504 program already, and the house wasn't healthy and sanitary, have 
any bearing on whether they should get a priority from you for addi­
tional money? 

Mr. LARA. No, sir. 
8enator DOMENICI. That was just taken into account with other 

criteria~ 
Mr. LARA. Exactly. 
Senator DOMENICI. I have no further questions. 
Thank you very much. 
Senator MELCHER. ,Ve had a discussion today about a $2,000 check 

relating to Mrs. Ortega's home. Can you check your records? Are you 
aware of a $2,000 check to Mrs. Ortega, for Mrs. Ortega's home? 

Mr. LARA. Yes. 
Senator MELCHER. In addition to a $5,000 Farmers Home Adminis­

tration 504 grant ~ 
Mr. LARA. Mrs. Ortega did receive a grant, both from Farmers Home 

and from State Housing and Rural Development Authority, sir. 
Senator JYIELCHER. 1Vas it $2,000 ~ 
Mr. LARA. It was $3,500 spent on her and $5,000, I think, for Farmers 

Home. 
Senator :MELCHER. Could you check your records and provide to this 

committee a copy of a $2,000 check or $3,500 check or a $2,000 check 
and a $1,500 check or any check that went to Mrs. Ortega ~ We would 
like a copy of it, front and back. 

Mr. LARA. Yes, sir, I will do that. 
Senator MELCHER. All right. 
Senator DOMENICI. Let me ask a wrap-up question and get Mr. 

Lara's thoughts. 
If there are a number of homes that were not repaired, pursuant to 

the program or the plan for rehabilitation, and these homes are in 
need of work because they are unsafe or there is something wrong with 
them, do you h.ave any ideas on how we might, together, straighten 
out that situation and fix up those homes so they would be safe and not 
dangerous ~ Do you have any funding or 'any ideas of how we could 
collaborate, to go back through and fix some of this ~ 

Mr. LARA. You are talking about some of the homes that have 
already been serviced, whether properly or improperly, by both Farm­
ers Homes and Rtate.--

Senator DOMENICI. Not necessarily both. Primarily, Farmers Home, 
but in some cases the State. . 

Mr. LARA. I would say that if we identified those that, one of the 
things that we, let's just up front say it, some homes need $25,000 
to fix them up. Maybe the $7,500 to Farmers Home is just not going 
to he enough. We have to establish at what level we want those homes 
to be. Do you want them to comply with minimum property stand­
ar.ds? Do you want them to just do away with health or safety hazards, 
or at what level do we want them? 

Senator DOMENICI. I will make it very precise, as precise as the 
evid(.mce we have found. They will be brought up to acceptable build.-

.--.-.-.----~-----------------------
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jng standards with reference to the items agreed upon. in the original 
plan or contract between the contractor and an owner. We certainly 
lmow there have been some mistakes in judgment. Homes were picked 
that you couldn't get repaired, but we have 15 to 20 where there is a 
g~eat deal of evidence the development plan was not agreed upon. 
V\ e have seen some, maybe~, 5, or 6, but I understand there are prob­
ably 20 we are aware of, WIth safety defects, problems with exhaust, 
those types of problems. 

Mr:. LARA. I will saJ:' pr?bably the best solution to something like 
that I~ to get an organIzatIOn, such as Siete del Norte, a housing cor­
poratIOn ~hat has a good crew, that could probably offset some of the 
constructIon costs, the labor costs, et cetera. They would do it as a 
pa;rtnership, ~ederal Government, State government, try to do some­
thmg to alleVIate the problem. We could go back to the original con­
~ract, the work that was supposed to ha,:e been done, have it privately 
ll1spected by our staff, and maybe theIr contractm'sj find out what 
need.s to be done, how much money, evaluate th'0 0A~·~~')tl0n. If they 
9.uahfy for 9SA p~ograms we. would take ~nothe! )'; ppHcation, take 
It to the polIcy adVIsory commIttee and see If they wouxd consider it. 

I don't Imow what the ru.les are in Farmers Home, maybe a little 
special appropriation or something like that to make good on those 
homes. 

Senator DOMENICI. And the State housing office would be willing 
to work on that? 

Mr. LARA. That is correct, sir, and we would also work toward State 
appropriation for a home repair program and we would take those 
as if they were new applicants for State funds. 

Senator DOMENICI. Thank you very much. 
SeI?-ator MELCHER. Thank you. 
ThIS completes our witness list at this hearing today. The hearing 

record will remain open for the next 30 days. 
The committee is adj ourned. 
[Whereupon, at 4 :15 p.m., the committee was adjourned.] 
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POSSIBLE ABUSE AND MALADMINISTRATION OF HOME 
REHABILITATION PROGRAMS FOR THE ELDERLY 

FRIDAY, DECEMBER 19, 1980 

U.S. SENATE, 
SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AGING, 

Wasnington, D.O. 
The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 2 :08 p.m., in room 457, 

Russell Senate Office Building, Senator Pete V. Domenici, chf
1
lrman, presiding. 

Present: Senators Domenici and Pryor. 
Also present : John A. Edie, chief counsel ; David A. Rust, minority 

staff director; Charles H. Morley, chief investigator; Martin La VOl', 
consultant/investigator; I{athleen L. ~Iarlris, minority office manager; 
and Eileen Bra.dner, clerical assistant. 

OPENING ,STATEMENT BY SENATOR PETE V. DOMENICI, PRESIDfNG 

Senator DOMENIOI. The Senate Special Committee on Aging will come to order. 

I note that Dr. La Voris here. We have only- three witnesses other 
than the staff and investigators. Is Thomas MeBride, Inspector Gen~ 
eral from the Department of Agriculture, here ~ 

J\fr. McBRIDE. Yes, I am, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator DOMENICr. Is Alex Mercure here ~ 
Mr. MERCURE. YeE. 
Senator DOMENIOI. And Gordon Cavanaugh ~ 
Mr. ,CAVANAUGH. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. I know this is a busy day for everyone. Hope~ 

fully, we can expedit this, and finish in about 2 hours. This is what 
I am hoping for, so I will not waste any time. Senator Pryor indi­
cated an interest in bein,g- here. He said he would be late. He will be 
here in a few minutes. He cannot spend much of the afternoon with 
us. Sem,\tor Chiles is not in town. As you Inay recall, he was in New 
Mexico, for the hearings, along with SenatOl' Melcher. 

Let me give a quick summary and put into perspective why I asked' 
the three people from the national offices of the Farmers Ilome 
Administration to be here today. 

Last April, I chaired a hearing of the Special Committee on Aging 
in Las Vegas, N. J\lIex., designed to focus our attention on the special 
needs of the rural elderly. During that hearing and at the town forum 
which followed, several senior citizens raised questions about the 
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operation of eertain Federal programs in no~he~ N ew Me~ico. 
Many of their remarks focused on home rehabIlItatIOn. AllegatIOns 
were made of favoritism and nepotism in selecting recipients. The 
committee staff pursued many of these allegations and found they 
had substance. Dr. Martin La Vor was secured to serve as the com­
mittf'.-e's investigator. He made a number of trips to ~ew J\iexico, visit­
ing homes in three different counties, conferring WIth Federal, State, 
ana local officials, and meeting with numerous senior citizens who felt 
they had been poorly served by some of these programs. 

On October 8, 1980, the committee held additional hearings in Sa:nta 
Fe, N. lVIex., at which Senator Chiles, t~e chairman, from ~loTIdl;l, 
presided, and Senator ~felcher was .also In' attend.anee .. Du:r:ng thIS 
hearinO' many of the charges stemmIng from our InvestIgatIOn were 
aired Our witnesses included senior citizens whose homes had received 
incOl~plete or shoddy work unde~ ~he Farmers Home Administration's 
section 504 program, which amnlnIsters grants up to $5,000. A number 
of contractors involved in. these programs 5 and Federal, State, and 
local proO'ram administrators also test.ified. In late October, several 
staff me~bers, at my direction, met with officials of the F.armers 
Home Administration here in Washington to explore the findIngs of 
our hearing and to pose several basic questions. .. 

Mr Cavanaugh I think YOU are aware of the three basIC questIOns 
asked by our staff' and have responded to them. I will make the ques­
tions dated Oct.ober 28, a part of the record. I think you have a copy , . 
of those questIOns. 

In summary, these questions are: 1Vhat specific. steps has Farmers 
Home Administration taken to insure (a) that thIS pr~blem d~ n?t 
exist elsewhere in the program; (b) that t~is problem IS rem~dIed ill 
northern New lVIexico and won't occur agaIn; and «(]) that this prob­
lem does not arise again,in New Mexico or elsewher~~. We :vent on to 
inquire about what actIOns Farmers ROll?6 A~mInIstratIOn would 
take to properly fix the homes thLt had receIved illcomplete or shoddy 
work. 

I am now going to insert the questions and answers you gave to me 
throuO'h David Rust dated December 3. I will make those a part of o 
the record. 

[The questions and Mr. Cavanaugh's response follow:] 

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED TO FMHA BY STAFF INVESTIGATORS, OCTOBER 28, 1980 

1 The committee in its hearing found that the management of the 504 grant 
in ~orthern New Mexico was the main source of the problems with the program. 
What specific steps will FmHA take to: (a) Insure ~hat this 'Pr?blem do~s n?t 
exist elsewhere in the program; (b) in~ure that thIS proble~ IS re:r;ne~l1edT III 
northern New Mexico; (c) insure that thIS problem does not arI3e agam m New 
Mexico or elsewhere? . 

2. The committee found in its hea.ring that certain homes were Improperly 
repaired (if at all) under the 504 program. The committee would like to know; 
(a) Exactly what steps FmHA will take (if any) to properly fix up the homes 
in question' and (b) if FmHA ascertains that nothing can be done on the homes 
in question; what steps did ]'mHA take, and what inquiries did it make, to as­
certain that :~\lct? 

3. The committee would lilre to know if FmHA has any suggestions as to how 
this "no win" proposition on the parJt of the grant recipients can be avoided in 
the future. 
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, 
FARMERS HOME ADMINISTRATION, 

Was!l,ington, D.O., December 3,1980. 

U.S. Senate Special Oommittee on Aging, 
Wa8hington, D.O. 

DElAR MR. RUST: During :the meeting with you and Oharles Morley, we were 
asked to respond to several questions relating to the section 504 rural housing 
grant program of the ]'armers Home Administration (FmHA). We offer the 
following comments for your consideration: 

1. The FmHA will take the following steps to correct present problems and 
prevent their future occurrence in the section 504 rural housing grant program: 

-An administrative notice will be sent to all offices alerting the staffs to the 
type of problems discovered ill northern New Mexico. The notice will pro­
vide guidance on ways to prevent such problem si1tuations from developing 
in the future. 

-The Department's Office of Inspector General will be asked to be sure to 
cover the section 504 grant program when making their routine audits of 
the FmHA county and State office operations. 

-The seetlon 504 grant program will receive special attention at the next and 
subsequent training sessions held by the FmHA national office for all State 
office rural housing staff persons. A training session will be held early in 1981 
calendar year. 

-The present FmHA regulations for the section 504 grant program are ade­
quate, we believe. Staff from the Senate Special Committee on Aging ex­
pressed this opinion during meetings. The regulations will, however, be 
rewritten to make it even easier to follow. Some cross-references to other 
regulations will be removed and the complete information relative to the 
program included in the 504 regulation. 

-State Directors will have their District Directors monitor the section 504 
grant programs in the local county offices. 

2. The FmHA has no legal basis to provide additional assistance to persons 
whose homes were not properly repaired unless the amount of the 504 grant 
originally provided was less than the $5,000 legal maximum or the family could 
now qualify for a 504 loan at 1 percent interest. Total grant assi::;tance cannot 
exceed $5,000 and total loan or combination loan and grant cannot be more 
Ulan $7,500. 

The State Director has explored the possibility of obtaining the needed help 
to make the repairs from other sources. He has checked with the New Mexico 
State agencies to work out a solution to this part of the problem. In fact, he 
met with the State housing staff yesterday and was informed that funding for 
1981 fiscal year has not yet been received from the Community Services Admin­
istration. There is also a possibility that the State legislature will provide some 
funds that could be used to make the needed repairs. The State housing staff 
persons expressed their willingness to help. If this effort is not successful, he 
will contact local representatives of other Federal agencies. 

3. The "no win" situation, referred to in question 3 can be avoided only by 
proper administration of the 504 grant program by the FmHA. The regulations, 
if followed, will provide, as nearly as possible, the protection needed. The FmHA 
field staff has over 30 different programs to administer, which is a considerable 
load. Hopefully, they will be able to a void the reoccurrence of situations such 
as developed in northern New Mexico. We understand from Charles Morley of 
your staff who visited other locations to ched~ on the 504 grant program, that 
the program is providing much needed assisttnce for elderly low-income families. 
We believe the problem areas are few and a ssure you that applicable corrective 
nction is being taken. 

In New Mexico, the State Director has assigned another county supervisor to 
the office where the problem situation existed. He has directed the District 
Directors throughout the State to closely monitor the program. Furthermore, 
he is requiring that proper inspections of repair work be performed and this is 
being checked by the State office staff. 

Sincerely, 
GORDON CAVANAUGH, Admini8trator. 
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Senator DOMENIOI. On December 8, I received and looked over that 
letter dated December 3, from Mr. Cavanaugh, Administrator of the 
Farmers Home Administration, which was in reply to the informa­
tion we sought. I read the answers and feel that they were inadequate; 
in fact, they were so inadequate that my exercise of asking you the 
ques~ion~ and having you respond was useless. The purpose of this 
hearmg IS to attempt to get some real answers from the highest level. 
I am still not sure that in communicating the events, that you all 
understand and feel what we, who have seen these houses, and have 
viewed this episode, feel. I thought you should come here and answer 
questions so that hopefully we can put this behind us once and for all. 
"Te also need to know that steps have been taken to see that this type 
of abuse will not reoccur. 

I have to tell you that even though this is not a big program and 
there are not hundreds of homes that have been poorly renovated, I 
um ('om~erned, because a number of my constituents have had their 
expectations dashe.d for an improved standard of living by what I 
consider to be poor management at the local level by those who ad­
minister your program. When a private citizen is clearly hurt by 
aetions or inactions of a Federal agency, as has been the case with 
a ~umber of my elderly constit~ents,. then I think these people have 
a rIght to expect a redr.ess of theIr grIevances. To date, again I regret 
to say, Farmers Home has seemed strangely impotent in its efforts to 
locate resources needed to repair these homes. 

In addition, the investigation raised some questions about the opera­
tion of the Inspector General's Office. USDA auditors located many 
of the same problems we turned up in our investigation. I want to 
repeat that. USDA auditors located many of the same problems we 
turned up later in our investigation. We found that when investiga­
tors from the Inspector General's Office were sent into the State they 
worked with real determination to rout out the problems. I am con­
cerned, however, about how well the IG's Office functions under nor­
mal circumstances; that is, when you have audits revealing shortcom­
ings, what triggers an IG investigation ~ 

I know what triggered that one, complaints from us and others· 
but why does it not happen normally, or does it, and we just happen 
to have one that fell between the cracks. I want you to exnlain that 
to us. I think this has some generic si~ificance about the IG's in the 
last years in routing out abuse, fraud, and waste. The auditors find 
and identify certain problems, but the system does not appear to be 
well attuned to responding to the kinds of widespread, petty fraud 
uncovered in this investigation. 

Perhaps we need to review the operation of the Inspector General's 
Office tv see if this could be corrected; maybe it already is and maybe 
this is just an accidental occurrence. So this hearing should culminate 
a process which began last April. I think it has done some 2"ood. I just 
feel that two or three issues remain, the most serious of which is what 
are we going to do to help those people whose homes were repaired 
improperly to get some redress from someone somewhere. 

Weare going to go very quickly with a slide presentation of 3, few 
of the homes which were inspected by Dr. La VOl'. I know you are 
aware of them, but I am not sure you have seen them. It won't take 
long. It is just so you will haye a feel for wha;t this Senator and two 
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ot~er Senators sawin New Mexico. We are going to do this very 
qUIckly. 

Dr. La VOl', will you show examples of some 'Of the homes. 
Dr. LA VOR. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator DOMENICI. Senator Pryor: do you have anything you want 

to add~ 
STATEMENT BY SENATOR DAVID PRYOR 

Senat?r PRYOR. Just let me add this: Senator Domenici. I am sorry 
that I WIll not be able to stay :for the entire hearing today. I remember 
th~t ~his .r;natter was discussed some months ago when you brought 
tlus sItua;tlOn to ,th~ atten~ion of this committee. As you know, I share 
your concern fur thIS partIcular program. Both you and .our ohairman 
Senator 9hiles, have stt..Jied this in far greater detail than I have. I a~ 
not <?ertam that, th~ probl~ms that you have found are unique to New 
JYlexlCo alone-It IS certaInly possible that these and other similar 
pr?blems may be .occurring in other States as well, if not nationwide. I 
thmk that you have performed a valuable service in this area and 
would like to bring that to the attention of our witnesses today. ' 

Senator DOMENICI. Thank you, Senator. 
I just want to tell you the unique problem we have. I feel that eventu­

ally Farmers Home win cure the internal management pr.oblems that 
really', were g~oss. I mean th~re were people v:rh.o were not capable 
of domg the Job. ~here we~e Inspectors who saId they did not know 
how to Inspect. I thInk we WIll cure those. But now we have a situation 
where a few New Mexicans have homes that have $5,000 in Federal 
~overnment money spent .on them. They have not been repaired. There 
IS no ~oney left. In some instances, there is no signed contract. I don't 
~ow If Farmers Home knows thi~. In some of these, your field people 
d!d not even have the contractor SIgn a contraot so the money has been 
dIspensed, the home has been repaired in a really deplorable way. 
There is no money left. The citizen has no one to sue and we dDn't have 
any way to fix the homes that we already have spent our money on. 
This is one of the tough ones. 

I hope that if FarrnHrs fIDme can't come up with some resDurces, 
Senator Pryor, that eax:JLy next year you will help me. I intend to fino 
out rou~hly how much is needed and if FmHA doesn't find it, I intend 
to take ~t away fro~ th~ Department ?f Agriculture. If it is $50,000, 
I am gOIng to take It OUG of some AgrIculture program and put it in 
an escrow account and let Farmers Home go there and fix those homes. 
Now maybe there is another way, but I just want to share that with 
you today. We can work on it a little further in the ending weeks of 
this year and the start of next year. 

I think you for coming. 
Now, Doctor, will you very quickly just show lIS some of these 

examples. Go ahead. 

STATEMENT OF DR. MARTIN LA VOR, CONSULTANT/INVESTIGATOR, 
U.S. SENATE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON AGING 

D~. LA VOll. vVhat I was going to do, Mr. Chairman, is just sum­
marI~e some of the things that we f~und as a prelude to getting into 
the slIdes. There were two reports whIch were submitted for the record 
and have been printed. 
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We found the rehabilitation work done on most of the homes was 
generally incomplete and of poor quality. 

We found that mismanagement of existing programs has resulted 
in the expenditure of Federal and State funds which actually frus­
trate and even circumvent the objectives Congress established to meet 
the pressing needs of low-income rural elderly. 

We found the rules, regulations~ aild procedures promulgated by 
the national Farmers IIome Administration Office were generally not 
adhered to in the three counties investigated. This breakdown in the 
management of the program appears to be a major cause of the prob­
lems which were observed, as you will see from the slides. 

We found duplication and overlap of programs. 
We found programs funded by different agencies and authorized 

by different laws being used for the same purposes and for the same 
target populations. 

'iV e found money provided by one program is often used to do, redo, 
or correct work that was already "done" by another. 

"Ve also found evidence of nepotism in awarding grants. Not all 
that information is detailed in the reports which were submitted for 
the committee but what I would like to do, we have just a sample of 
homes that we found. 

This particular slide, I am going to give you just a brief background 
of what was supposed to have been done on each home and then 
quickly go through what was done. This grant was a second grant. 
The first one was from the weatherization program funded by the 
Community Services Administration and that was for $760. The sec­
ond grant from Farme,rs Home was for $3,400. Then there was a third 
grant from the State IIousing .Authority which also had money from 
the Community Services Administration. The grant was supposed to 
repair the roof and install new windows. 

Senator DO:VIENICI. Which grant ~ 
Dr. LA VOR. The Farmers Home grant. 
I am going to focus only on that one unless I specifically give you 

some other information. 
Senator DOMENlO!. All right. 
Dr. LA VOR. Fix the rooI, put in some new windows, and install new 

electrical wiring. Now this is the home; as you can see, a v( -y small 
home. 

Second slide, please. 
One of the things on this house, the contractor used old materials 

and some new materials. TIllS door and these two windows were in­
stalled by the weatherization program, and as you can see, they were 
stuccoed in the finish. The contractor doing.the Farmers Home work 
did some electrical wiring although he was not a licensed contractor. 
He put this outside meter in, broke through the wall. A year after the 
work was finished the wall was still open and not finished. This is the 
wire going into the house, and the wire just flaps in the wind and can 
break at any time. 

Next slide, please. 
One of the principal reasons for doing- the grants was to repair the 

roof because it leaked. As you will see here. that is sunlight, because 
1 year after the work was done, this is what it looks like inside. It was 
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leaking aroun~ h~r\''1 and you can still see outside. That is sunli ht 
t~re so they dldn t even close up. the holes that were there. The woJan ili. ~ lwks 

Jhh hou~e also compl~med that there were parts of the roof 
a .ea. e t at dldn t leak before the contractor 'tarted workin 
~llls IS another example of how they left the interior of the ho~se 

rh~h badk ~oor :was Supposed to. 11a ve bep,n replaced and it" itS not. Thi~ 
:. ed Hln pIpe from the sm~, so everything just goes into the 
6! oun. ere are some of ~he WIndows put in by the contractor As Ytd: c~n see,. they are not fimshed. The roof is open. You will see a l~ter 
~ I . e In admlnute. The water leaks into the roof, which has no insulation 
Itn1 It,. and then comes down here, and leaks into the house through le WIn ow. 

tl Here id the h~oseup of the same pIcture, and you can see the openings 
letr~ abn nlot mg was done. Here are just some more of the widdows 

pu In y t le same contractor. 

b Tt ht1ese steps were p\lt in by the contractOI' and there is no railing u ley are new steps. 
N e~t :slide, please. 

to ThIS IS the ot~er set of steps 3,·l1d t'he contrar.tor didn't even bother 
d touch hothem, didn't bother to replace the doors-the regular house 

001', .or: t e door to the house as per the contract. 
.This IS the second home. What Farmers Home was supposed to do on 

~llS house was ~eplace. the entire roof on the dwelling. 1 am readin 
rom the narratIve from the Farmers Home Administration nle: g 

do~r~~nii~~~ r:~~~e e.fr~e roof ?:l dwellin~, stucco c~ack13 around windows and 
iloo' " WI e repllIred, and lllloleum will be placed on bathroom 
stal~e~so~t e~stre~ently rough .wO?d. floor. Paneling and insulation will be in-

~~~~~~\~~s~hesea~ac~~~st~Tifl~~~!l~~~IIf;;toT::~~n~~;a~~,0~~~~~!1~!~y il~\~: 
. This. isda .long view of the house. This is a corrugated tin roof which IS reqUIre In New Mexico. . . 

N e~t .side, please. 
This IS the same roof, and this is the roof where the contraotor did 

some wor~. The contractor did not remove the entire roof. 
Next slIde, please. 
°fn tIllS roof, 11e left it and painted it with aluminum paint on this roo. 
Next slide, please. 
On. this roof, he left the corrugated tin on the roof and simply cov­

ered It, and laId rolled tar paJ?er down, and it didn't even 'Overlap the 
seams. As y~u can. see, there IS the old oorrugated roof. He replaced 
two doors w~th thIn hollow doors. The New Mexico code sa s the 
~houlldl be solId doors, but this is an example of a hlnge the coJ.ra~to~ Insta ed. 

. This is the babhr?om that was taken by an estimate sent out That 
IS a one-:vay street SIgn on the floor. . 

I-~re IS an example of what the house looks like 2 years after the 
wor was done, and how much it has leaked, and how much dama e 
hh

as 
been done to the wall and side that should have been protected ly t e new roof. 

Thh~s is the third house. With this house I will read the description on t IS one. 
'I /, 



104 

Proposed grant will replace two doors which are in bad shape, replace one 
attic door which is old, replace rotted out floor in kitchen, put linoleum on 
living room floor to cover wood floors, replace flues in kitchen and living room 
and replace' six' windows. All work will be done and provide safe, decent, and 
sanitary living conditions. 

For $4,800, what they did was, they came in-these were the win~ 
dO'wTs that were in the house. These were the existing windows and 
I am not ~ure why they were supposed to have been replaced because 
they seemed to have been in good shape, but the contractor had small 
,vindows so he simply took out a couple of the old windows, put fram­
ing in to meet the size of the windows he had, and put this window 
in, put these two windows in. You can see the sides of the old windows. 

These doors were supposed to have been replaced and they were not. 
This is the back of the house and you can see these windows. This door 
was replaced. The attic door was not replaced although that window 
was replaced. 

Here is the flue that they put in and they .didn't even finish that, 
and ~o, as a consequence of the work they did, it rains through that 
openmg. 

Here is one of the floors they did. Someone picked up a piece of tile 
and went like that [indicating] and that is what is left after 1 year 
of tiling in: the house. 

This is the covering over the floor that the Farmers Home saId 
replaced rotted out floor in kitchen. They left the existing floor and 
simply put the cheap tile on top of it. 

This woman is very vocal, and so she went to Farmers Home and 
complained, and as a result, instead of getting the contractor to go 
back and repair the work, they went to the State housing authority 
which has the Community Services grant, and gave her another $3,500, 
and what they were supposed to do was essentially what the first 
grant was supposed to do, so this house which you just saw received 
the total of $8,900, and this is what the grant looks like after the 
expenditure of $8,900. 

Next slide, please. 
This is a home that has received many grants, and this is an exam­

pIe of the duplication. This home received a weatherization grant, 
a.nd w~ have not been able to .determine how much they received on 
it, but it is no more than $750. 

They went in and put in these windows, which were done, and some 
other parts of the house, but the Farmers Home grant on this house 
was supposed to-I am reading from the narrative again: "Grant will 
be used to install bathroom, repair ceilings, roof, and porch deck. A.ll 
of the above will eliminate all unsafe and unsanitary conditions which 
exist." 

This is the back of the house and the septic system that went to' 
the bathroom was back here. 

Next slide, please. 
This is the porch they put in and it is on an angle because it is a 

wide-angle lens. This is less than 1 year old and this gives you some 
idea of what it looks like, but you will notice the size of the step :from 
the top. Remember, this is a very old woman. 

Next slide, please. 
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We had somebody walk down. In order for her to get down she has 
to hold ·on to that railing and step dQl.vn very carefully. 

Next slide, please. 
This is the deck that was put on. 
This house had electrical work done on it. The electrical work was 

so bad that last May, 1 year after the work was completed, this house 
was red tagged by the electrical contractor for the third tim~. In 
October it was still red tagged and some new work was being done. 
This woman's mop-thly electrical bill went from $12.60 in 1977 to 
$88.27 last spring after the work was done. Even taking into account 
for inflation, it is admittedly higher. I should add, Mr. Chairman, 
after the first report was issued, several inspectors went out, and this 
house was also red tagged by the plumbing inspector because the septic 
system was put in improperly. 

Here is an example of the type of electrical work that was done in 
the house. 

Next slide, please. 
Here is the bathroom. This room is 8 by 8. They put a wall down the 

center, and they di.d not put in any ventilation. 
Next slide, please. 
What I used here was a wide-angle lens. This is a 4 by 4 room 

so it looks a lot larger than it is. This is a used bathtub they put in 
although they were paid for a new one. This window was installed 
only half way and the woman complained vigorously about it. 

This is the heater that is in the house, and you will notice there is 
no vent, which is a code violation in almost any State in the country, 
and it is just a danger to the woman. So what did they do ~ Instead 
of getting the contractor to come back they gave her a second grant 
from the State housing authority to .do the work properly. So that 
house was given the weatherization grant, the Farmers Home grant, 
und the State housing authority grant. She had received $8,500, and 
then because of all of the publicity that resulted from this house, the 
Community Services A.dministration has just given her anot.her grant, 
which is repairing the house now and that is what you see now. This 
is the new contractor's work, who is going in to try to bring it up to 
standard. This house as you see it now and up until October had had 
$11,600 spent on it. 

Next slide, please. 
Senator DOMENICI. Dr. La Vor, do you have an example showing us 

something different ~ 
Dr. LA VOR. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICr. Please show one, so we may hear the Farmers 

Home witnesses. 
Dr. LA VOR. What I found, Mr. Chairman, while we were going 

forward was that there were homes that received grants that were 
owned by relatives of people who worked with Farmers Home, and 
that is what we are g'oing to get to now . Now we have just run th rough 
very fast, the other homes. Here is an example, and I must add, Mr. 
Chairman, the reason why we are showing these, all of the homes that 
we saw were picked at random, there was no design as to how we 
picked them, and it didn't matter which county we went to, we found 
the same thing with four exceptions. These are homes owned by rela ... 
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tives or a relative of an employee of the State housing authority who 
worked out of the Farmers Home Office, and had total responsIbility 
on the staff level for the 504 grant. 

As we skim through let me just show you, you can just go through 
these very slowly, and I will just show you what $5,000 bought In 
these homes. Just keep in mind what you saw before. 

This home installed a new tin roof, installed new kitchen cabinets, 
installed new paneling, installed a new water heater, installed a new 
bedroom heater, installed two new windows, installed two new storm 
doors. There were 10 to 15 sheets of: sheetrock left over, and they claim 
they had money left over. -

This next home, this was another relative, installed a complete new 
tin roof, h_dtalled two storm doors, installed new cement floor in 
kitchen and dining room, installed carpeting on entire floor, installed 
a new wall heater, installed a new vanIty sInk in bathroom. Her son, 
a cabinetmaker, made the kitchen cabinets .. -

This house received a new tin roof, new ceiling, new subfloor, new 
linoleum, new kitchen cabinets, carpeting, and the like. 

The only reason why we mention those, Mr. Ohairman, is to show 
the contract, No. 1. No.2, these-homes had many things done to them 
that were in total violation of l"armers Home's own regulations and 
were inspected by Farmers Home employees. 

Senator DO::M..ENICI. I will summarize this last one for you. 'l'here 
are a number of things wrong with it. I don't want to make a big 
issue of nepotism, but it is very strange to me. Of all the homes in 
the north, four direct relatives of Robert Madrid's in one little town 
of Villanueva all got grants. There are hundreds of homes spread out 
through the north which did not receive them. 

Another thing that is interesting, and I would hope that Farmers 
Ilome would follow up on this, in l'iew Mexico, the only homes our in­
vestigators saw that were repaired well, were those that were done 
through self-help, by the relatives of Robert lVIadrid. These we.re 
beautIful jobs for $5,000. 'Ve are now told that self-help is illegal in 
New Mexico. It, is illegal because you cannot self-help $5,000 grants. 
You must be a building contractor. So this type of work which seems 
to do the jobs well is illegal. 

Many of these were done by unlicensed contractors and there is no 
question under State law that anything over $500 has to be done by 
a licensed contractor. I don't raise all these for you to know the 
answers, but just to tell you that something is "rotten in Denmark," 
with this small program in New Mexico. 

In addition: for those of you who didn't hear the original testimony 
earlier, in each of these cases, the Farmers Home inspector looked at 
the home, looked at the agreement, and cosigned a check with the 
owner releasing the Farmers flome money for the repairs. That was 
part of the procedure, that the inspector would inspect and cosign a 
check. These are examples of some 20 homes that we have seen. Eleven 
of these were done by P. & P., who has been debarred by Farmers 
llome from doing any future work. I mean there are just all kinds of 
examples. 

Now what I would like our three Federal witnesses to do, so that 
we can finish at 4 o'clock, is to testify together. Let's talk together 
about what we are going to do, if anything, to alleviate this situation. 

~--------------------------
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M!'. McBride, I understand you have two people :with you. I will 
leave it up to you. If you want them to come up WIth you, you can 
have them. Identify them, please. 

STATEMENT OF THOMAS F. McBRIDE, WASHINGTON, D.C., IN­
SPECTOR GENERAL, U.S. DEPARTMEI'lT OF AGRICULTURE 

Mr. MoBRIDE. I think I can handle any inquiries you have, Mr. 
Chairman. 

Senator DOMENIOI. Mr. McBride, would you st.ate your name and 
title, please. . 

Mr. MoBRIDE. I am Thomas F. McBride, Inspector General, U.S. 
Department of Agriculture. 

Senator DOJ\fENIOI. All right. Mr. :McBride, I don't expect you to 
have a prepared statement for today but if you do~ we will hear it: 

Mr. ~IoBRIDE. I do not. -I will respond to questIOns or summarIze 
my own findings and views.. . 

Senator DO]lrENICI. JHr. ~fcBrIde, let's qUIckly go through a few 
questions with you and see where we come out. 

Can you explain for the commit~ee b~iefly the me?hanics of an 
audit. What kind of occurrences WIll trlgger an audIt? How long 
does an audit take? l-Iow thorough is it? T'hose kinds of questions 
fi~ . . 

Mr. MoBRIDE. We have on our staff 440 auditors, about 300 InvestI-
gators. New Mexico is covered by our Southwes~ regiona~ office .located 
in Temple, Tex., with a fairly large staff of audItors and lnvestIgators. 
Our priorities are set both by the InsJ?ector Gener~l Act and my own 
guidelines and they are threefold basIcally: One, IS an allegatlO~, or 
suspicion of fraud; two, danger of a large ~ollar loss; three, al!- Issue 
of integrity of any U.S. Department of AgrICul~ure employee. ¥Inally, 
we give priority where there i~ press, congresslOn~l, or other mterest, 
whether it be based on allegatIOns of fraud or mIsma~agement. . 

This particular audit was initiated when we w~re In ~ew MexICO 
auditing another FmHA program called the technICal aSSIstance pro­
gram. Auditors read press accounts of complaints that homeowners 
had made, talked to their audit snpervisors2 and it was agreed that 
they would commence that next week an audIt, initially in Rio Arriba 
County and then they expected to move to San Miguel and Mora 
Countl~s. The Rio Arriba findings were discussed with the State 
Farmers Home people at the end of 1979 or in early 1980. Those were 
the beginnings of the disclosures that have si~ce follow~d. . . 

It is hard to describe the audit process WIthout takmg a lIttle tIme. 
I will try to .do it very quickly. 

Senator DOl\fENIOI. Let me just say so we will all unders~and. an 
audit is a very detailed procedure. It is not a cursory exannnatlOn, 
and it is not a criminal investigation. 

Mr. MoBRIDE. That is right. 
Senator DO~rENIOI. Is this [pointing 1 your audit? 
Mr. :M:OBRIDE. That is the audit report and work papers. 
Senator DOl\fENIOI. And work papers. 
Mr. MoBRIDE. Yes. 
Senator DOJ.\fENIOI. And in this rrh.4.terial are many of the same facts 

our committeo investigation turned up much later. 
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Mr. McBRIDE. That is correct. 
Senator DOMENICI. Is that correct ~ 
Mr. McBRIDE. That is correct. 
Senator DOMENIC!. If I understand your role, it is you are up here 

at the top of the triangle and on one side are auditors. This is an ordi­
nary function to make sure the departments are doing their jobs right 
and managing things right. 

Mr. McBRIDE. Right. 
Senator DOMENICI. Now on some occasions you go down the other 

side of this triangle and you have your investigators do something. 
1\fr. McBRIDE. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. That is different than the auditing function, 

isn't it ~ 
Mr. McBRIDE. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. What do the investigators do ~ 
Mr. 1\fcBRIDE. The investigators are basically investigating either 

employee misconduct or more importantly criminal violations. Let me 
just make one thing clear which is, that all of this information does 
not come to roost in the Washington office. We are a large organiza­
tion. We are regionally sub office oriented and I have instructed all of 
my auditors and investigators that it is as simple as walking across 
the hall to convey information which they think should be investi­
gated. We have policy directives to that effect and I would be glad to 
submit them for the record. 

Senator DOMENICI. I didn't mean to imply, and I don't right now, 
that Mr. Cavanaugh or Mr. Mercure would have access to this kind 
of thing. This is occurring in the field. . 

Mr. McBRIDE. The point I am trying to make, Mr. Chairman, is 
simply that the information does not have to get to me or one of my 
VVashington staff. The field auditor is supposed to tell his counterpart 
jnvestigator right away if he thinks there is something criminal that 
should be looked into. 

Senator DOMENICI. I know you may have a lot of things to tell us, 
but I W9,nt to get a lot of things on recor.d- for this committee because 
it seems to me that the local Farmers Home office should have been 
aware of the findings you make here, what you found in the field. 
They should have been taking corrective action and they didn't, from 
what I can remember from the hearing, until long after this had been 
completed and our findings made. 

Now why would that be ~ Is that the case and why would that be ~ 
Mr. l\fcBRIDE. Well, I think it is the case. That is, in terms of the 

deficiencies in the program operations and the faulty rel?airs b~ing 
corrected, certainly that has been the case. In terms of actIOn agamst 
the officials, I think that has, at least in part, been the case. There 
has been a long delay which FmHA would attribute first to instruc­
tions from their snneriors not to take action during the pendency of 
the Senate committee's investigation and later of the grand jury 
investigation with which we are working. 

Some things were undertaken. As I understand it, several of our 
audit recommendations were implemented-for example, working out 
procedures with the State Construction Inspection Division and cer­
tain training steps were undertaken. We recommended in September 
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tha~ FmHA conduct as a routine part of its assessment field operations 
reVIews of the 504 program. That has not been done to any great 
degree. 

.My unders~anding is that four counties in Texas have been surveyed 
slIghtly but It. has not otherwise been built in to their assessments. 
We ourselves m June 1ecided to cc7rl,uct a national audit survey of 
the.594 program. Tha;t IS begun and It IS In the survey stage, the audit 
tramIIlg stage, and WIll be conducted during the first 3 months of 1981. 

Senator DOMENICI. How long will it be before those findings are 
made available ~ 

1\'1r. McBRIDE. I would guess acout April or March we would have 
a draft audit and be exiting with FmHA. We have done other 504 
work., In ~act, in Senator Pryor's State we have done three or four 
countIes, eIther completed or underway, because we found indications 
of t~e same problems. It was ,the combination of problems in New 
MexIco and Arka;nsas that d~Clded '!1s to do a national survey. 

We .also ar~ dOIng preventIve audIt surveys to cover on a stakistical 
samplm.g basIs. the smaller FmHA programs which tend not to get 
the audIt overSIght that the large programs receive. 
~ena~or DOMENICI. Let me ,state to Mr. McBride my recolleckion 

wInch IS, and you correct me If I am wrong, either you or the staff 
that this field work was finished 8 months-8 months-before the Sen~ 
ate Special Committee got involved. Now is that correct ~ 

Mr. ~cB~IDE. Rio Arriba was finished in about Janu\try 1980, and 
San MigueJ III about March: the field work was finished. 

Sena;tor DOl\{ENICI. Now why in the world would Farmers I-Iome not 
take correc~ive action ~gainst offici~ls based upon your investigation ~ 
The qomnllttee on Agmg was not Involved until 8 months afterward. 
l'hat IS several months. You were not involved in the criminal inves­
tigation until substantially laker. 

Mr. McBRIDE. Not until July. 
Senator DOMENICI. Why didn't Farmers Home take some personnel 

action in the meantime ~ 
1\;1r. ~CBRIDE.' While I don't know, I may be able to shed a little light 

on It .. FI:~·st, ~hIle we had orally briefed the State director, Mr. Cloud; 
the distrICt dIrector, Mr. Glover; the assistant director, Ms. Quintana, 
and some of the other State office staff of our findings, I would guess 
that they were waiting for the final audit report, and there was some 
delay on our end in issuing the final audit report. I raised auestions 
with my own, staff .ab0'!Jt that and~ both based on that delay'" and the 
del~y of tl~e InvestIgatIve referral, we have had to ,take disciplinary 
~ctI?n a~aInst two a~dit staff involved in this matter. The delay was 
III VIOlatIOn of my pohcy and I was unaware of it at the time. However 
I do not thmk either of those factors excuses the State director fro~ 
taking prompt administrative action. 

This has b~n a constant problem that I have faced and I am sure 
other Inspectors General faced within their agencies. There is a ten­
de!lcy to ?e pa~>aly~ed ~wl~ile there ~s any investigation, particularly 
crImInal InvestIgatIve, actIOn, pendIng. Normally what I encourage 
agency management to do is to call me or my staff to see if the assistant 
U.S. attorney who is hab.dling the case has any objection. If they want 
to demote, fire, reprimand, transfer~ and the U.S. a;ttorney does not 
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have a problem, then I encourage them to take the a,ppropriate action. 
My theory is that (1) you have protected the program, and (2) in 

most cases it does not prejudice the criminitl action. I was never posed 
that question in this matter. 

Senator DOMENICI. Let me get this sumnlarized. This committee will 
have to make a reference on the issue we are talking about. "That you 
are telling me is that when an investigation that you are undertaking 
reveals a kind of personnel action that would justify personne.I 
changes--

]\.11'. MoBRIDE. Discipline. 
Senator DOMENICI [continuing]. Discipline, nothing will happen if 

the USDA gets involved, because the agency won't take disciplinar:y 
action while the charge is pending. That is a general concern. 

Mr. McBRIDE. It has been a general problem. That does not mean 
that in some cases there has not been prompt and effective action, but 
it is my experience that there is slowness in decisions and semiparalysis 
in exercising that kind of responsibility, and I don't think that is only 
characteristic of the Department of Agriculture. Talking to my col­
leagues in the IG business, it is a common problem. 

Senator DOMENICI. AIl right. 
Now I understand within your own IG office as pertains to this inves­

tigation and audit, you had to take some disciplinary 9ction becauso 
your people didn't follow your rules, is that correct ~ 

Mr. :Th1oBRIDE. That is correct. 
Senator DOMENIOI. You discipline, too. 
Mr. MoBRIDE. Yes; in this instance, a supervisory, auditor, and an 

assistant regional inspector general. 
Senator DOMENIOI. Has your office ever looked at the organizational 

and administrative staff and management capabilities of Farmers 
I-Iome~ 

Mr. MoBRIDE. Yes; we have. I would commend tA> your attention, 
Mr. Chairman, the semiannual reports that I have filed with the Con­
gress. These contain my observations about the m~nagement com­
petencies and problems of Farmers Home Administrn.tion generally, 
and observations about the problems, obstacles, and resources limita­
tions that underlie some of those problems. In fairneSEl to those that 
direct Farmers Home those obstacles are a very import9JJ.t factor. 
During the past 11,4 years I have viewed Farmers Home as a major 
problem area within the Department and I have boon ("an did to say so 
in any semiannual reports. It has been a subject obviously of both eou­
cern and dispute. Under Secretary Mercure, Administrator Cava­
naugh, and I have sometimes differed but we have both feIt free to call 
them as we see them and have done so. . 

Senator DOMRNICI. Which was one of the char3,cteristics of your 
Office when the IG Office was created. 

Mr. MoBRIDE. That is what the statute says. 
Senator DOMENIOI. Now let me talk to Mr. Cavanangh and Mr. ~Ier­

cure for a minute. 
Mr. Cavanaugh, can you tell me now in your opinion what has gone 

wrong with your agency that would allow this sman program-this 504 
program, a very small national program-to hr~ administered this 
poorly in my State ~ 
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STATEMENT OF GORDON CAVANAUGH, WASHINGTON, D.C., AD­
MINISTRATOR, FARMERS HOME ADMINISTRATION, U.S. DE­
PARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. Senator, there is no one that would be other than 
shocked by the poor w~rk and total fail:ure of performance by the con­
~rac~or on the remodelI,ng, ,The only thIng I guess that is more shock­
Ing IS the peop12 who lIve In those places even before the repair work 
started. 

Senator DOMENICI. That is correct. 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. vVe believe that we have in the ao-ency and I think 

thrut yo~r ~taff. and others have found, a very sounl'set of regulations 
fo~ admlnls~e~Ing the 504 program. As difficult as that program is, I 
thmk tha:t It : ...s produced some very, very sound repair renovation 
work natIOnally. I have seen hundreds of examples of it"myself as I 
have traveled around. 

Sen,ator DOMENI?I. Mr. Oavanaugh, based on your administrative 
experlenc~, let me Just ask yo~ to eXI?er:ience a ~ypical file on a $5,000 
504 g~ant In the State of FlorIda. ThIS IS a typIcal county in Florida 
a typIcal program, a look at one of their files on a rehabilitated house' 
Now look at a file on aNew Mexico house. They are not like the sam~ 
program. Let me tell you some crazy things that are not even there 
that could be worse. 

No release. You Imow what that means. 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. Yes. 
.Senator DOMENICI. That means that one of these contracto·rs even 

WIth th~ shoddy work, could end up not paying for the mruteri~ls, or 
not J?aymg the labor. TJ;1en that poor homeowner would have a lien 
on Ius house that would Indeed be paramount, and have to be paid by 
the sale of the proper~y because a c<?ntractor didn't pay his bills. In th"e 
case of P. & P., there IS not even a SIgned contract with this contractor 
where that contractor signed his name to be respons1ble to do the work. 

Now how does all that happen ~ 
Alex. you volunteer. 
Mr: CAVANAUGH. I .w?l!l~ like to add one thing here. I am not trying 

to relIeve the responsIbIlItIes of our agency, but in an effort to broaden 
the coverage of. that 504 program in l~ ew Mexico, we entered into 
arrangements WIth the State and some of its personnel for them to 
supply:us employees to supplement our rather short staff to help con­
duct thI~ program. It is my understanding, Senator, that many of the 
houses, If not all that you have r~erred to and have been described 
~ere today, were under the direction and handling of a person who 
IS not a career Farmers 1lom.e employee, but someone who is provided 
to us under ~rrangements WIth the State, and that, in my view, that 
would count In part for the fact that our regulations were not observed 
fully and that we had--

Senator DOMENICI. Let me t~ll you on that score I agree with you. 
I ~m a strong proponent of thIS program and I want more money in 
tlus program, not less. ,I ~nderstand the personnel problems, but let me 
tell you, Robert ~adrId IS not the sole culprit· they ney-er paid him 
he was on th~ State's pa:y:roll. This is one of the 'examples of personnel 
problems you are referrIng to, but we found these same problems in 
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counties where every single employee was yours. There were no Robert 
Madrids. 

I think Robert Madrid did part of San Miguel and part of Mora 
and that he begged other people to do inspections. They said, "We did 
them for him even though we didn't know how to do them, but we 
liked him." They so testified. That is not the whole story, something 
else went wrong. 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. I was not suggesting it was the whole answer, but 
you are asking my view of how this happened, and I think that is part 
of the answer. The other is failure to follow the procedures of the 
agency, which follow, would not have allowed such a res!llt as the 
terrible pictures that you have seen here today. 

Senator DOJ.\IENICI. One of the things that struck me and I want to 
mention now, before we even start is, I have seen many of these homes. 
You are absolutely right. They are so poorly constructed at the begin­
ning before you even start repairing them, and I began to feel maybe 
you can't repair them and maybe nobody can. Maybe we should excuse 
P. & P. who obviously, I say publicly, is a lousy construction firm; in 
fact, I don't think they are a construction firm. Then I read one of 
your regulations and it is not an excuse either, because Farmers 
Home had, to make a finding based on the grant and the work plan, 
which end product would create and cause a home to be safe and 
sanitary. 

I know how hard it is when you have many poor people who need 
help. There are many applicants. If you choose a home which can't 
be repaire~ for $5,000, even though the law says it has to be healthy 
and sanitary when you are finished, I don't know if we can blame the 
contractor for that either. 

Alex. 

STATEMENT OF ALEX P. MERCURE, WASHINGTON, D.C., AS­
SISTANT SECRETARY, RURAL DEVELOPMENT, U.S. DEPART· 
MENT OF AGRICULTURE 

Mr. MERCURE. The safety and sanitary conditions have been rec­
ognized by both the Congress and the agency, there were some houses 
that cannot be brought up to minimum sanitation conditions. The 
clear danger to health and safety is what we are attempting to elimi­
nate. With the housing rehabilitation program it is clear that there 
are some houses that cannot be brought up to the safe and sanitary 
condition. 

I think that one can interpret the quality of a home and the repair­
ability of a home a little too strictly. It is import.3.nt to recognize this 
problem. 

Another element is, as you have already indicatE:d. and we agree with 
your statement, it is a very useful and fruitful program when properly 
administered. It is a catastrophe when not run right. The important 
part to remember here in terms of the procedure, our own regulations 
were not followed by our own employees and that is what first came 
to our attention as a result of the newspaper stories in Rio Arriba 
County. This is doubly embarrassing to me, inasmuch as that is my 
own county. 

---------------~-~.----.~---.---.-. 
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Farmers Home Administration has periodically requested audits 
wherever we discover these problems. As of May 5, we received infor­
mation from the Inspector General which was responded to on JYlay 
27. I believe that most of the problems you have identified, together 
with what has been done sjnce May 27. will go a long way toward 
eliminating most of the problems. I think it is also clear that this is a 
difficult program, and therefore it must be monitored on a consistent 
basis. It is the only way in which very poor people who don't need a 
30-year moftgage can eliminate the problems of safety and unsanital"y 
conditions. 

1 think the steps that Farmers Home has taken win help us prevent 
it, hut I must admit, Mr. Chairman, that even under the best of cir­
cumstances you have to be alert. I believe; that there was perhaps an 
opportunity to prevent some of the problems that you saw, but some 
otthem would have occurred if we had been more alert. It is perhaps 
a. problem that we were not alert enough early enough to prevent from 
occurring. An early warning system is obviously necessary. 

You raise another more important concern, which is the human. con­
cern of those 20 families or so, and as many others as we can discover. 

Senator DOMENICI. That is the real tough issue. 
JYIr. MERCURE. Which is to a large extent that they are· out in the 

cold and it pains most. of us to recognize, and I think all of us do 
recognize, that currently we have no authority to make the reparations 
which are necessary in virtually all of the 20-some loans that have been 
identified as the problem loan. We estimate that it probably would 
take us. even based on the information that was shown on the slides, 
about $25,000 to fix those homes to the level where we believe we 
eliminate most of the critical problems. . 

The difficulty is that the current authority we have does not pernut 
us to indemnify for :bad construction in that repair process. The diffi­
culty again is that most people who are into home repa~r programs, and 
this is true throughout the country ~ tend to be margmal contractors, 
and that was the fact in Rio Arriba County. The man walked away, 
there was no way to hold him accountable; he left the State. 

Then finally, as I say, Farmers Home has been cooperating w~th 
providing information. We would be more than happy to work WIth 
you to overcome the difficulty th3Jt we have here and to work with you 
to make sure that we make the program more effective. . 

Senator DOMENICI. Let me get this on record because a lot of New 
Mexicans are concerned. 

Mr. Cavanaugh: let me ask you some very specific questions. I would 
like t'J to-et back to the issue of trying to help those people who thought 
their h(~nies were going to be repaired and still have unrepaired homes. 
Secretary Mercure mentioned $25~000. I am not sure this amount will 
cover anything more than the 13 or 14 that we lmow about. No one 
has gone out and seen all of them or looked at everyone. Have you 
instituted any procedure now to control conflicts of interest among 
staff l11E'-mbers dealing with the administration of 504 grants ~ 

],11'. CAVANAUGH. Senator, all our staff are subject to stringent rules 
with -regard to co~flicts of i~terest. I think basically the result ~n this 
kind of problem 1S not haVIng alert management that stays dIrectly 
on top of the question. Th3Jt is often difficult for our staff in some areas 
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where we find ourselves understaffed and overburdened. There. is no 
excuse for this kind of result but it is a strai~ ?~ the system. Ba~ICany 
we believe that we have, governing our actlvItIes, strong confhct-of­
interest rules that, should they be violated, there is plenty of room for 
discipline. ., t 

Senator DOMENICI. Where did the breakdowns In this one occur, a 
the State level ~ 

Mr. MERCURE. We properly delegated authority to FmIIA, and 
frankly I think that is the problem. 

Senator DOMENICI. So if conflicts of interest occurred as related to 
Robert Madrid who was an employee of the State and not yours, you 
improperly delegated authority to him to cosign your checks, and 
therefore he cannot be accused of this conflict, technically, because he 
didn't work for you ~ 

Mr. MERCURE. That is right. 
Senator DOMENICI. So that would be a convenient way to get around 

it and you will see that that does not occur again. 
Mr. MERCURE. It was not supposed to occur in this case. . 
Senator DO~:IENICI. Are you requiring mandatory, onsite inspectlOns 

of recipients' dwellings ~ 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. Yes; that is part of the established procedure. 
Senator DOMENICI. Now was onsite inspection part of the procedure 

when our New Mexico homes were remodeled, Mr. Cavanaugh~ 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. Yes. . 
Senator DOMENICI. So if it did not occur pursuant to sworn tesb-

mony, then it did not occur at all in some instances, and they were 
violating the national rules set down by Farmers Home; IS that 
correct~ 

~{r. CAVANAUGH. That is correct, Senator. . 
Senator DOl\IENICI. Are we requiring a bond and State licensmg for 

504 contractors or either '? f 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. Neither. . 
Senator DOMENICI. All right. Now let's talk about that. There IS 

nothino- in the statute law which requires you to have a bond. I am not 
going to argue that. I assume your reasoning is that it is too difficult 
to get in rural areas considering all the risks. 

Mr. MERCURE. For 504. 
Senator DOl\:IENICI. Is that correct ~ 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. Yes. 
Senator DOMENrcI. The second part of my question is, why is there 

not State licensing of 504 contractors ~ 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. I believe that not all States license contractors. 

Some State licenses of contractors, as I understand it., require the con­
tractor t.o be bonded and we find, as Mr. Mercure indicated, they were 
dealing with very small, marginal contractors :who. could not get a 
bond. I just say personally I am not sure that lIcensmg :r;eally would 
protect against the kind of acts that take place here. I thInk what 'Ye 
have missed here is not having the normal procedure followed, In 
which our county supervisor is careful about looking into the reputa­
tion, skills, and financial reliability of the contractor. 

Senator DOl\:IENICI. Let me give you my views. I di~agree on the 
following grounds. I think you should at least make It mandatory 
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~here the State law requires it. In New Mexico, any construction work 
ill excess of $500 requires a license. Let me tell you why I think it 
would be very helpful; because we have some contractors who do not 
even get a building permit, others do. 

If they must at least have a building permit, then State inspectors 
can be called in to see if State law has been complied with. Other­
wise, they c~n .come ~n but t~ey don't have any marching orders to 
measu~e theIr InspectIOns agamst. It appea!s to me that if you are 
not ~Olng to· have a bond, you ought to have lIcensed contractors where 
pOSSIble. 

Mr. MERCURE. I agree with you. I think we should work to that goal. 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. I supplement that. Anyone op~rating in our pro­

gram within a State has got to observe all of the State requirements. 
If the contractor can only perform with a license at a certain level of 
work, he must observe that under our program. Similarly, he must 
be subject to all the code requirements. 

Senator DOl\IENICI. Well, let me tell you, there again you say that, 
but they didn't comply in these cases. We had subcontractors doing 
general contractor's work. lVe had contractors who were not qualified 
to install electrical outlets or lines in a home even though State law 
prohibited it. 

I know these are small jobs, but let me tell you, these are the ones 
which create big problems.1Ve have electrical systems exposed in these 
homes,'and not even put in the wallLl. 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. I would say in light of the income of the people we 
should be more careful with this program. vVe are talking about very 
poor people. 

Senator DOl\fENICI. OIL Now let's talk a little bit about the person­
nel situation in New Mexico. I understand the State director, as of 
the date of our hearing, was not permitted to make any personnel 
changes or disciplinary changes because of ongoing investigations; 
is that still the case ~ 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. I don't know what personnel might be under in­
vestigation, but I do know with regard to this case, Senator, that 
the county supervisor involved, as well as the gratuitous employee 
from the State, have both been removed from any involvement. 

Senator DOl\:IENICI. "What is the name of the director in San Miguel ~ 
Mr. M~RCURE. Maese. 
Senator DOl\fENICI. Roberto Maese ~ 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. I don't lmow where he was assigned, butt he was 

moved out of the program. 
Senator DOlVIENICI. vVould you mind giving information to us as to 

why he was missed ~ I have my own personal thoughts about that par­
ticular man. I think he is somewhat of a victim, but that is not my 
decision to make. If we have evidence, in this case where auditors 
found malfeasance, and personnel were moved, all right. But they 
were promoted. Now you don't want to get into that. The particular 
individual was promoted to head the Gallup area after having been 
found to be negligent somewhere else. TeU us what happened to 
Roberto :Maese. 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. Yes, I will review that personally and report to 
you. 
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[Subsequent to the hearing, Mr. Cavanaugh supplied the following 
information: ] 

Mr. Maese, who previously held the position of assistant county supervisor 
in San Miguel Oounty (GS 475-11), is currently an assistant county supervisor 
in the Torrence Oounty office (GS 475-·9) . 

Senator DOMENICI. How about the fellow in Rio Arriba ~ Charles 
Knoop, what happened to him ~ 

Mr. MERCURE. The case is somewhat different than Rio Arriba. 
Even though the work agreement may have worked out all right, I 
don't know. I don't believe Knoop has been disciplined in any way. 

Senator DOMENICI. I just want to make sure if he was disciplined, 
that he didn't get promoted, but you don't think that happened in this 
case. Is that what you are saying~ 

Mr. MERCURE. I believe neither one of them got promoted, but I am 
not sure. 

Senator DOMENICI. All right. Let me tell you another thing which 
really bothers me about. some of the very old people and the way we 
do this. The 504 program has been developed nationally. It is to be 
given great credit for its simplicity. It is a simple program. Deposit 
$5,000 in the name of the grant recipient, and then a local staff mem­
ber of Farmers Home Administration cosigns the check as work 
progresses and is paid. There is a final inspection with the grantee 
and a final withdrawal. ' 

But when you are dealing with very~ very old people who have &. 

lot of difficulty understanding English, as is the case in this particular 
part of New Mexico, there is an obvious opportunity to have them sign 
checks they ought not to be signing, because they have this tremendous 
faith in this young fellow, who is there telling them, "Mrs. Ortega, 
you have got to sign this check." This leads to forgeries, it leads to 
fraud. What procedures have we instituted to protect against that~ 
Are there any ~ 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. Again, I think the procedures are there. The real 
question is seeing' that the staff people' are attentive to those proce­
dures. In addition, we have often tried to work, particularlv in this 
program, with local nonprofit or other groups that are oriented to the 
client population, in this case elderly people, to try to get them in­
volved to make sure that the people understand what the program 
can bring them, to make sure they get a fair shake, to assist us in 
seeing that good writeups are done, that good contractors are selected. 

The program really works most effectively :vhere you have that kind 
of adjunct to Farmers Home. That does not excuse us for not carrying 
out the program, through the county supervisor, in a sound, honest 
way, or for the Government to get them what it intended them to 
have. It is .embarrassing, there has been a breakdown in our agency in 
these cases. 

We have taken every case, not only in New Mexico, but throughout 
the United States, to the kinds of problems we have and the investi­
gation this committee conducted. The concerns that you have, and 
that we all share, are to see that it is a sound program, and it is going 
to be reviewed very carefully with our staff, the national traming 
meetings, to make sure that they are attentive to these and other prob-
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lems that can occur to shortchange people on what this Congresb and 
the administration wanted them to have. 

Senator DOMENl:m. 1;Vell, Mr. Oavanaugh and Mr. J\{ercure, I share 
your concern. I do not doubt that you are concerned. What bothers 
me is that there has been a long time lapse and we still have not 
figured out any way to repair any of these homes that were not 
repaired. 

Let me ask you this. Are you satisfied you have a procedure in place 
and a policy, so that the checks which are cosigned are only for work 
actually completed ~ 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. And you acknowledge this was not the case here. 

In many of these ex~mples, the inspectors actually signed without 
knowing whether the work had been completed or whether the mate­
rials had been delivered to the site. 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. It is just plain that our procedures were not fol­
lowed in this case, and that no one would honestly have seen what was 
done and signed off on the check. 

Senator DOMENICI. Now I want to tell you something that bothers 
me about the whole program. We had the New Mexico Oonstruction 
Indu&tries Division director testify to Senator Chiles, Senator 
:Melcher, and me in New Mexico. His name is Ernest Coriz. He is 
really something, because usually we have people l11ere who are not ex­
pert, but he is an engineer, a construction authority. He told our com­
mittee Farmers Home Administration does not have a single person 
in New Mexico qualified to make building inspections, or construc­
tion progress inspections, as required by the New Mexico State stand­
ards and code. Have you ever heard that before ~ 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. No, sir. 
Senator DOMENICI. "Vhat does this mean to you if this is the case ~ 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. I don't know what examination the gentleman 

made. I would say, first, that I can't speak specifically to New !tlexico 
today, but we have insisted that our State operatIOns bolster our 
strength and capability in building inspection across the line. In my 
view, we do not have either the number of inspections, or in many 
cases, the caliber of inspectors that we need for the broad range of 
construction work that comes before the agency. 

To a large measure we depend upon instruction, training, and over­
sight by architects and engineers, by training we give our own staff, 
and by considerable dependence upon what are known as WAI or 
'VIN as the inspectors. I would like to make the observation, that in my 
view, we have not been able to get the kind of grade levels that we 
would like to have to be able to hire, what I think, is the level of expe­
rience and capability of construction inspectors for Farmers Home. 

Senator DOMENICI. Why ~ 
1vfr. MERCURE. I believe Mr. Coriz' statement is a little extreme. There 

are a few but not enough to handle the kinds of tasks that we have. 
They address actually his criticism, and although somewhat overstated, 
it is valid and I think reinforced by some of the suggestions and rec­
ommendations Mr. McBride hus made with regard to his assessment 
of FmHA management needs in the field. 

Mr. McBlUDE. That is correct, Mr. Ohairman. 

19-347 0 - 81 - 9 
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Senator DOMENICI. Let me ask you this. 'Why itt those parts of New 
Mexico where the State inspector system has enough personnel to 
help ou't, are they not used ~ Now we have evi~e~ce ~ere that, strangely 
enough, our State does not have a lot ?f bUlld!n~ In~ecto~s and the 
legislature doesn't put enough money mto .traInIng utate lI~spectors. 
But there were some inspectors 1"ho were lIcensed and qu~hfied who 
could have inspected these homes and could have do?e so In a rather 
easy way. They were in the area, they knew a.bout It, but they were 
not called upon under this program, and there IS no effort to get them 
together. f. 1 h t 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. For work under the local codes an.d the r,u es t a 
require local inspections we ce~'tainly. welcome those InspectIOns as a 
way of supplementing our own mspectIOns. 

Senator DOM:ENICI. All right. . . 
Mr. MERCURE. One last point. We. shoul~ consl~er ~ore serIOusly 

where there is a structure of State mspectIOn whICh, In the case of 
New Mexico itllas, and perhaps other States don't have, tJ:.at perhaps 
we ought to take a look at the capacity of our people ou~ In. the field, 
because it is obviously the kind of linkage of resources wInch IS allu~ed 
to in Dr. La Vor's comments. Unfortunately in this case, alt]:IOugh wIth 
good intention, the linkage appears to have b~en less than Ideal. 

Senator DOl\IENICI. Now we get to the last Issue.here. However, ?e­
fore I get into that, let me say, I am firmly convInced afte: loolnng 
at the proo-rams in other States, that unless we put somebody .In c~la~ge 
of this type of program in a State like New Mexico, who IS wIllIng 
to take some innov&.tive approaches and m~tch re~ources, and encour­
age contractors to do reputable work, we wIll contInue to.have second­
rate people apply. Then you are going to have to have Inspectors on 
inspectors on inspectors. . . h 

In Florida, they had a tJ;emendous matchup of CETA t~aInees WIt 
small business assistance. The subcontractors were supervIsed by gen­
eral contractors while learning to do the wo:k and th~ ~eneral con­
tractor was responsible. They did all these thmgs, and. It IS a mas~er­
ful application of resources, compared to .what -yve have In ~ew :M~exlc.o. 

Mr. Mercure when we got tlus all fimshed In Ne,! MeXICO, we stIll 
had one questi~n hanging over our heads, and that IS: Where are we 
goino- to get resources to take care of these poor people whose homes 
have'" not been fixed ~ S.o on October 28, we ask~d Mr. Cavana~gh, 
through our staff and Senator Chiles, the f?llowmg: :rhe comm!ttee 
found in its hearing that certain homes were I?appropl'lat~ly repaIred, 
if at all, under the 504 program. T~e comm!ttee would lIke to lmow 
exactly what steps ~armers Home WIll take, If ~ny, to properly fix up 
the homes in questIOn ~ Farmers Home ascertamed that notlllng. can 
be d.one, in a letter from Mr. Cavanaugh indicating the followIng: 

Farmers Home has no legal basis to provide additional assistance to persons 
whose homes were not properly repaired, unless the .amount of the 5~4 grant 
originally provided was less than the $5.000 legal maXImum or the famIl~ could 
now qualify for a 504 loan at 1 pf'rcent, but in any event the total aSSIstance 
would not exceed $5,000, and a total loan combination grant of $7,500. 

Now, :1\11'. Mercure, were you asked by Mr. Cava~augh to chec~ in~o 
this, from the standpoint, of the Department of AgrIculture, and IS thIS 
your conclusion also ~ , 
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Mr. MERCURE. No; the first al1Swer to your questioh is no. No, I don't 
believe Mr. Cavanaugh asked me if there was any alternative, but I 
believe it is correct to say that our General Counsel has indicUited 
we cannot exceed $5,000 or $7,500 combination. 

Then in that context we cannot do it within the resources that are 
available legallv from the Farmers Home Administration. 

Senator DOMENICI. SO 1t is the official position of the Department 
of Agriculture then, so we kn.oW in New Mexico, that they cannot do 
anything to help those people get their homes repaired. Is that right ~ 

Mr. MJ~RCURE. Without the legisla,tive authorization that permits 
the Farmers Home to indemnify families who were victimized es­
sentially by slJOddy workmanship, your answer is correct. 

Senator DOMENICI. Well, let me pursue this with you. I really can't 
understand that. 

What if the homeowner has some rights ~' You know the kind of 
people we are talking about. There is no way they can exercise legal 
rights in this case. They don't have the money up front. They would 
have to have an implied contract~ and there may be one. That was 
the answer of some lawyer who advised your people locally. I am 
enough of a lawyer to know that is the first hurdle, and it will cost 
you $800. 

Mr. MERCURE. And if you had $800, you could probably do the job 
t.hat should have been done in the first place. 

Senator DOMENICI. So there is no way that you can go in and take 
the work or take assignment from the homeowners, or go after the 
contractor, or exercise any rights in the Department of Agriculture ~ 

Mr. MERCURE. Well, I don't know. We have not really posed that 
question although we could pose it. The difficulty, again, is that the 
likelihood that we can recov.ar much from the cont;,'actor is probably 
fairly remote also. 

Senator DOMENICI. I would not doubt it. From the ones I saw, I 
don't think they have anything left. 

Mr. MERCURE. We pick up the pickup. 
Senator DOMENICI. Yes, we pick up the pickup. Some of them were 

incorporated. You cannot go beyond the corporation and the corpora­
tion do~s not have anything in it. 

Mr. MERCURE. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. So it is your position, even though you were not 

asked previously, and you didn't sit down and talk about t.his with 
~fr. Cavanaugh, to get this squared away before he wrote his letter 
to us, that you cannot do anything to help them ~ 

Mr. MERCURE. No; we cannot within the current legislative author-
ity we have. 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. Sir, may I add something to that~ 
Senator DOMENICr. Please. . 
Mr. CAVANAUGH. We do hah , gislation in Farmers I-Iome relative 

to new construction, that I feel I was in part instrumental in achiev­
ing for the agency, which allows us, in comparable situations, in new 
construction where the homeowner is unable to get compensation in 
a suitable fashion from the oontractor, to be able to turn to the Govern­
ment for assistance, and the Senator may wish to recommend an ex­
tension of that kind of protection for these low-income repair loans, 
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where those who have been defrauded or otherwise have not gotten the 
type work that was planned, and where the contractor cannot be 
held responsible, will get recompensed from the Government to put the 
property the way it should be. 

We have exhausted everything, and that was out of the same kind 
of predicament where on occasion new houses would be built. When 
the contractor would not be available to pay' or to correct the effect, 
we have process whereby we can step ~n and do that after all the al~er­
natives have been exhausted. State dIrectors and others are working 
hard with both the Community Services Administration to obtain 
funds that would allow the needed repairs to be made, as well as with 
the New Thlexico State Legislature, not. because we are trying to turn 
to somebody else to pay for it, but bemmse we do not have any legal 
authority to take care of it ourselves. 

Senator DOMENlCI. \iV ell, I can guarantee you, I think I have a 
pretty good feel for New ¥exico, and I don't think our Sta~e legis­
lature is going to approprIate money to redo the work whlCh they 
are going to say the Farmers Homo Administration muffed up. I just 
can~t see it. I hope they will appropriate some money for the State's 
activities in housing rehabilitation. They didn't do it last year. There 
was no money for rehabilitation, but I hope they put some in. How­
ever, it would be for their own activities. They are not going to repair 
what they perceive to be the Federal Government's mess. 

Let me ask you this. Are there any cases where the Federal Gov­
ernment has gone after a contractor to seek restitution for the grantee ~ 

Mr. :M:ERCURE. Not to my knowledge. 
~1r. ~1cBRIDE. There have been a number of criminal actions against 

contractors. There are some claims actions pending involving these, 
although because of the fly-by-night character of some of these opera­
tions the civil claim is often wo:rthless. In the larger loans, such as 
community facilities, there are quite a few. There have been a fairly 
large number of criminal actions involving contractors. 

Senator DOl\IENICI. Let me ask you, as Inspector General, are you 
aware 01 the fact that some people have succeeded in lawsuits against 
the Government in this kind of situation even though they hav~ no 
contract right ~ 

l\fr. McBRIDE. That was the question I raised; what action does 
the Government have against any of the contractors, either corporate 
or individual ~ I talked to the Assistant General Counsel this morning 
in preparation for this hearing and posed that question and got what 
seemed to me a conservative answer. The Government is not a party 
to the contract, and thus has no right of action. 

I would commend to you, Mr. Chairman, and to the committee staff 
that you might want to make an inquiry of the General Counsel him­
self, Dan Marcus. I have found in the past that he is an imaginative 
legal scholar, and may find a solution that has occurred to none of us. 
I am not sure he has been brought in on this question. 

Senator DOMENIOI. Well, my chief staff aide was there, as were two 
members from Mr. Marcus' office. 

Mr. McBRIDE. I suggest you talk to Mr. Marcus. 
Senator D01tfENlCI. Personally ~ 
Mr. McBRIDE. Personally. 

- -~ ~---~-----~---------------.....--------------------------------
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paSrtenofattohr tDk~MdENlfCI. I am not so sure I want to continue to have to be 
a m 0 government. 

:1\11'. McBRIDE. I will certainly be glad to take these-
Sena~or DOMENlCI. ~f you h?-ve to go to the Governor of the State 

every tIme an agency IS not dOIng a job, tl?-ings are in bad shape. 
th ;M~. lVIcBRIDE. I !Dust say candldly, haVIng been through issues like 
, d,I!! 1he pad~' bemg InJ:self a lawyer and exprosecutor, that I think 
)u. I['~a b r1J?bIIe~ a!,e unlIkely to be successful because everybody who 
~gIgll t ~ Ia t.e IS Judlgment pr?of, and that only some legislative 01' 

'1
u a myac Ion cou d be effectIve. 

Senator 1?01tIENICI. Let me just summarize this then and say the 
o;le s~lggestIOn that you .ma~e, Mr. Cavanaugh, about new construc­
hon,.IS not an ~asl applIc.atlOn to our situation. This does not a I 
~eadily be~ause It IS an entIrely different situation. It may be stret~£ea 
to apply; IS that what you are sayino- e 

M C o· 
r. .t~VANAUGII. No, s~r, I don't want to play lawyer but I don't 

rea~ly thmk t!lat ~he eXIsting provision would appiy. In fact the 
IdIOt~on to If havlllg It apply. to repair and rehabilitation was reJ'~cted 
urlng Ie co?-rse of the legislation. 

_ SenatorIIDo.ME~ICI.. So there is nothing in the legislation from what 
you can te at thIS pOInt. 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. Yes, sir, that is what I have been advised 

th~eknatforh DOMENICI. 1\.1r. Mercure, is there anything that you can 
ill 0 t at we ought to follow up on ~ 

tl Mr. MER?URE. Well, I think you would probably want to consider 
. Ie suggestIOns Mr. Cavanaugh made. 
e I ha~e a cou:ple of p~ints. l\fr. ~fcBride and I will talk to General 
oUlns~ to see If there IS anything that he can develop in the way of 

a so utIOn. 
The third an~ final thing that I point out is that our ex erience 

has been ~hat tIns has been a very solid program. You made Pa state-
1Vn~ earlIer, Senator, that we cannot just self-help in rehabilitation 

e .ave recently developed regulations for self-help housin whicl~ 
pe~'nuts us ~o l~S~ self-help ho:using appr.oaches in rehabilitatTon. We 
thmlk fthat IS .gOIng to be an Important Improvement but it will not 
app y or section 504, 

Senator DOMENI.CI. Let me ask if you will pursue that for us. I 'ust 
wa.n~ to say ther~ IS no wa~ ~ want to continue to have heal'ino-s~ on 
~e~~Ings, ~lilearmg·~, on thIS Issue. I don't want to abuse this p;ocess 

u . can e you thIS:. I have now gone as high as I intend to 0-0 i~ 
the Departmen~ of Agr.lCulture. I am not going to invite the Secl'~tar 
~own ~ere. I tlnnk A~sIstant Secretary Mercure is as hig'h as we. 11a le 
o go . .i. c~n say that If we don't find a way to at least offer some hel 

I clearly illt~nd to take it out of some other prOQTam of the Depar1~ 
ment of A~rlculture. I am going to do it. 0 

t 1 a~ gomg tO
f 

geht money appropriated to help these poor people get 
a J eas som~ 0 w at they already paid for once. It 'ust seems t 
we are dancmg all around this. We know they did ~rono- We lome 
they didn't follow the n~les~ but who gets punished ~ It i~ anY~h~: 
frob tf t1·190 peoPble, prIncIpally elderly in very rural areas that are i r? ~ thY' I1vmg ahs ad now as they were' before they spent the money 

JUS m r we ave to find a way to solve that. We hope we hav~ 
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solved the management problem. I am not sure we have, but at least we 
pointed it up for you. 

My last questions go to you, Mr. Inspector General. Since we are 
about to have a new administration, in due course, in the usual manner 
in our country, a peaceful one without revolution, in your opinion does 
Farmers Home need a new top-to-bottom audit of its procedures as to 
management capabilities ~ 1¥ ould this be the right time to do it ~ 

Mr. McBRIDE. Mr. Chairman, I think we know almost all the major 
problems in Farmers Home that need remedying, though a new admin­
istrator, new Secretary, might find some additional areas that need 
probing. We have devoted intensive audit attention, and conducted 
managment reviews of State and national operations. I have a number 
of areas that I think require immediate attention; in fact, I have con­
veyed information to the transitIon team and have given them my 
recommendations in that respect. 

I think FmHA needs a lot of work. I view it as the biggest problem 
agency within. the Department of Agriculture, and I do not say that in 
criticism of Mr. Mercure or Mr. Cavanaugh. Many of the problems 
arise for reasons beyond their control. It is the most serious manage­
ment problem within the Department and I think it deserves top 
priority. I have been blowing the whistle for the last 1112 years and 
indeed have talked to Members and staff of the Congress about these 
problems, because I feel they are so serious. Frankly, 1 welcome this 
kind of hearing and I think greater congressional oversight would be 
a service in this area. 

Senator DOMENICI. Mr. Cavanaugh, do you want to comment ~ 
Mr. OAVANAUGH. Just a word on behalf of what I think is a very 

fine Federal agency that has absorbed a tripling of its workload with 
no increase in staff. I would be glad to share with the Senator, or 
anyone else associated with the agency that can identify readily in 
terms of how it can improve its service to the public. They are not all 
related to manpower, but the threshold of any agency that has grown 
so fast in both the scale of its operations and the complexity and the 
breadth of the operations, it is plain that the Government is being 
penny-wise and pound-foolish by not maintaining adequate personnel 
levels needed to properly service its programs. In the meantime I 
think that its persOlmel has done a remarkable job in serving the rural 
public in this country. 

Senator DOMENICI. Well, I want to say that it certainly may have 
problems, and your job is to do precisely what you have done, and 
hopefully it will be constructive. The Farmers Home Administration 
has a tremendous responsibility and the potential for doing good is 
great. When we decided our rural d~velopment program was going to 
be run by the Department of Ap:ricu Iture, that was a major American 
legislative policy decision and the Department of Agriculture under­
took some very different roles from that- which it had conventionally. 
I am not making excuses for anyone. It should be run right. Even 
though we don't have enough personnel, it still does not excuse the 
kinds of things that are occurring in the field in New Mexico. 

Mr. CAVANAUGH. I am the first to admit that. 
Senator DOMENICI. We look forward to reviewing your annual 

report as we move thrnugh the legislative year. 

i) 

; i 
1 ! 
) , 

! ) 

, 
i 

, ! 

) I 

I 
) 

"'. 

.. 

1..Mr;' .... _-------------------- .------------,---~~~-"---------'---_#_--.----

123 

Do you have your findings reduced to a summary which you can 
make a part of our r~cor~, or is it a very extensive document ~ 

Mr. M?BRIDE. I thInk It ~ould be most useful to place in the record 
that portIOn of my recently Issued semiannual report pertaining to the 
Farmers Home Administration. 

Senator DOMENICI. I would request that you do that. If it is more 
than 30 pages, let's just make an adjunct. 

Mr. McBRIDE. Probably no more than five or six pa~es. 
Senator DOMENICI. Including recommendations, I assume. 
Mr. McBRIDE. Yes. 
Senator DOMENICI. Than!r you. It will be made a part of the record. 

. [Subse.quent to tlle hearIng, Mr. McBride. supplied the following 
mformatIOn :] 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, 
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL, 

Waskington,D.o., January 13,1981. Hon. PETE V. DOMENICI, 
U.S. Senate Special Oommittee on Aging 
Washington, D.O. ' 

D~ SENA~OR DOMEN~CI: Pursuant to your request ut the hearings of the 
SpeCla! ~on;mIt~ee on Agmg on "Possible Abuse and Maladministration of Home 
Reh!lbIlitahon lrograms for the Elderly," I have enclosed pages from my last 
semiannua~ repo~t W?ich point out significant problems, and recommendations 
f?r c?rrectIve fl~tlOn, m programs of the Farmers Home Administration, for inclu­
SIon III the hearmg record. 

While the l:Ieruiannual report for the most part deals with problems in specific 
programs of the l!'armers Home Administration, you also asked for my views of 
the ~anagement problems which have led to these program deficiencies. First, 
I thmk there has lJ~en too mu~h em~hasis within FmHA on disbUrsing loans 
and gran~s. and too lIttle a tte!ltlOn paId to such things as preloan analYSis, and 
loa~ SerVICIng. Th~r~ must eIther be retrenchment in the number of programs 
WhICh FmHA admmlsters, as well as the scope of the individual programs or a 
substantial staff increase. ' 

They do not have a sufficient number of people to mana~e the present range 
~nd volume of programs properly, nor do they have the correct mix of skills' 
I.e. sufficient persons with skills in financial analysis banldng engineering' 
construction, building inspection, etc. '" 

The present management information system is grossly inadequate. Timely 
~ata SUC? as number of deficieD:c~es, loans by category, and other necessary 
IllformatIOn. for management deCISIons is not available. Closely related to the 
nee.d !or an Improved maD:agement information system, is the need for a qualified 
indIVIdual to fill the pOSItion of Deputy Administrator for Management. It is 
on~ of the most important I?ositions in the Department of Agriculture in terms 
of Impact on program operatIOns. 

The agency also has to clarify the line of authority relating to many of its 
programs. For example, we recently conducted an audit on loan decisionmaking 
for bus.iness and industry. loans. We found that it was difficult to pinpoint 
responSIbility for loanmakmg. We have made eight recommendations to the 
Secreta!y to improve business and industry loan decisionmaking. These recom­
mendatIOlls have not yet been fully implemented. Other programs have similar problems . 

The hig.h.degree of aut0ll:0my which FmHA State offices exercise in loan and 
grant deCISIOns, coupled wlth the turnover among State Directors compounds 
the problem of defining lines of authority and pinpointing responsibility. Further 
the noncareer status of the position of State Director enables the hiring of 
persons who .do not necessarily have professional backgrounds which prepare 
them for the Job. . 

The Farmers Home Administration also lacks the capability for an internal 
review and analysis of its programs. We have also re<!ommended to the agency 
that they establish an internal review capability so that many of the problem!;'; 
which your committee has idp.ntified and which our aUditors and investigator; 
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have repeatedly identified, could be found by FmHA and corrected more rapidly. 
To date only five positions have been established for the internal review staff. 

Finally, we have consistently found p'tOcedural problems in loanmaking, i.e. 
insufficient documentation, insufficient p!(~lcan analysis, checks that should have 
heen made prior to granting the loan haye not been made, borrowers being given 
misinformation by FmHA personnel, et/.'. Indeed, we have had cases where U.S. 
attorneys have declined prosecution of borrowers because of the negligr.mce of 
the agency or its personnel. I currently have a task force looking at these pro­
cedural problems. 

If you have further questions, please :'Let me know. 
Sincerely, 

Attachments. 

THOMAS F. McBp,IDE, 
In8pector General. 

SIGNIFICANT PROBLEMS, AnUSES, 01~ DEFICIENCIES AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOB 
COBnEQTIVE ACTION 

RURAL DEVELOPMENT PBOGBAMfJ OF THE FARMERS HOME ADMINISTRATION 

In past reports we have exprf!ssed our concerns regarding tile rapid growth 
in the number of programs l;l.nd l,h(~ dollar volume of the progr'lms administered 
by FmHA, and the stress this g;rowth has placed on the ag'C!ncy's capacity to 
manage these programs. 

Illustrative of this growth is the fact that since FmHA bel~an as the Resettle­
ment Administration in 1935 through the end of fiscal ye.ar 1979, the agency 
has advanced or obligated, through loans and grants, a total of $73.2 billion. 
More than $58 billion (80 per(~ent) of the total has been o!)ligated between 1969 
and the end of fiscal year 1979. ~p38 billion (45 percent) of the total has been 
obligated between fiscal year 1fJm3 and the end of fiscal year 1979. FmHA serv­
ices the accounts of approximately 1.25 million borrow(>.rs with a principal in­
debtedness of over $40 billion. In fiscal year 19i9 almost $5 billion was collected 
by approximately 2,000 field office:s. 

This growth has occurred ,""hUe employment has incI:'eased very little. Recent 
trends show the number of full·time FmHA employees has increased from 8,057 
at the end of fiscal year 1972, to 8,456 in April 19f)0. Part-time employment 
during the same period has iner,:'ilased from 1,491 to 1,6U. 

The result is that the number of s-taff years available for loanmaking and 
servicing functions per $1 IIliHion in program money has decreased from 1.0 in 
fiscal year 1969 to 0.21 in fi.scl'll year 1979. Conversely, the average value of the 
loan. portfolio per employee has increased from $9BO,000 in fiscal year 1969 to 
$4.7 million in fiscal year 197!/1. 

Effective management of tDte FmHA lonn pr9grams, however, does not depend 
totally on the adequacy of J,lmHA resources. An equally large part of the prob­
lem lies in FmHA managnnent priorities, which emphasize getting the loan 
made, often at the expense of careful review of the loan application, financial 
statements, availability of 'commercial credit, and loan servicing. Our investi­
gations and audits have shown longstanding and serious problems in these areas. 
We have investigated numelrous instances involving alleged fraud or false state­
ments by borrowers only to find that faulty FmHA procedures or practices 
were an obstacle to succ1essful prosecution. While additional staff resources 
are necessary to help deal with these problems, a fund.amental reorientation of 
lJ'mHA management attitudes is likewise essential. Recently there have been 
~ome indications that such a reorientation is occurring. For example, the Ad­
ministrator of FmHA has recently sent an administrative notice to the field 
offices emphasizing the need for improved loan servicing. 

The rapid growth in programs, combined with the inability to hire additional 
personnel; the emphasis on loanmaking at the expense of loan servicing; the 
failure to develop the Unified Management Information System (UMIS) ; and 
new programs such as the economic emergency loan program and the synthetic 
fuel program place new demands on employee skills and seriously strain FmHA 
management capacity. 
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Intradepartmental Review 
In early 1979, we conducted a review of . 

~ound that many of them reported the past audIts of FmHA programs and 
I~adequate review of loan applicati . same general ~r?blems-for example 
Imquent accounts, and inadequate ~ns! madequate servIcmg of loans and de­
should be graduated to commer . I eVIew of borro,:ers to determine if they 
were attributed to the imbalanc~abe:~~~ce~hof ~redIt. Many of the problems 
progt:ams ~nd the size and skills of its st~ff. e SIze and complexity of FmHA 

ThIS reVIew led to the creation f . 
Secretary, Assistant Secretary for ~ anll~tra~epartmental group (the Deputy 
~~HA Administrator) Which was Ch~~aed eve opment, Inspec~or General, and 
bIlIty of developing recommendations tog. by th~ Secretary WIth the responsi­
and lessen the susceptability of the rural I::P~OJ~ ~HA's management controls 
development, and emergency loan pro n at Ousmg, business and industrial 
group developed over 60 recommendat. grams. ,0 fraud, ab11:se, and waste. The 
the process of implementing In additi~~n; W~~h FmHA has Implemented or is in 
assistance in those program' areas. m requested audit ana investigative 

Internal Review Oapacity 
At the request of FmHA the Offi 

FmHA. to establish an int~rnal revfee;~i;sp~cto~~eneral R;nalyzed the need for 
the fact that .FmHA has evolved from a aCI fr'l e ana~ysIS was predicated on 
farmers to one of the largest financial i~~~t t.ende~ of last resort for family 
decade FmHA's loan volume has i 1 U IOns m the World. In the past 
annually. The typical county Offic~creased from $800 million to over $14 billion 
lending institution in the county havi~th~e are ov~r. ~,800) is often the largest 
of 591Ioa.n~ with an outstanding' balanc~ Ofe$~~sKon~I~~Ility for. servicing a caseload 
of $7.5 mIllIon per year' and makin . ~l lOn, makmg loans and grants 
workload is usually h~ndled by a gs~:~h o~oli~ctIO~S of $2 million per year. This 
county supervisor, and county office assistant ree. county superVIsor, assistant 

FmHA has traditionally relied u on 01G' . 
t~st and monitor the internal .. )n1rOls in ~~ ~roVlde the resources ne?essa:ry to 
tlO~S, and, to a lesser extent, has itself perfo ell' dP,!-,ograms an~ finanCIal opera­
baSIS. However, the tremendous rowth' rme mternal reVIews on an ad hoc 
dollars loaned, plus the fact that th 1 m FmHA programs and the amount of 
complex, require the Office of Inspec~o~~~~:;~r~m; are ~ecoming increaSingly 
program areas most susceptible to fda 0 ocus ItS l'esources on those 
checking of internal controls at the s~a~ , abuse, and waste. Therefore, the 
cycle cannot be accomplished within aV:il~b~r ~~~ty offices on a. standardized 
that our new audit approaches he. resources. While we believe 
audits of State and county offices ::~~u2s~an~~allY reduced the need for cycle 
at those levels, and we ha ve th~refo Oolllze e need to perform control checks 
revie~ staff be established within Fm~lec~~!lle~dffed that a permanent internal 
functIOns. Rather it would au men ; IS S a .W?uld not assume any 01G 
and respond immediately to p:oble! t:e Fmg:- ~dmmIstrat?r's ability to detect 
~nable the Administrator to insure tha~~~~'re /: mte~al reVIew staff would also 
m audits, investigations, and rev' . c.Ive ac o.ns for problems identified 
function should help resolve the Pri::: ale, In fact, Implemented. This latter 
action is taken. y concern of OIG that effective corrective 

SpeCifically, we have recommend d th t b . 
staff of between 50 and 75 persons eW'th~ e! a J~hme~t of an internal review 
for the following functions: I m i! m WhIch would be responsible 

-Perform Postclosing cretlit an' 1 .' f I 
independent public accounta~t ~eJ ~r: o. a~~e dollar ~oans and review the 

-Perform trend analysis on FmH! ts Iequued by varI~Us FmHA programs. 
activities of the Finance office-f{~fr.ams ankd operatIOns and monitor the 
,accounts; and . IS, ma e confirmations of borrower 

--Perform additional internal reviews of 
and follow up on actions take t areas !ll0s~ sus~eptible to problems, 
,audits and internal reviews. n, 0 correct defiCIenCIes dIsclosed in prior 01G 

FmHA. has recently d~veloped a plan for cr t· . 
has not yet assigned personnel to this function.ea mg an mternal review staff, but 
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SpeoiaZ Impact Audits 

Although we continue to devote a significant portion of our resources to pro­
grams administered by FmHA, we have also concentrated on improving the effec­
tiveness of our audit effort by placing greater emphasis on special impact audits 
designed to focus on problems in an entire program, as opposed to problems in t1l:e 
particular office administering the program as was done under the cycle audIt 
concept. We have found that the special impact audit results in more comprehen­
sive correction of endemic problems. 

The following audits, conducted during this reporting period are examples of 
our special impact audits. 

BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL LOAN PROGRAM 

The business and industrial loan program was authorized by the Rural Devel­
opment Act of 1972. The purpose of the program is to stimulate the rural indus­
trial economy by providing loan funds to acquire, construct, reorganize, or expand 
rural businesses providing new employment opportunities. It is primarily a guar­
anteed loan program. That is, FmHA can guarantee up to 90 percent of a loan 
which is usually made by a commercial bank. Business and industrial loans made 
through the program through fiscal year 1980 totaled approximately $4.4 billion. 

During this reporting period we completed a review of 40 business and indus­
trial loans. This review resulted from concern8 voiced about the business and 
industrial loan guarantee decisionmaking proce8s by perS0ns within FmHA, the 
Office of Inspector General, and the Secretariat, and from outside the Depart­
ment. We were concerned not only with the iS~lUe of whether or not external 
pressures were leading to the approval of business, and industrial loan guarantees 
for reasons unrelated to the financial and economic feasibility and impact, but 
also with the appearance that external political or other pressures were factors in 
the approval of such loans. For the loans reviewed, there was a considerable 
amount of external involvement in: the loanmaking process. While it is important 
to note that this does not mean all loans reviewed were not worthy of being 
approved, it does highlight the fact that there is an appearance that these loans 
could have been made for reasons other than financial and economic considera­
tions. Since these loans were not randomly selected, we cannot project the results 
of the survey to all business and industrial loan guarantee decisionmaldng. 

Of 40 loans in excess of $1 million selected for review, 22 loans (totaling $88 
milHon) were selected primarily because loan approvals initially were "dis­
couraged"; that is, not recommended for approval by the State office or the 
natIonal loan review committee, or loan rf~view officers. Eighteen loans (totaling 
almost $223- million) were selected from fiscal year 1979 operations primarily 
be(!ause of the large dollar amount of the loans (4 of the 18 were also rejected at 
least once by the S tate office or national loan review committee) . 

We determined through interviews and record examinations that in 21 of the 
40 loans reviewed there was evidence o'L support for the loan by outside parties; 
for example, Office of the Secretary, Members of Congress, congressional staff, 
White House staff, or State and local (~lected officials. We took into. consideration 
only those instances where strong letters of support for the loan guarantees were 
',)resent and/or there was evidence of meetings or personal contacts between 
FmHA officials and outside interested parties concerning the loan applications. 
Routine congressional or other inquiries on the status of loan applications were 
disregarded. 

Six of the forty loans in our sample were approved outside the normal ap­
plication review and evaluation process at both the State and national office 
levels. While the regulations provide that the State Director has ultimate re­
sponsibility for final loan approva.l, in practice that system is not always f-ollowed. 
In three cases State officials either did not recommend approval of the loan or 
were not give~ an opportunity to re'View and evaluate fully the application be­
fore the loan application was reviewed by the national office. A national office 
loan review officer was assigned to evaluate the six applications, but the applica­
tions were either not fully evaluated by the officer or were not subsequently 
recommended for approval by the national office loan review committee. Two of 
the loan applications were approved but ne'Ver reviewed by the loan committee 
as xequired by FmHA procedures. The remaining four applications were dis­
couraged by the committe~ but were subsequently approved. According t{' inter-
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views and record examinations, the assigned loan review officers had recom­
mended or were going to recommend against guaranteeing loans to these appli­
cants because of their poor financial condition the high risk involved or the 
lack of credit worthiness. ' , 

Of the 40 loans reviewed, 26 were discouraged at least once by the national 
offic~ pr~or to being. approved. Tllere were ~ine cases where the loan guarantee 
apphca!Ions were dIscouraged two to four tImes preceding final approval. From 
our reVIews of the loan dockets and our interviews, it appeared that considerable 
support from Members of Congress or the Secretariat was given for final approval 
of 14 of the 26 loan applications previously discouraged. 

In many ?f the cases wher~ there was outside suppor.t for loan approval, the 
documentatlOn of the processmg and the factors on which BJpproval of the ap­
plications was based were inadequate. 

. In addition, the loan review summaries prepared by the assigned loan re­
VIew officers for presentation to the loa_n review committee were not retained 
when a:m>lications were discouraged or rejected. Only the letters to the Sta,te 
offices discouraging the projects were in bhe loan files. However when the 
applications were resubmitted and ultimately approved the loan ~eview SU:ll1-
maries prepared at that time were retained. Therefore the loan review commit­
tee i~its deliberations did not have the benefit of the p~ior review and I'easoning 
for dIscouraging the loan guarantee application. 
Recommenaations 
W~ made .the followiD;g.recommendatious to the Secretary to improve bUSiness 

and mdustrial loan decislOnmaking. These recommendations were based on our 
belief that we must insure the integrity of the business and industrial l,oan pro­
gram and that we should take steps necessary to assure that all loans are made 
on their m0rits and in accordance with statutory requirements. 

(1) All "outside" contacts, that is, from other than FmHA employees or the 
applIcant and his/her representative, should be documented. A written record of 
such communications, calls, or inquiries setting forth the nature of the inquiry 
and the response should be transmitted to a designated official of FmHA who 
will make sure such records of contacts are placed in the loan docket. 

(2) ~he Admin~strato~ of FmHA should :t.ave full delegation of responsibility 
for busmess and mdustrIaI loan approvals and disapprovals. While such a dele. 
gation presently exists, our review showed noncompliance with this regulation in 
a number of instances. 

(3) The Administrator of FmHA may delegate approval authority to subordi­
nate levels within FmHA with clear guidelines specifying the dollar size or 
specific nature of the business and industrial loans subject to such delegation. 

(4) Each business and industrial reviewing level within FmHA (State or 
national office) should fully document their recommendations for approval or 
disapproval and the specific factors on which such recommendations are based. 

(5) All loans of $1 million and· over should be reviewed by a national loan 
review committee. 

(6) The loan committee should make a documented committee recommendation 
of approval or disapproval setting forth the specific reasons and analyses in sup­
port of that recommendation. 

(7) There should be an appeal process to the FmHA Administrator for those 
loans finally disapproved at the State level. For those for which the national 
office has approval/denial authority, there should he 110 appeal. 

(8) The Administrator of FmHA should immediately implement internal re­
view systems to deal with the following aspects to assure that the business and 
industrial loan applications are thoroughly reviewed in depth and in detail: 

(a) Economic feasibility of the venture, including review and verification 
of current financial data, sales and profit projectiens, employment projec­
tions, adequacy of borrower equity, management capability, and any specific 
feasibility studies submitted in connection with the applications. 

(b) Negotiation of an appropriate level of guarantee commensurate with 
the degree of risk and FmHA financial exposure. 

(c) Adequacy of loan security, particularly personal guarantees. 
The agency is implementing those recommendations, with one modification. 

The Under Secretary for Rural Development will retain final review authority 
f'Or loans over $2.5 million which have been approved by the FmHA administrato.r. 

We are continuing our audits of 'the overall administration of the business and 
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industrial loan program and are currently performing a review of a statistically 
selected sample of 30 business and industrial loan guarantees in 20 States. 

RURAL HOUSING CONSTRUC'rION AND REP AIR LOANS: INTEREST CREDIT AGREEMENTS 

The Housing Act of 1968 gave FmHA authority to subsidize interest on loans 
approved for low-income borrowers. Under this authority FmHA can charge a 
low-income borrower as little as l-percent interest on the loan, with FmHA paying 
the difference between the subsidized interest rate and the true interest cost to 
FmHA, currently 11 percent. 

Since 1968, FmHA has granted approxi:rp.ately $1.7 billion in interest credit 
assistance. The interest credit program has grown from $1 million in 1969 to $442 
million in 1979. The average effective interest rate paid on loans by borrowers 
who receive interest credit is approximately 2.8 percent. 

The interest credit agreements are for a 2-year period and are reviewed 
biennially to determine the need for continued interest credit assistance. The 
FmHA County Supervisor has the authority to increase the benefits if there is 
a reduction in income prior to tIle normal review date. However, there is no 
requirement to reduce benefits unless the borrower is found ineligible for the 
program; nor are there requirements for the borrower to report changes in income 
nor for the County Supervisor to monitor changes in income. 

We conducted an audit of the interest credit program in 1976 and found that 34 
percent of the 150 interest credit agreements sampled were incorrect at the time 
they were approved by the County Supervisor. 

The amount of interest credit was incorrect in an additional 39 percent of the 
sample agreements because of changes in borrower income or other circumstances 
occurring after the loan was made. The prior audit projected $50.3 million in 
excessive interest credits being granted to borrowers during the term of the 
181,262 agreements that were in effect at the time of the audit. 

Our current audit, based on a statistical sample of 200 loans selected from 
310,778 loans in effect as of October 1, 1979, was to determine what changes had 
occurred in the program since our previous audit and to determine the effect of 
such changes. We found that: (1) FmHA had not adopted many of our recommen­
dations, and (2) the magnitude of the problems had increased Significantly. 
We found there had been a 72-percent increase in the number of interest credit 
agreements and a 157-percent increase in the value of these agreements since 1976. 
The error rate in interest credit computations resulting in overissuance of benefit::; 
increased from 64.7 percent of the agreements sampled in the prior audit to 76.5 
percent in the current audit; while the error rate resulting in an underissuance of 
benefits increased from 8.6 to 10.5 percent. 

The dollar impact of these errors increased from $50.3 million in 1976 to about 
$190.7 million in 1979. Generally, the same types of problems disclosed in our pre­
vious audit were found in the current audit. For example: 

-Because FmHA procedures do not require borrowers to report changes in their 
income or other circumstances to the county office, we found 19 percent of th£' 
200 borrowers sampled would have been ineligible for interest credit because 
of increases in income. An additional 48 percent, while still eligible for inter­
est credit, had income increases which would have resulted in an increase in 
the interest charged them on the loan. 

The audit also identified certain inequities in the granting of interest credit to 
rural housing borrowers. An analysis of the loan data for the period October 1, 
1978, to December 31, 1979, showed that lower income interest credit borrowers on 
a nationwide average were purchasing higher priced homes than are higher income 
borrowers who were not eligible for interest credit. The analysis also showed that 
some rural housing applicants not eligible for interest credit probably could not 
afford to purchase a home because they would pay a higher percentage of their 
income for housing than do the interest credit borrowers. 

Recommendation8 
(1) Interest credit agreements should be reviewed on an annual basis and 

upon termination or renewal and. if appropriate, retroactive adjustments made 
for improper interest credit benefits. Appropriate changes should be made when 
a change in borrower circumstances offsets the interest credit by more than $15 
peJ~ month. In addition FmHA should provide for penalties to borrowers' accounts 
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to cover the expense of performing retroactive adjustments if the borrowers do 
not report changes. 

(2) ~he for~s used to obtain and verify an applicant's family income should 
be reVIsed to mclude scheduled increases in salary, expected overtime, and any 
other data necessary to evaluate and compute adjusted family income. County 
office personnel should be required to document adequately their computations 
of adjusted family income and interest credit. 

(3) The period for reverifying income if the verification of employment is 
more than 90 days prior to the date of loan approval, the date of loan closing or 
!he date the interest credit agreement is approved should be maintained. FmHA 
IS proposing to extend that period to 120 days, We believe that FmHA will have 
greater 3,ssurance that borrower income data is correct if the 90-day period is 
maintained. 

(4) The interest credit agreement should be revised to alert borrowers to the 
fact that when they sign the agreement, they are certifying to the accuracy and 
completeness of the financial and housebold data. 

(5) The national office should emphasize to county office personnel the need 
~or accu~atelY identi~Ying and verifying all household income for persom; apply­
mg for mterest credIt. They should be instructed to include income from tem­
porary employment and overtime. In addition, county l)ffice personnel should be 
requested to interview borrowers applying for renewal of interest credit agree­
~ents to determine if income or family status has changed since execution of the 
mterest credit agreement. 

FmHA officials were in agreement with some of the audit findings' however 
they .stat~d they did not have the staff to review interest credit agree~ents upo~ 
termmatIOn or renewal nor to make retroactive adjustments for excessive interest 
credit. While we agree the recommended reviews would be an administrative 
burden, such corrective action is both desirable and cost beneficial when more 
tha~ $~90 million in ineligible subsidy payments is involved. The agency is es­
tab!Ishmg a t.ask force to review the program to determine the cost effectiveness 
of Implementmg the recommendations. 
If the recommendations contained in the prior audit had been acted upon by 

FmHA, a substantial portion of the projected $190.7 million in excess interest 
credit would have been saved. 

ECONOMIC EMERGENCY LOAN PROGRAM 

The purpose of the economic emergency loan program enacted in 1978 is to 
make financial assistance available to 'eligible farmers ~nd ranchers to ~nable 
them to maintain a viable agricultural operation during times of economic stress. 
Loans can be :made only to applicants who receive 50 percent or more of their 
gross income f'rom agricultural production or expend more than 50 percent of 
their time operating the farm or ranch. Originally the loans could be used for: 
(1) Refinancing outstanding indebtedness on farm or home real estate and for 
other essentiall farm and home debts; (2) reorganization of the agricultural 
operation; (~) purchase of water ~ights, supplies, an.d irrigation facilities; (4) 
purchase of lIvestock and farm eqUIpment; (5) pur\~hase of feed seed fertilizer 
insecticides, a:I?-d othe~' farm supplies; (6) financi.ng land and' wat~r develop: 
ment; (7) fam.Ily SubsIstence; and (8) loan closing costs. 

Legislation ,enacted in 1980 prohibits the refinancing of outstanding indebted­
ness on farm or home real estate uuless such real estate was purchased by the 
applicant at l€last 1 year prior to the date of the loan application. 

The interest rate charged for these loans is "the cost of money to the Govern­
ment," currently 11 percent for real estate loans and 11.5 percent for operating 
loans. For inlmred loans and guarunteed loans the interest rate is negotiated 
between the borrower and the lender. Jnsured loans are those loans made by 
FmHA directly to the borrower. Guaranteed loans are made to the borrower by 
commercial lenders and FmHA guarantees repayment of a portion, usually 90 
percent, of thH loan. 

The purpose of the loan reviews conducted by this office was to determine 
whether the economic emergency loans were made to eligible applicants for 
authorized purposes, and whether there were reasonable efforts to consider mak­
ing guara~teed loans before consideration was given to making insured loans. 

Our reVIew of 276 loans disclosed the following problems: 



" 

130 

E{JJtended Loan Amortization Periods 

Economic emergency loans were made to refinance borrowers' operating debts 
over periods as long as 40 years without determining the borrowers' ability to 
repay the loans over shorter periods of time. FmHA procedures provide t~at 
loans for operating debts shnll be repaid in 7 years. A 10-year repayment perIOd 
can be approved, however, if certain provisions are met. Some FmHA cou~ty 
office personnel were of the opinion that if real estate was used as loan )SecurIty, 
the repayment period could he scheduled for periods up to 40 years. As a res~llt, 
42 of the 276 loans reviewed were made to finance operating debts (totalmg 
$3.9 million) for periods of up to 40 years. 

The effect of this practice is to increase substantially t!Ie interest cost to tl;1e 
bori'~wer and to hinder the graduation of these loans to prIvate sources of credIt, 
becansb commercial lenders usually limit the repayment schedule for operating 
debts to m"!.lch shorter periods even when the debt is secured by real estate. 

Insured Loans Ve1'sus Other Sources ot Oredit 

Although FmHA established a policy of making insured loans only when loan 
guarantees were not available through local agricultural lenders, as of Decem­
ber 1979 only 4 perl'ent of the $3 billion in outstanding economic emergency 
loans represented gua-ranteed loans. While ]'mHA personnel attributed this to 
the higher interest rates charged by commercial lendeis, a projection based on 
a statistically selected sample of 30 of 377 economic emergency loans in 11 
county offices in Indiaua showed that as many as 146 of the 377 loans were 
probably made without adequate FmHA determination of whether borrowers 
could obtain credit from commercial lenders either through commerciSlI loans 
or FmHA loan guarante!8s. 

Ineligible Borrowers ani/, Unauthorizei/, Loan Purposes 

Of the 276 loans included in the review, 31 loans totaling $3 million were 
made to borrowers who were ineligible, or the loans were made for purposes 
not authorized by the program. Many of the improper loans occurred because 
FmHA personnel approved substitution of economic emergency loans for farm 
ownership and operating loans when applicants did not meet the economic 
emergency loan eligibility requirements, or the loans were for purposes not 
authorized by the program. 

Our survey disclosed that 12 loans totaling $1.9' million were made to bor­
rowers who WNe ineligible because they did not meet the FmHA criteria of 
deriving more than 50 percent of gross income from agricultural production or 
contributing over 50 percent of their time to operate the farm. Nineteen of the 
loans reviewed were made for unauthorized purposes, such as the expansion of 
farming operations; purchasing, repairing, or constructing personal dwellings; 
and financing real estate debt. 

In addition to conducting the audit, we reviewed the data base of the St. 
Louis Finance Office and determined that over t1 ,000 borrowers with loans total­
ing $199 million reported receiving less than 50 percent of their income from 
agricultural production. Field verification of this information revealed than 7 
of 27 borrowers i:J. two counties were not primarily and directly engaged in agri­
cultural production as is required by the statute. 

Recommendations 
(1) The procedures for approval of loans for refinancing operating indebted­

ness should be revised to place more emphasis on the applicant's repayment abil­
ity, as·a condition for loan approval, rather than relying solely on the assets 
used as security for the loan; and to further define what other debts calt. be 
included in real estate loans. 

(2) In order to carry out the stated policy of maldng guaranteed loans in pref­
erence to insured loans, the FmHA Or Congress should consider establishing 
interest rates keyed to the mortgage market and establishing separate fund 
limitations for insured and guaranteed loans. Subsequent to the audit, the 
economic emergency loan program was extended by Congress. In extending the 
program, several amendments were made, one of which requires that before 
approving an insured loan of more than $300,000, FmHA. determine that the 
applicant is unable to secure a loan commitment from a commercial lender that 
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could be guaranteed by FmHA. This requirement should improve the balance 
between insured and guaranteed loans. 

(3) The FroHA national 'Office should rewrite and clarify the intent of operating 
instructions pertaining to the applicant's eligibility, authorized loan purposes, 
and repayment terms. In addition, the nati'Onal 'Office should monitor more e<losely 
critical prO'blem areas. 

The 1980 amendments also included a requirement tha:t the FmHA conduct a 
comprehensive study of the operation and effectiveness of the economic emergency 
loan program and the need for extension of the program bey'Ond September 30. 
1981. Other provisions of the study include: (1) The effect of the loans on the 
overall financial condition of the borrowers and their ability to maintain viable 
agricultural 'OperatioJls, (2) the effect of the credit elsewhere test, (3) the loan 
delinquency rate and the percentage of borrowers subsequently gI'aduated, (4) 
the use of loan guarantees compared with insured loans, (5) the purposes for 
which the loans are ohtained compared to the purposes specified in the act, (6) 
the methods of servicing loans and encouraging repayment, and (7) program 
alternatives, including merging the program .with the farm ownership and opera­
ting loan programs or the combination of all programs into a single program. 

The agency is revising the economic. emergency loan program instructions to 
inc'Orporate the provi'sions of the amendments and to provide the clarification 
necessary to assure Iloans are made only to eligible applicants and that such loans 
are used for authorized purposes. 

UNIFIED MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM 

In November 1979, we poi~loted Out that FmHA had experienced serious prob­
lems and cost escalation in itE efforts to develop the Unified Management Informa­
tion System. Since that time the following events have occurred: 

-In January 1980, a departmental task f'Orce was formed, under the direction 
of the Assilstant Secretar:v for Administration, ,to evaluate the status of the 
Unified Management Information System, to determine what portions of the 
project could be salvaged. 

-In .July 1980, the House Subcommittee on Legislation and Nati'Onal Security 
of the C'Ommittee on Government Operations held hearings to examine the 
cause of the failure of the project and to determine what corrective actions 
are needed to insure :hat FmHA will develop a modern and efficient manage­
ment information system. 

-In September 1980, the subcommittee issued a report entitled "Management 
Failures in Developing the Farmers Home Administration's Unified Man­
agement Information Systpm." The report contains several recommenda­
tions, including: (1) The Secretary shOUld direct that all UMIS develop­
ment efforts be halted; (2) the ASSistant Secretary of Administration 
should develop a project plSln to design and. develop a new Management 
Information System; and (3) the Assistant Secretary for Administra­
tion should assume overall management control for the development of 
FmHA's Management Information System. 

It is essential that FmHA have a viable Management Information System 
and we will continue to monitor its development. 

Senator DOMENICI. We stand adjourned. 
[Whereupon, at 3 :45 p.m., the committee adjourned.] 
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